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1. Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Backgroundinformation

The Authority was established vide the Kenya Roads Acl 2007. The Authority is under the State
Department for Roads wilhin the Ministry ofRoads and Transport which gives it the general policy
and strategic directioE.

@) Principal Activifies

The principal activity/mission of the Authority is to develop 8nd manage quality and adequate
national trunk roads through innovation and optimal utilization of resources for sustaiuable
development.

(c) Key Mrnagement

The Authority's day+o-day management is under the Director General who is an a oficio
member ofthe Board of Directors and Secretary to the Board.

(d) FiduciaryMstragement

The key management persontrel who held office during the financial year ended 30e Jrne 2023

and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Name

I Director Gencral Eng. Kungu Ndungu

2 Director, Public, Private Parhership
Eng. Charles Obuon
(Appointed * January 2023)

3 Ag. Director, Development Eng. Henry Gakuru
(Appointed F January 2023)

4 Ag. Director, Maintenance Eng. Daniel Chcrono
nted th 2023

5 Director, Corporate Services CPA James Bowen

5 Director, Planning, Research & Compliance
Gatitu

7 Dircctor, Highway Design & Safety
Eng. Ezekiel Fukwo'

ted P Jan 2023
8 Director Audit Services Dr. CPA Samm Kim

9
Corporation Secretary/Deputy Director, Head
ln Services

Ms. Norah Odingo-Kajwang'

10
Deputy Director, Hcad Supply Chain

Ms. trvina Wanyonyi

ll Director, Highway, Design & Safety Eng. Samuel O. Omer
(Rctired ld December 2022)
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No. Designation Name

Chairperson (non-executive) Ms. Winfrida W. Ngumi
(Appointed 5th August 2022)

2
Director Mr. Charles Gathogo

3
Director Mr. Protus Sigei, Altemate to CS National Treasury

4 Director FCPA. Julius W Mwatu

5 Director Ms. Brenda N. Mayabi

6 Director Eng. Nicholas Musuni Altemate to PS Roads

7 Director
Mr. Martin Eshiwani
DLector - Alt. to PS (Transport)
(Appointed 20h March 2023)

8
Chairman (non-exe ative) Eng. Wangai Ndirangu, MIEK, RCE

(Rerired 27d July 2022)

9 DLector
Eng. Carey O. Orege, CBS
(Retired 25th November 2022)

l0 Director
Mr- George Wanjau
Diector - Alt. to PS Clransport)
(Retired lP Januarv 2023)

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

The Authority's Board of Directors coDstituted four Board Committees namely;
l) The Finance, Srategy and Risk Committee,
2) The Audit and Govemance Committee,
3) The Human Resource and General Purpose Committee and
4) The Technical, Procurement and Disposal Oversight Committee.

The Finance, Human Resource and General Purpose Committee and the Audit, Risk and Govemance
Committee are responsible for the fiduciary oversight ofthe Authority.

Their key responsibilities are outlined below:

i) Finance, Strrtegy end Risk Committee

ffis is a committee of the Board whose key responsibilities are to: -

) Review, approve and/or recommend for Board's approval;

l) Financial, ICT, Legal & Regulatory Affairs and Corporate Communications policies and
procedures,

2) Estimates of rcceipts and expenditures including their revisions,
3) Re-allocation of funds between budget heads,
4) Special funding proposals including bonowings and grants,

5) Proposals for opening bank accounts,
6) Proposals for investments and their tetums,
7) Annual Corporate Social Responsibility activities and
8) The viability or otherwise ofPrivate Public Partnerships in road projects,

lv
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) Ensure that;
I ) Proper books of accounts and records are maintained for the Authority's hansactions,
2) Al[ expenditures are within the approved budget,
3) Proper records are maintained on property and material liabilities.

ii) Audlt and Governance Committee

This is a committee of the Board whose key responsibilities are to: -

! Review, approve and./or recommend for Board's approval;
l) The extemal auditor's management letter and management,s response to the extemal

auditor's fi ndings and recommendations,
2) The Authority's procedures for detecting fraud and to review the investigation and

remediation of any alleged or suspected faud,
3) At least annually, the stahrs ofthe enterprise risk management program and
4) The annual intemal audit work plan.

) Ensure that;
l) Unsettled and tnimJrlemented Public Investment Committees' @IC) issues are resolved,
2) There is clarity ofdisclosure in financial reporting and the presentation ofa balanced and

understandable assessment of the Authority's financial position;
3) Recommendations of the Auditor General are implemented.
4) Integrity of the financial statements of the Authority is maintained at alt times
5) Disagreements between mauagement and any auditor regarding the Authority's financial

reporting are resolved
6) Special audit/ investigation on any allegations, concems and complaints regarding

comrption, lack of accountability and transparency are conducted

iii) Eumen Resource and Generel Purpose Committee
This is a committee of the Board whose key responsibilities are to: -

) Review, approve and/or recommend for Board's approval;
I ) Staff terms and conditions of service.

iv) Technlcal, Procurement and Disposal Oversight Committees
This is a committee of the Board whose key responsibilities are to: -

D Review, approve an&or recommend for Board's approval;
l) The consolidated Annual Procurement and Disposal plans,
2) Revision ofthe approved Consolidated Procurement plans,
3) Quarterly procurement reports,
4) Procurement of goods, services and projects that would require extemal financing,
5) Proposals for contsact awalds for strategic procurements.
6) Proposals formulated by Management for re-classification ofroads.
7) The road works programme formulated by Management for arl roads under the

Authority's purview,

) Ensure that;
l) Contracts awarded comply with the law,
2) The approved Annual Procurement Plan is duly implemented.

v) OfIic€ of the Auditor General
The Annual Report and Financial Statements ofthe Kenya National Highways Authority are audited in
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This group constitutes BilMulti - lateral co-financiers with the Covemment of the Republic of Kcnya
for development projects under implementation ofthe Authority, whose key responsibiiities in"fra., -

I ) To examine the annual reports ofthe Auditor General on the fininciai statements ofprojects,
2) To conduct financial management supervision and offer project implementation support,
3) Review of quarterly lnterim Financial Management Reporti and
4) Commission independent auditors to undertake financial and technical review of projects

under their financing.

(vii) The Public Investments Committee
This is a Parliamentary Select Commiftee charged with the responsibility of examining the activities of
state agencies. It receives audit reports from the Clerk of the National Assembly who in tum would
have received them from the Authority.

Its key responsibilities as appertains to the Authority are to: -
I ) Examine the Reports of the Auditor General on the financial statements of the Aulhority,2) Examine, in the context of the autonomy ard efficiency of the public investnents,
3) Examine whether the affairs ofthe public invesanents are being managed in accordance with

sound financial or business principles and prudent commercial practices.
Within thrce months after receiving the PIC report, Parliament shall debate and consider the report and
take appropriate action.

accordance with Article 229 s ub article 7 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Audit Act
2015

vi) Development Prrtner Oversight Activities

(f) Kenya National Highways Authority Headquorters
Barabara Plaza, Jomo Kenyatta Intemational Airport (JKLA),
Off Mazao Road
P.O. Box 49712 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

G) Kenya National Eighwlys Authority Contacts
Telephone: (254) 02 8013842
E-mail: dg@kenha.co.ke
Website: co.ke
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@) Kcnya Nadoael Flghwayc Authority Berkers'
I.KCB BankLtd
Moi Avcnuc Branch
P.O Box 30081 -00100
Nrlrobi, Kenya

3. National Baok of Kcnya
HilI Plaza Branch
P.O. Box 45219 - 00100
Nalrobl, Kehya

5. Equity BaDk Limited
Equity Ceotre Bransh
P.O Box 75104 - 00200
Ndrobi, Kenya

(D IndependentAudltors
Auditor Gcncral
Officc of the Auditor Gencral
Annivcrsary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084 - 00100
Neirobl Kcnye

(n Prlnclpd Legd Adviser

Thc Attomcy Gsnsral
. Statc Law Office

Harambcc Aveoue
P.O. Box 401l2 - 00200
Nelrobt Kenye

2. Co-operative Bank ofKenya Ltd
Upper Hill Braoch
P.O Box 3&15{0100
Nelrobl Kenya

4.NCBA Bank Plc
NCBA Housc
P.O Box t14599 - 00100
Nairobl Kenya
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2. The Board ofDirectors

Director BriefProfile

l. Ms. Winfrida W. Ngumi
Chairpersou

Date of Birth: 22"d December,1974
Bachelor of Architccture (Hons)
Member of the Kenya Association of
Manufacturers and the Kenya Private Sector
Alliance.
20 years ofexperience in the building, construction
and manufacturing industry.
(Appointed 5d August, 202)

2. Mr. Charles R. Gathogo
Dhector (I-odependent)
Chair ofthe Human Resowce & Gencral Purposc
Committee

Date of Birth: 246 Febmary 1955
Master of Cadasral Application
Bachelor of Science (Survey and
Photogrammetry)
Professional Membership: Licenscd Land
Surveyor and GIS Consultant with thc hstitutc of
Surveyors of Kenya.
25 years of Management cxpcricrcc in
Engineering Suwey, Cadastral Surveying aad
planning.

3. FCPA. Julius W. Mwatu
Director (Indcpendent)
Chair of the Finance, Shategy & Risk Committee

Date ofBinh: 9s Dccember, 1972
Master of Busines5 ddmin. (Finance)
Bachelor of Sciencc (Statistics)
Professional Membership:
Fellow of the lDstitute of Certified Public
Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK), lnstitute of
Ccrtificd Sccretaries (ICS), Institute of Ccrtified
Investuient & Financial Analysts (ICIFA)
22 yearc of experience specialising in audi! tax,
fnance, and integrated reporting.

4. Ms. Brcnda N. Mayabi
Director (lndepetrdeut)
Chair of the Board Audit & Govemance Committee

Date of Birth: 25t June, 1992
Bachelor of [aw (Hons)
Professional Membership: I,aw Society of Kcnya,
East African Law Society.
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Director Brief Profile

5. Mr. Protus Sigei
Dircctor- Alt. to CS (National Treasury & Planning)

Date of Birth: I't December 1965
Master of Science.
Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Economics (with
Mathematics)
Professional Membership: Graduate of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors
(GATCD)
23 years ofexperience in Board directorship.
Member of the Society for Benefit-Cost Analysis

6. Eng. Nicholas Musuni
Director-Altemate to PS (Roads)

Date of Birth: 56 March,l979
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Training in leadership, corporate govemance,
project management and arbitration.
Professional Membership: Member of the
Instihrtion of Engineers of Kenya (IEK)
Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers
Board of Kenya
l8 years of Management experience

7. Mr. Martin Eshiwani
Director - Alt. to PS (Transpod)

4i'

Date of Birth: ln May, 1963
Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of Arts (Public Policy)
Transport Policy and Planning Expert
Member of the Kenya Institute of Management
(MKIM),
(Appointed 2Ah March 2023)
17 Years of Management Experience

8. Eng. Wangai Ndirangu, MIEK, RCE
Chainnan

Date of Birth: 20d September 1973
Master of Water Engineering
Bachelor of Technology in Civil & Structural
Engineering.
Professional Membership: Member of the
Institution of Engineers of Kenya.
Registered Conzulting Engineer.
Lectuer, Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture
& Technology.
Consultant in Water Resources and Engineering
22 years of Management experience.
(Retired on 22'd Juty, 2022)
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Dircctor Brief Profile

9. Eng. Carey O. Orege, CBS
Director ([:dependent)
Chair of the Technical, Procurement & Disposal
Oversight Committee

Date ofBirth: l4s October, 1955
Master of Science (Highway Engineering)
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Professional Membership: Member of the
Institution of Engineers ofKenya.
Registered Consulting Engineer.
42 years of Management experience gained in both
public and private sector.
(Retired 25n November 2022)

10. Mr. George Wanjau
Director - Alt. to PS (Transport)

Date of Birth: l9'h January, 1962
Master of Science @roject Planning & Financing)
BA (Economics)
Economist and Urban Transport Planner.
35 years ofPublic Sector Management experience
(Retired l9r January 2023)

I l. Eng. Kungu Ndungu

Director General

Date of Birth: l8s October 1972
Executive Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Registered Professional Engineers Board of
Kenya, Professional Membership: Member of the
Institution of Engineers of Kenya (IEK)
Menber ofthe Kenya lnstitute of Management
(MKrM)
27 Years of Management Experience
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3. Management Team

Manager Brief Profile

l. Eng. Kungu Ndungu
Director General

Date of Birth: l8t october 1972
Executive Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Registered Professional Engineers Board of Kenya,
Professional Membership: Member of the Instihrtion of
Engineers of Kenya (IEK)
Member of the Kenya Institute of Management (MKM),
27 Years of Management experience

2. CPA. James K. Bowen
Director, Corporate Services

Date of Birth: I't January, 1973
Master of Business Administration,
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
Professional Membership: Certifi ed Professional Credit
Manager (CPCM),
Certified Public Secretary (CPS K), Certified Public
Accountant (CPAK)
Professional Membership: Member of ICPAK and ICPSK
26 years of Management experience

3. Eng. Njuguna Gatitu
Director, Planning, Research &
Compliance

Date of Birth: 1965
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Post Graduate Diploma il Computer Science
Professional Membership: Member of the Institution of
Engineers of Kenya
33 years of Management experience

4. Dr. CPA. Sammy Kimungul
Director, Audit Services

Date of Birth:22"d September,l g80

Doctor of Philosophy in Business Management
Master of Arts in Project Planning & Management
Bachelor of Education
Professional Membership: Certifi ed lnformation Systems
Auditor (CISA)
Certified Fraud Exami::er (CFE)
Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
Certified Information System Auditor (CISA)
Professional Membership: Member of ICPAK, ISACA,
CFE
16 years of Management Experience

xl
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Manager Brief Prolile

5. Eng. Ezekiel Fukwo

Director, Highway Design & Safety

Date of Birth: l6s August, 1976
Master of Arts (Project Planning and Management)
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Professional Membership: Member of the Institution of
Engineers ofKenya
Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers Board of
Kenya
Corporate Member of the Institution ofEngineers ofKenya
(rEK)-
l7 years of Management experience
(Appointed th January 2023)

I -L.
6. Eng. Charles Obuon

Director - Public, Private Partnership

Date of Birth: 20th November, 1972
Master of Philosophy in Civil and Structural Engineering
(Water Engineering)
Bachelor of Technology and Skuctural Engineering
Professional Membership: Member of the Institution of
Engineers of Kenya
Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers Board of
Kenya
25 years of Management experience
(Appointed th January 202j)

7. Eng. Henry Gakuru
Ag. Director, Development

Date of Birth: 22od September, 1970
Master of Science (Project Management)
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Professional Membership: Member of thc Institution of
Engineers of Kenya
Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers Board of
Kenya
8 years of Management experience
(Appointed th January 202j)

8. Eng. Daniel Cherono
Ag. Director, Maintenance

Date ofBirth: l7s September, 1977
Master of Laws, (Construction [aw, Arbitration and
Adjudication)
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Professional Membership: Membcr of thc Institution of
Engineers ofKenya
Registered Professional Engineer with Engineers Board of
Kenya
12 years of Management experience
(Appointed 9e January 2023)
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Manager Brief Profile

9. Ms. Norah Odingo-Kajwang'
Corporation Secretary/Deputy Director,
Head of Services

Date of Birth: 27'} Apttl1969
Master of Business Administration
Bachelor of laws
Registered Advocate ofthe High Court ofKenya
Professional Membership: Member of the Law Society of
Kenya
Member of the Certified Public Secretaries of Kenya
28 years of Management experience

lO.Ms. kvina Wanyonyi
Deputy Director, Head of Supply Chain
Management

Date of Birth: 13 February 1972
Master of Business Adminiskation
Bachelor of Science
Professional Membership: Kenya Institute of Supplies
Management,
The Chartered Institute of Pwchasing & Supply
Institutc for Management of Information Systems
26 Years of Management experience.

I l. Eng. Samuel O. Omer
Director, Highway, Design & Safety

Date of Birth: 176 December 1962
Bachelor of Science (Civil Engineering)
Professional Membership: Member of the Institution of
Engineers ofKenya
35 years of Management experience
(Rerired Ifr Decenber 2022)
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4. Chairperson'sStatement

The FY 202212023 marked the fourth year of implementation ofthe Authority's revised FY 2}l8/21tg

- 202212023 Strategic Plan. The Authority remained committed in efficient and effective management

of its road investsnents to minimize road user cost, road agency costs, travel time and cost of havel.

The KeNHA Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 306 June 2022 provides an

overview ofthe Authority's performance and financial resource utilization over the period.

The Authority prioritized the provision of an adequate, safe and efficient national trunk road network

through enhanced investrnent in new road construction and maintenance to facilitate realization of the

Vision 2030 and Big four development agenda and guarantee sustainable road investrnent.

The Authority completed the construction of the 27 km Nairobi Expressway thmugh a Public Private

Parhership. The project has improved the competitiveness of Nairobi city and directly created 5,500

jobs. The completion ofthe construction ofGarsen - Witu - Lamu road has also provided faster access

to Ifiu port and improved access to the rich and fertile agricultural zones of Mpeketoni. In augnenting

access to other agricultural zones in the country, the Authority is eDroot to completing construction of

641 lcrn Mau Mau roads and 357.5 km Isebania - Kisii - Ahero highway and access roads.

The Authority has substantially completed the Mombasa - Kwa Jomw Road section and Makupa

Causeway Bridge which have improved haffrc flow iuto Mombasa Island and enhanced competitiveness

of Mombasa port. The Authority also commenced lhe construction of Mtwapa - Kwa Ka&engo - Kilifi
Road, which will improve tourism and speed of transportation of goods betwecn Mombasa, Kilifi,

Watamu and Malindi towns. lnlbe FY 202212023 the Authority commenced the construction of Isiolo

- Mandera road to enhance connectivity to the Horn Africa CounFies, improve accessibility to seaports

and augment domestic and regional integration.

The Authority consistently engaged stakeholders during project identification, design, and

implementation and during policy development thus forging suategic partnerships that ensured effective

delivery of its mandate. Beneficiary communities were also sensitized on HIV/AIDs, road safety,

National Cohesion, Code ofEthics, integrity, road reserve protection and axle load control.

Challenges that affected project implementation included inadequate budgetary allocation, high stock of

pending bills, high cost ofland acquisition, and delays in relocation ofutilities. The Authonty leveraged

on Public Private Partnerships to bridge the financing gap; mapped roadside amenities on the GIS

platform to facilitate timely relocation of services; and embraced forward plannilg and early land

acquisition to mitigate on some of the challenges.

xlv
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The Board remaincd alive to its fiduciary duty in menagcmcnt of the Authority by cnsuring efficieat and

trarspa$nt utilisstion ofrcsourccs. During the financial ycar, Mr. Martia Eshiwani was appointcd to the

board. I wish to thank my fellow Directors for their invaluablc support and contribution during thc year.

n c wish to qprcss our sinccre gratitudc to thc Managcment, our Customcrs, the Govemment,

Dcvelopment Partren and other stakcholders whosc zupport was kcy in faciliating effcctive dclivery of
thc Autbority's msndatc

Mr. T9lufride W. Nguuri
CEAIRPERIION OF BOARD OFDIRECTORS
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5. Director General's Strtement

The Authority's A-nnual Report and Financial statement have been prepared in line with the

requirements of section 44 of the Kenya Roads Act, 2007. It provides an overview of the Authority's

activities and operations over the one-year period ending 30s June 2023 and presents a synopsis on

utilization of allocated funds.

During the year, the Authority implemented initiatives in line with the revised IY 2018/2019 -
2022D023 Ssategic Plan. The Authority substantially completed 13 projects which includcd Nairobi

Western Bypass, Lamu - Winr - Garsen, Kalobeiyei River - Nadapal, Lokitaung Juncrion - Kalobeiyei

River, I-oichangamatak - Lodwar, MPARD Pkg 3: Mteza - Kibundani, Naivasba - Njabini Road, Nyaru

- Iten, Mombasa - Kwa Jomw Rd, Nairobi Expressway, Kisumu Boys - Mamboleo, Ahero - Kisii

roads and the construction of T-Mall Overpass.

The Authority initiated the construction ofcritical road intastructure to enhance national and regional

integation, accessibility, and road safety. The new projects included the construction of Marsabit -
Segel, Mamboleo Junction - Miwani, Miwani - Chemelil, Chemelil - Muhoroni - Kipsitet, Kwale -
Kinango, Barpelo - Tot Junction, Tot Junction - Kopasi River and Kopasi River - Marich Pass roads.

Construction was also ongoing for key road links that include Eldoret Blpass; Mwache - Tsunza -
Mteza; James Gichuru - Rironi; Isebania - Kisii; Dualling of Magongo Road; Mau Mau Road lot lA:

Kiambu - (Gataka - tria - Ini - Kagaa - Matimbei - Kamahindu & Spur roads); Mau Mau Road L.ot lB:

Kiambu (Kamahindu - Gatamaiyu - Nduriri-Nyanduma - Wangui - Mataara - Gatakaini and spur

roads); Kinyona - Gatura - Njabini; Thika - Magumu Road; Mau.Mau Road Lot2 - Murang'a (Mairi -
Kinyona - Mununga - Ichici - Tuthu - Wanjerere - Kagongo - Kairo); among other projects which arc

at various stages of completion.

The Authority also undertook design studies for Mai Mahiu - Suswa, Eldoret Eastem Bypass, Kericho

Northem Bypass, Kithimani - Kabaa - Mwala - Makutano, Wamunyu - Ndukulu - Itangini Road and

Ukia - Emali Road, Dualling of Eldoret Town Road, North Hon - Jn Daradhe AP Camp Road, Dif -
Wajir, Wajir - Buna - Moyale Road, Isinya - Konza - Malili Road and Bomas - Ongata Rongai -
Kona Baridi in preparation for their development.

The Authority continued to enlance the sustainability of its road infrastructure with the implementation

of Performance-Based Contracts which has guaranteed timely maintenance intervention on its road

xvl
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networlq ensuring high service levels. During the year, the Authority put 8,848 km of its road network

on maintenance through Performance Based Contracts.

The Authority planted 37,360 trees tbrough Kitale - Endebess - Suam, Kenol - Sagana - Marua and

James Gichuru - Rironi road projects to promote sustainable ecological development. It also uldertook

environmental and social impact assessment sh.rdies for all new projects. Environmental audits were

undertaken for Mau Mau Lot lA, Mau Mau l,ot lB and Kenol - Sagana - Marua to ensure compliance

to the set cnvironmental aod social safeguards.

I wish to take this opportunity to give my appreciation to the Board of Directors for the support and

gu.i,lrnce extended to the Mamgement throughout the year. I commend staff for their unwavering effort

that ensurcd that thc Authority remained steadfast in delivcring its mandate. I extend my gratitude to the

Minisu-y of Transport, Infrastucture, Housing, Urban Development and Public Works, National

Trcasury and Development Partners for financing our projects and programmes. Finally, I wish to thank

all other stakeholdcrs for their critical contribution that facilitated continuous improvement of the

national tunk road network.

Eng. Kungu N
DIRECTORGENERAL
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6 Statement of Performance against Predetermincd Objectives for Fy 2022123

Performance Indicator Activities Achi€ve ment
KRA l: Development of Roads and Enhancement of Network Cap and Quality
o ec ve To Enhaoce Efficlenc wl the ational Trunk Roads Networkthin Nti
Length in linear km ofroad
conskucted./improved to all
weather standard

Development (ConsEuction,
Rehabilitation and extension)
of the road network-

1,075.94 kn completed.
FY22l23 - 192.09 km

Kms of highways designed Design on priority regional
roads

I 199.75 km completed.
FY2723-0No.designed

leted
No. ofhighway bridges
constructed

Design and construct bridges
on priority regional roads

Construction of 6 No. Bridges
completed.
FY2223 -3 No. projects
complctcd

No. of footbridges
constucted

Dcsign and coDstruct of
footbridges on priority
regional roads

Construction of l5 No. footbridges
completed.
FY22l23 - 8No. foot bridses

KRA 2: Secu rnd Preservation of Road Ass€ts
Objective 2: Define, Delineate, Clelr and Secure Road Reserves and Depot Crmps
No. ofroad reserve marker
posts install€d.

Lstall and maintah road
reserve marker posts.

Installed I 1,415 road marker
posts.
FY22n3 -8 07 No. installed

Objective 3: Preserve the Quality of the Nationel Tiunk Road Network
Length ofNational
Trunk Roads in km under
routine maintenance-

Undertake routine
maintenance of
National Trunk Roads

29,904.34[<ra
FY22l23 - 8,838krtl

Length of National Trunk
Roads in Km under periodic
maintenance.

Undertake Periodic
maintenance of National
Trunk Roads

1,037.82 kn
FY22l23 - 346.2kln

Irngth of National Trunk
Roads in KM under PBC
maintenance

Undertake Performance
Based Contracting of the
National Trunk Roads

41,081.13
FYZAZ3 -8,057.lkrn

Objective 4: To Enhance Arle Load Control
No. ofweighbridges
installed.

Installation of
weighbridees

l9 No. weighbridges installed.
FY22l23 - 0 No. installed

KRA 3: ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
Objective 5: To Ensure Environmentel Sustrinrbility and Promote Social Interests
No. ofESIA reports prepared Conduct ESIA Studies for

road proi ects
l7 No. ESIA reports prepared.
FY22n3 - 5 No. reports

No. oftrees planted Revegetate existing and new
road corridors

205,094 No. hees planted.
FY22l23 -55,004 taees planted

KRA 4: Enhancement of Institutional Framework And CrDrcity
ObJective 6: To Strengthen the Institutional Caprcity
No. of Stategic plan review Strategic Plan

Review
New SP to be developed and
operationalized by June 2023
FY22t23 -

No. ofvacancies filled UndertakE Recruitment to fill
Vacant Positions as per the

3l No. new staff recruited.
FY22l23 -0 No. staff recruited
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Key Performance Indicator Activities Achievement
approved annual staff
requirement

% of Staff APpraiscd Appraise Statr
Annually

528 Staffhad been appraised
against total of528 staff in
FY202AB (100%)

Number of Professional
Graduates placed on
Intemship

Build Capacity of
Professional Graduates
through Intemship in
KeNHA

831 No. engaged.
FY22/23 - 415 No.

No. of StaffTrained TraiD Staff annually to
provide Critical Soft and
Technical Skills

W22J23 - 414 No. staff trained

o/o ofProcesses
Automated

Automate Intemal Business
Processes throu gh ERP

FY22/23 - 70%o altomation
achieved

KRA 5: Effecfive Resource Mobilizedon
ob ective E: To Mobllize Addifional Finrncirl Resources to tn Finencin s
% Increase in A-I-A
collccted

Negotiate favourable rates of
retum for Authority cash
resources, Automate and
prompdy collect fees and
levies from Authority's
weighbridges, Follow up
road reserve user fees and
develop and implement the
policy framework for
reveaue generation from road
assets

FYZAB -KES 2,162,889,005 has
been collected

KRA 6: Lcadersh ud Governance-
ob tlve 9: To S en Lerders rtrd
Uptake of30% value of
Tendcr awarded

Access to GoveEunent Fy 22 I n - r.ES 3,269,33 0,s 4s.3 0
Procuremcnt

Pcrceutage ofvalue of
aggregated conkact sums
expended on locally sourced
inputs including local
conbactors, local
subcontractors, local
suppliers, local servicc
providcrs and local materials

Implement strategies that
Promote National Values and
Principles of
govemance and specifi cally
local contetrt and technology
transfer

FY22n3 - KES 20,7 9 5,7 45,1 60
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7. Corporate Governsnce Statement

The Kenya National Highways Authority is committed to the values and principles ofgood Corporate

Govemance as an integral part of the Coryorate Culture. This guides the way its Directors, Management

aDd Staffconduct the business ofthe organization.

As a public sector organization dedicated to providing quality service to its stakeholden, the Authority's

decisions are guided by the core tenets prescribed in the Public OfEcers Ethics Acg the Leadenhip and

Integrity Act, the Mwongozo Code ofGovernance for State Corporations and Board's Code ofConduct.

The Aulhority endeavours to develop, strengthen and sustain the trust that the Govemment, employees

and the public have bestowed on it. The Board is committed to regularly evaluating national and

international standards in responsible, hansparent and efficient manner with a view of enhancing

Corporate Govemance at the Authority and consistently delivering on its statutory mandate.

The Authority's Board is constituted as per the provisions of the Kenya Roads Act, 2007 with

membership drawn from both the Public and Private sector. The Board is composed ofnine (9) Directors

with the Directors having a background or loowledge in the following areas:

o Business Industry
. Highway Engineering
o Transport economics
o Surveying
. Accoutrtancy
o Law

In line with the provisions ofthe Kenya Roads Act, 2007, the Chairman and other members of the Board,

other than desigDated public officers, hold office for a period of three (3) years from the date of

appointment and may be eligible for re-appointment for one (l) fiuther term.

The appointment of all members of the Board as first coDstituted and at every change in membership is

by notice published in the Kenya Gazette.

The Director General is appointed by the Board in consultation with the Cabinet Secretary in charge of

Roads following a competitive recruitment process.

New Directors are provided with extensive materials on the Authority and its operations, the procedures

relating to the Board and its Committees and their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Induction of

all new Directors is guided by the Board Induction Plan for new Directors.

The primary function ofthe Board of Directors' (the Board) is to provide effective strategic leadership

and direction to enhance the long-term value of the Authority to its stakeholders. The Board has the
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overall responsibility for overseeing the development and implementation of the shategic plan,

performance objective, financial plarx, annual budget, key operation initiatives, financial performance

reviews and corporate govemance practices. They are also responsible for instilling the appropriate

culture, value and behaviour throughout the organization. The Board is therefore committed to

maintaining very high standards ofcorporate govemance and ethical conduct.

The Board has established four (4) Committees from among its Members to assist in the execution of
its responsibilities. These are the Finance, Strategy and Risk Committee, the Board Audit and

Govemance Committee, the Human Resource and General Purpose Committee and the Technical,

Procurement and Disposal Oversight Committee. Each of these Committees operates pursuant to

Terms of Reference delegated to them by the Board. The Board and each Commiftee have

scheduled meetings held in every quarter of the Financial Year. The Chairman of each Committee

regularly reports to the full Board on the Committee's deliberations at quarterly meetings ofthe Board.

Board Meetings held during the Fiuancial Year and individual attendance ofthe same by the
Director's is shown in.,lzne.r f attached.

A schedulc ofindividual board members and their position are as shown below;

S. No. BOARDMEETING
hII,IMBER

AT'TENDANCE/ABSENT WITH APLOGY

I l57th All members were present
2 l58th Mr. George Wanjau was absent
3 l59th Mr. Georqe au was absent
4 t60th Ms. Brenda Mayabi and

Gathogo were absentMr. Charles
5 l6lst All members were present

6 l62nd All members were present

7 l53rd Ms. Brenda Mayabi was absent
8 154th Mr. Charles Gathogo was absent
9 l55th All members were present
l0 l66th All members were present
11 l67th Ms. Brenda Mayabi was absent

No. Name of Director Borrd Position
Ms. Winfiida Neumi
Eng. Nicholas Musuni Member (Chair- TPDO)
FCPA Julius Mwatu Member (Chair- FSR)
Ms. Brenda Mayabi Member (Chair- AGC)
Mr. Charles Gathogo Member (Chair- HRGP)
Mr. Protus Siget Member
Mr. Martin Eshiwani Membbr
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Succession Planning
The Authority recognizes that succession planning fonns an integral part of the Authority Human

Resource Strategy and ensures the presence of a 'tatent pipeline' that guarantees continuity ofbusiness
in the event that key persons exit the Authority. It allows for the selection and preparation of individuals

to ascend to the next level in the organization tkough appropriate Human Resource Intervention.

Succession Planning on the Board is implemented by ensuring that the Parent Ministry is informed six
(6) months prior to the expiry ofthe term of any of the Directors, for appointrnent, to ensure the Board

is always fully constituted.

Board Charter

The Authority maintains a Board charter that is a guide for Dtectors of the Kenya National
Highways Authority (KeNHA) when executing their mandate. It expounds and sets out the Directors'

collective and individual powers, rights, duties, obligations, responsibilities and liabilities.

The Chaner enshrines the requirements of good Corporate Govemance applicable to the Authority that

meeB the requirements of the enabling legislation and the Code of Governance for State Corporations

(Mwongozo). It sewes to facilitate and promote effective Govemance that is responsible and responsive

to the Govemment's policies and guidelines on State Corporations.

It also provides a framework through which the Board carries out its statutory mandate ilr compliance

with the intemational principles of corporate govemance, Laws, Regulations and Policies of state

corporations.

Induction and Tmining of the Board
The Authority ensures that the Board's capacity is continually built through trainings and workshops

and encourages Board Members to be up to date with continuous Professional Development in their

respective professional bodies. The Authority further prepares and implcments an annual Board Training

Plan to ensure capacity building ofthe Board as regards their needs.

An induction process is undertaken for all new Board Members to familiarize themselves with their role

as Directors and acquaint themselves with KeNHA's mission, vision, core values, mandate, strategic

direction, code of conduct and ethics, best Corporate Governance practices and approved policies and

procedures.

The Chairperson of the Board spearheads this process in line with the Induction for New Directors

Programme to ensure that new Board Members are inducted according to the induction progtamme.
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Borrd end Member Performance

Thc Board undertakes an annual Board Self Evaluation excrcise facilitatcd by the State Corporations

Advisory Committee (SCAC) that enables thc Board evaluate the Pcrformancc of the full Board, the

individual Members, thc Director General and the Corporation Secretary.

Subsequent to the Self Evaluation the Board prepares a Board Performance Imptovement Plan that

cnable the Board stategize and implement measures to enhance its performaace in areas requiring

improved performance.

Board Remuneration

Board Remuneration by the Authority is guided by the relevant statutory Guidelines from thc State

Corporations Advisory Qemmitss (SCAC) and Circulars issued from time to time by SCAC. The

Authority endeavours to remunerate the Board members fairly, cthically and responsibly.

Conflict of Inter€st

Board Membcrs declare any real or pcrccived conflict of interest with the organization upon appointment

to the Board and any that may subsequently arise, through thc Conflict of Interest Rcgister that is signed

by the Board Members at every meeting.

Governance Audit

The Board subjccts the Authority to an annual Govemancc Audit ovcrsecr by the Authority's Intemal

Audit Futrction. Thc Govemance Audit covers the areas of, Leadership atrd Strategic Mauagemcnt,

Transparency and disclosure, Compliance with Laws and Regulations, Communication with

stakeholdcrs, Board Independcnce and Governance and Board systems and proccdures.
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8. Management Discussion and Analysis

Mandete
To develop and manage quality and adequate national trunk roads through innovation and optimal
utilization of resources for sustainable development.

SECTIONA

The En{ty's Qperstionsl Performance

Road Maintenance
The Authority is undertaking numerous road maintenance projects on our entire road network as

summarized in the table below.

No. Projcct Activity Targeted
Output0ane Km)

Acturl
OutDut0ane Km)

Source of Funding

I Periodic
maintenance 276 355

Road Maintenancc Levy
Fund

2 Routine
maintenance 6,108 6,912

Road Maintenancc Levy
Fund

3 Performance Based
Con6acts 9,198 9,219

Road Maintenance lrvy
Fund

Total 15,582 16,486

Development & Rehabilitation Projects

The Authority is implementing a number of development projects across the country on behalf of the

Govemment. A number of these projecs are co-funded with the govemment's Developmcnt Partners

which include the Intemational Development Association (IDA), African Development Bank (AIDB),

Export Import (EXIM) Bank and Japanese Intemational Co-operation (JICA.

No. Current strtus No. of
Droiects

Value ofCotrtract Suos
in Kshs. Mlllions

I Fully tunded by GoK Completed 2 6,588

Substantially complcle ) 13,726

On-Going l0 50,919

Under Procurement 7 33,5 r 6

Sub-totrl 2t 1lM,749

2 Jointly funded by

GoK & IDA (

EARTTDFP)

Completed 2 l 1,961

Substantially complete I 6,782

On-Going J 22,t2t

Sub-totrl 6 40,864

No. Current status No. of

projects

Vslue of Contrect

Sums in Kshs. Millions
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3 Jointly funded by

GoK & IDA (KTSSP)

Completed 4 2t,934

Substantially complete 2 10,951

On-Going 3 20,664

Sub-totel 9 s3,549

4 Jointly funded by

GoK&AfDB

Completed

Substantially complete 2 20,358

On-Going 5 32,7s8

Under Procurcment 1

Sub-totd 8 53,116

5 Jointly fimded by

GoK & EXIM Bank

of China

Substantially complete I 21,546

On-Going I t7,662

Sub-total 2 39,20E

6 Jointly fuuded by

GoK & JICA

Substantially complete I 4 808

On-Going 24,236

Sub-totrl 2 29,044

7 Jointly funded by

GoK & TMEA

On-Going 3,576

Sub-total 1 3,576

8 Jointly fimded by

GoK & EIB

In contracting process I 10,339

Srb-total I 10,339

GRAND TOTA.L 334,445

SECTION B
i Entity's compliance with statutory requirements

The Authority has complied with all statutory requirements which include: -
I ) Accurate and timely remittance of monthly;

i. National Hospital Insurance Fund contributions,
ii. National Social Security Fund conaibutions,
iii. Pay As You Eam recoveries
iv. Withholding Tax
v. Value Added Tax
vi. Training Levy

2) Prompt payment of vendors subject to budget and liquidity
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SECTIONC
key Frojects and-Investment Decisions the Entity is Implementing

I The Authority is imptementing projects using funds from Development parbrers and the Govemment
of Kenya as summaized in Appendix II.

SECTION I)

The Key Corporate Risk ProIiIe

Status Report on Key Corporate Risk Profrle for KeNHA as at 306 June 2023
The overall risk profile as at 3O,h lune 2023 remained largely unchanged for five key corporate risks

with the exception of three key risks whose risk score reduced in the course ofthe year undcr review.

The risks whose scores have reduced are people risks, reputational risks, and corporate culture risks.

The risks which are expected to reduce in the course of Fy 202312024 due to cunent ongoiDg

interventions include business continuity management, data management and cyber security risks and

corporate culture risks.

Contract and project management rislc as well as budgetary conskaints remain the most critical risks

facing the Authority. with delays in exchequer releases, a number of contractors slowed down or

stoPped works and submitted claims for delayed payments, further exacerbating the chaltenges. ?a6le 1

andJigure I show risk trend analysis for the three (3) months. The detailed mitigation measurcs for the

key corporate risl$ is as stated tn appendi.x-l .

Table 1: Key Corporate Risk Trend Analysis

Gross Risk Score

Risk Sept 2022 tan 2023 June 2023

Contract and project management 25 ?5 23

Business continuity management 20 20 20

People risk !7 .5 77 .S 15

Reputational risk 20 17 .S 15

Corporate culture z0 20 17.5

Data management and cyber security 20 20 20

Public private partnerships 20 20 20

Road asset management 20 \7 .5 20
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Gross Risk Score

Rlsk Sept 2022 Jan 2023 June 2023

Budgetary constraints 25 25 75

Flgure 1: Key Corporate Rlsk Trend Analysis

Figure 1: Key Corporrte Risk Tretrd Analysis
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9. Summary Key Corporate Risks for FY 202212023

1 Contract and

Project
Management
Risks

l. Slow response to contractual

issues

2. lnadequate enforcement of
contractual obligations

3. lndecisiveness in contractual

matters

4. Inadequate capacity in
contract maDagement
5. Piecemeal site availability
for works.
6. Gaps in some conEact
documents.
7. Gaps in progress reporting
documents.

8. Iaadequate capacity by
consultant or contractor to
undertake consultancy or works

L Ensure enforcement of
contractual obligations as

appropriate

2. Make decisions on contractual
matters as appropriate and timely
within stipulated regulated
durations

3. Continually build capacity
within KeNHA on Project and
Conhact management.

4. Ensure acquisition of road
corridors including right of way
before commencement of works.
5. Review Progress Reporting to
capture more feasible and critical
issues requted for decision
making.

6. RACM has improved contract
documents to eDsure that
contractors who perform dismally
for 3 consecutive months are
charged liquidated damaged
and/or the contact terminated-

7. On a quarterly basis,
comprehensive project risk
reports and their teatment are
included in the progress reports
for development proj ects.

2 Business

Continuity
Management
Risks

l. Crurent paudemic and

outbreak of variants as well
as novel diseases

2. Exceptional weather and
ground conditions

3. Insecurity caused by inter-
clan conflicts, bandits and
terrorists during road
construction

4. Man-made or natural
disaster that may disrupt

l. Continual enforcement of
pandemic protocols

2. Irnplement business
continuity plans

3. Develop aud implement
disaster preparedness plans
as required for critical
functions

4. Enhance budgetary
provisions on Framework

hcr lli'.1. \r'r.rr l{irk I)r'ir elr \r,rocirrrr.rl llirl.s lirolttl llcsJlorrrc
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t
normal operations at the
Authority.

contracts to effectively
address emergencies such as

road-cuts.

5. Each region has a

framework contract of Ksh.
50 million to address

emergencies expeditiously
6. Precertification audit for
ISO 27001 ISMS is
scheduled in luly 2023
7. The ERM &BPR will
develop an enterprise-wide
BCM and Disaster recovery
policy this financial year

3 People Risk l. Pressure to engage more
staff on contract terms due
to insufficient human
resoluce.

2. StaffAttrition

3. Integrity ofstaff

4. Demotivatedworkforce

l. Regular departrnental
meetings and town hall meetings
with staff to commuDicate
expectations, track performance
and address concems and
challenges.
2. Review staffrng needs for the
Authority and address critical
gaps though recruitment
3. Undertake job evaluation
4. Train staff annually to
provide critical soft and technical
skills
5. The health and safety
Committee works closely with
Directorate of Occupational
Safety and Health to continually
enhance safery of staff
6. Staff in common cadre were
promoted and this has improved
staffmorale.
7. HRM intends to advertise and
recruit staff December 2023

4 Reputation Risk I. Inadequate information
in media (especially social
media)
2. Disgmntled
stakeholders, both external
and internal

l. Regularly monitor
stakeholder expectations.

2. Proactively address
stakeholder expectations
through sensitization,
involvement and appropriate

cinformation sharin

Ncr Ilirli .\r'ea llirL l)r'ir r:rs,t -\ssociutcrl Ilisl.r Ilro:ttl llcsllorrse
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3. Inadequate media
management

4. lnadequate responses to
negative media reports

3. Media management

4. Manage information
within the Authority

5. Engage skilled staff to
monitor and address issues
raised on social media
6. Promote environmental
conservation and
management
7. Enhance social
safeguards in projects
8. The Authority procured a
firm to facilitate brand
management, social media
engagement and media
monitoring.

9. Approximately 53,000
seedlings were planted in FY
2022t2023.

5 Corporate Culh[e
Risks

l. Staff do not understand or
know the core values ofthe
Authority

2. Staff do not understand or
know how their role
contributes to the overall
vision of the Authority

3. Lack of clearly defined
corporate culture in the
Authority

l. Define corporate culture for
the Authority.

2. Sensitize staff on the
reviewed vision, mandate and
core values of the Authority.

3. Review existing Code of
Conduct to ensure it takes
into account the core values
of KeNlIA. Have staffto sip
off that they have read the
Code of Conduct and will
abide by its requirements.

4. Promote ethical conduct by
undertaking corruption
perception survey and
conducting integrity Audit.

Current status
5. The Research and Innovation

department has set up a

central knowledge
repository/ digital library on
SharePoint to

htr llirl, \r'r'rr l{irl. l)r'ir t.r'r \rror'irrtcrl llirl.r llt rtittl llrrporrrr,
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a
knowledge sharing and
leaming

6. The department has also set
up an innovation portal where
staff can upload innovative
ideas. The l't innovation and
knowledge sharing
conference is scheduled for
276 and,28th lvly 2023

6 Data Management
Cyber Security
Risk

1. Lack of centralized and
comprehensive data
management framework

2. Data security risks, with
information falling into the
hands of unauthorized persons

3. Data breaches - unintentional
release of secure information

4. Weak password management
practices, software piracy,
malware and lack of knowledge
on IT related operations making
staff susceptible to cyber crimes

For data management
l. Develop data management

framework for the Authority and
sensitize staff on its requirements

2. Continue with Automation of
intemal business processes through
ERP

3. Operationalize Electronic
Document Management System

For cyber security
4. Sensitization of staffon cyber

security policy and
cybercrime Act.

5. lmplementation of firewalls
and security monitoring tools

6. Use of genuine updated
antivirus

7. Use ofgenuine software

8. Software updates and patch
management

9. Implement business continuity
plan and backup restoration plan /
infrastruchrre

10. PRC has developed a draft data
management framework (policy
and manual) scheduled for
presentation to management in
July 2023.

I l. A precertification audit is
scheduled for July 2023 to
ascertain KeNHA's readiness to
be ISO 27001 certified.

htr l{isli.\rea llisli I)r'ir ers/ .\ssocirrtetl l{islis llrortl Ilrsllorr:c
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7 PPP Risks l. Complexity of the PPP
projects. For instance,
conEachral relationships
between parties in the
project. A small number of
KeNHA Staff trained in
handling PPP transactions

2. Optimism bias on expected
revenue stieams at operation
with a potential of revenue
streams below expectation
during operation.
3. Public view tolling as triple
taxation resulting in emerging
consumer protection pressure
groups to oppose the venture.
4. Need for due diligence on
proposed private partners to
establish their capacity to
deliver as indicated.

l. Train more staffon PPP in all
relevant areas namely Legal,
Supply Chain, Finance,
Engineering, Communication
and Risk).
2. Ensure continuous public
engagement and dissemination of
information to manage and
minimize opposition against the
PPP projects.
3. Continually monitor the
respective contractor's capability
to ensure that remedial action is
taken immediately where a gap is
noticed.

4. The Nairobi Expressway is
now in use. A decision is awaited
from govemment on
concessioning of Nairobi - Mau
summit road.

8 Road Asset
Management
Risk

l. Vandalism of road furniture
due to availability of market for
materials
2. Overloading by transporters
especially those pllng routes
manned by Virtual Weighing

Stations
3. Road reserve and camp
encroacbnent

Emerging issues
4. Expected increase in use of
electric vehicles which may
result in reduction of RMLF
5. Change of law resulting in
reduction of percentage of
RMLF to be given to Audrority
for maintenance of roads-

l. Improve highway patrols
through ALEHU and PBCs

2. Creale awareness among
stakeholders on the need to
protect road assets
3. Secure road camps and
highway reserves
4. Conduct Research with a

view to developing alternative
materials for road fumitrue to
address the risk of vandalism.

5. Enhance budget line to cater
for road reserve and camp
protection to include road reserve

mapping

6. Ensure road reserves are
largely secured prior to award of
works contracts

7. The Govemment lifted the
ban on scrap metal dealing in
May 2022. Only licensed dealers,

htr llirl' \r r.:r llirk I)r'ir t,r's \rror.irrterl l{irl,r l3r olrtl llcsltorrst
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a
millers and smelters are allowed
to oPerate upon payment of
license fees.

9 Budget
Constraints

l. Commencement of many
projects which end up straining
the limited Financial Capacity.

2. Increasing Costs of acquisition
for right of way and
compensations for Project
Affected Persons affectiOng
cash flow for work

3. Lack of alternative revenue
streams apart from the
Exchequer

4. Delayed Exchequer Releases

5. Unexpected budgetary cuts after
approval of budges

6. Commencement of projects with
encumbrances within the project
corridor resulting in increased
costs

7. Delayed payments on existing
lPCs causing delays in
implementation and resulting in
Interest on delayed payments

Emerging issues
8. Expected increase in use of

electric vehicles which may
result in reduction of RMLF

9. Change of law resulting in
reduction of percentage of
RMLF to be given to Authority
for maintenance of roads.

10. Centralization of collection of
AIA by government could
further expose the Audrority if
remittances are delayed.

l. Explore and exploit viable
alternatiie sources of revenue
2. Continue to engage the
National Treasury on budgetary
requirements and release of
resources to settle pending bills
3. Review work plan in line with
budgetary reduction where
applicable.
4. Undertake manageable
number of projects to minimize
delays in payments and accrual of
interest on delayed payments

5. Enhance forward planning by
ensuring right of way is secured
before commencement of project

6. In May 2023, KeNHA
advertised for a consultancy to
facilitate preparation of a strategy
for on-source resource revenue.

llroittl l{r',';tottrt'Ker llisk .\re:r llisli l)rir crs/ ,\ssrtcillctl llislis
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l0 Political Risk l. Rising worldwide inllation
2. Unemployed youth who may

become more susceptible to
participating in protests and
demonstrations; vandalizing
road furnitr:ue and damaging
road inftastructure.

3. Economic inequalities that are
exacerbated by infl ation

4. Political disputes and
disagreements.

5. Inadequate stakeholder

engagement

1. Lrcreased stakeholder
engagement and sensitization to
create awareness on importance
of protecting road infrastructure.

2. Enhancement of security by
coordination with law
enforcement agencies during
times ofunrest.

3. Stringeut consequences on
destruction of public property.

llr oir(l ll!rJ)on\(lr,er llisl. \r t,rr llirli I)r.ir er.r \rrocirrtetl Ilislir
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SECTION E

ihi""l"l 
""""".r 

ln stltutory/financlal obligadons

' 
Th" Authority has a large stock of pending development bills amounting to Kshs. 78.1 billion. This is '

made up ofpayment certificates and fee notes for certified development works and outstanding dues to ;

i

Project Affected Persons. This resulted from inadequate GOK Development Budget allocations and .

I delayed release ofExchequer funds to the Authority. This has led to accumulation ofinterest on delayed

. payments and other contractual claims. 
,

SECTION F

ffit +.g*orys Flnsnclil Problty an{ Serlouc Governance Issues

The Board of Directors takes overall responsibility for establishing systems of internal con8ol and for
I

, rcviewing and evaluating their effectiveness. The day-to-day responsibility for the implementation of
i these systems and for ongoing monitoring of risk and the effectiveness of controls rests with Senior

Management.

The systems, which have been in place from inception ofthe Authority up to the date of approval of

these financial statements include the following: -

. The Audit, Risk & Governance Committee of the Board provides oversight over the internal

audit work and implementation of both internal and extemal audit recommendations.

. The Risk Management Committee comprising of Senior Management is responsible for

ensuring that controls are in place to identify, evaluate and manage risk.

. Enterprise Risk Management Department documents risks and the responses to them, carry

out risk assessments annually and report to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit,

Risk & Govemance Committee of the Board on effectiveness of risk management.

. Periodic reviews ofperformance and quality conkol in road construction and maintenance are

carried out by the Quality Assurance Section.

. Directorate oflnternal Audit reviews the effectiveness ofthe financial and operational systems

and controls throughout the Authority and reports to the Audit, Risk & Govemance

Committee.

xxxv



Kenya Nadonal Highways Authority
Annual Report and Finrncirl Strtements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

. Extemal Auditors comprising the Offibe of the Auditor General, Office of the Intqnal Auditor '

General, Kenya Roads Board and Development Partners review the Authority's finencial

statements and effectiveness of sptems of intemal controls.

The Authority's systems of internal control and corporate governance arrangements in operation

1 
during the quarter werc based on the above institutional erra[gements. The intemal control sJctems

: are desiSned to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve corporate objcctivcs or, in

the case of financial.controls, the risk of material misslatement in our financial statemenb.

xxxvl



Kenya National Highways Authority
AnnuaI Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

i. Sustainability strateg/ and profile

The Board of Directors of Kenya National Highways Authority (KeNlIA) understands the Authority's

position as the custodian of the National highways network and the critical role in providing quality

and safe highways for sustainable social and economic devglopment. The Authority has a

rcsponsibility to manage and leverage resources in a way that promotes a healthy and sustainable

cnvironment. This is in line with the Authority's commitment in the customer service charter to adhere

to environmental regulations during the implementation ofprojects to safeguard the environment and

Strategic Plan strategic objective of environmental and social sustainability.

KeNHA's Environmental and Social Safeguards Policy is in line with one of the KeNHA's core value

of equity and integrity and assists KeNHA to comply with Kenya's Constitution 2010 and with the

provisions in the Environmental Management and Coordination Act (EMCA), Cap 387.

The Board of Directors and Management gives a firm commitrnent of supporting and ensuring that

the provisions of this policy are implemented by the Authority and those who work on our behalf as

we strive to attain sustainable development.

tl. EnvironmentalPerformance

Road constructions activities kigger changes to both bio-physical and socio-economic euvironrnents

of the areas construction is taking place. The Authority ensures that Environmental and Social lmpact

Assessments are carried out and required approvals obtained before projects are implemeuted. The

Envtonmental and Social Impact Assessments is a planning tool which predicts, assess, and analyzes

the possible positive and negative environmental and social impacts that are expected during the

construction, operation and decommissioning phases of the project for matragement purposes. The

Authority in FY 202212023 cadedout and submitted to NEMA five Environmental and Social Impact

Assessmeot Studies for 5No.road projects which are in various stages of review process. ln same

breath, three Resettlement Action Plans were prepared and finalized for 3No.road projects to ensure

Potentially affected persons and assets are adequately enumerated for eventual compensation.

Implemeritation of the environmental and social mitigation measures and strategies in the

devclopment projects must be monitored to ensure adequacy and efficiency in the implementation. In
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all on-going constructioD proj ects, the Authority engages the implementation supervision coDsultaDts

who must have in their team Environmentalist and Sociologist to continuously monitor the

implementation of the environmental and social measures in the projects and update the Authority

through monthly and quarterly progess reports. The Authority does monitoring through site meetings,

inspections and statutory audits. In FY 2022/2023, the Authority carried out loNo. Environmental

audits, 9 No. ESMP implementation monitoring, 8No.social audits and 6No.material sites inspection

of on-going road construction projects and made recommendations to the implementation teams for

considerations thus improving sustainability of the projects.

The Authority continue to implement measures to protect the environment, mitigate climate change

and improve the national forest cover through collaboration with Kenya Forest Services and other

stakeholders. ln the reporting period, the Authority with other stakeholders planted 53,674 No.

seedlings cumulatively along the KeNHA roads network, gazetted forests and institutions.

The authority signed a framework for cooperation with Kenya Forest Service (KFS) to jointly partner

to set up a one (l ) million seedling arboretum. KeNHA has allocated KFS Ksh. 20M for model nursery

infrastructural development .The seedlings will be planted in identified degraded arcas and right of

way along the highways.

The Kenya National Highways Authority is putting a focus on making its infrastructure more resilient
to climate change. We have robust and innovative designs and skive to use appropriate materials to
promote resilience to adverse effects caused by climate change and attendant weather stresses.

Conskucted roads that are climate proofed, have improved size ofstructures and culverts to safeguard
investments because of climate change issues. Approximately 768.9 lane km of the climate proofing
done during the reporting period.

As an Authority, we have deliberately converted some of material sites in ASAL to safe water pans

to mitigate impacts of climate change to the local communities.

We have made substantial investrnent in the use of green energy in offices and other installations

across the country. This is aimed at mitigating the impact of climate chaoge.

To enhance the Authority's capacity to adhere to the provisions of Article l0 of the Constitution

through civic education, kaining and sensitization on national values and principles of governance,

TNo.stakeholder engagements were done for seven number projects in where various topical issues
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were discussed. In the same breath, measures to promote inclusivity in running the road projects were

implemented in 4No.road projects through establishment and operationalization of the Grievance

Re&ess Mechanism (GRM) and monitoring the operations of the Grievance Redress Cornmittees

(GRC) in a number of projects.

The Authority has endeavored to allocate resources into prevention ofHIV infections and other non-

communicable diseases within her staff and project footprints. In the reporting period, 3No projects

integrated HfViAIDS and other non-communicable diseases services and communities within the

foogrints of the project and the project staffbenefit tbrough information, u'aining and communication

material provided.

ili) Employee Welfare

The Authority has the following policies in place: The Human Resource Policy and Procedures

Manual, Career Guidelines Manual, Organization Structure, Grading and Establishment Manual. The

Human Resource and Procedures Manual and Intemship Policy ouideline provide steps in

rccruihent Process in the Authority. In addition, it takes into account the gender ratio as a recruitrnent

and development requirement aud implements the same alongside any new wriften provisions,

pideline, directive, ctcular or memo from govemrnent from time to time. The stakeholder

cngagemetrts are taken into account and the policies have been developed to support sewice delivery

coEmitments and obligations of the Authority to its stakeholders. As a practice, the Authority

undertakes the review and improvement of the aforementioned policies as and when necessary but at

lcast every three (3) years so as to be in harmony with legislation and organizational and technological

changes.

The Authority has a staffappraisal system and is in the process ofreviewing the system to align with

a balance Scorecard framework for purposes of objectively addressing the several human resource

dccisions such as promotions, training and development, reward and sanctiou among others.

Maaagcment often undertakes benchmarking with other state ageDcies with intent to improving its

pcrformance management instruments.

The Authority has an Occupational Safety and Health Policy and staff are trained on safety and health

procedures, where they are encowaged to identify equipment or hazardous materials that are of
concem to them. workplaces are inspected from time to time and registered annually by the
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Directorate of Occupational Safety and Health @OSID. In this respect, the Authority has a Health

and Safety Committee which spear heads matters of Health and Safety.

The Govemment has introduced the implementation of Productivity Management (Measurement &
Improvement) vide the performance conEacting for FY 2023/2024 to aid in productivity and

performance management in the state agencies. In this regard, the Authority is in the process of
developing a Productivity Matrix with the help of Commission for Salaries and Remgneration

Commission (SRC).

iv) Market place practices-

a) & b) Responsible competition practice & Supply chain & Supplier Relations

The Authority has embraced the cultue of competitiveness in procurement processes in pursuit of
achievement for value for money and creation of faimess and transparency among various

stakeholders. Adherence to the provisions of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act,2015

and its attendant regulations, KeNHA procurement policies and donor funded guidelines has been a

key contributing factor towards promotion of competition and ensuring competitors are treated fairly.

The Authority undertakes stakeholder and political involvement through pre-bid conferences/pre-

tender site visits/capacity building to enhance effective communication.

Competition is fostered through the use standard tender and quotation docu-ments in procurement of

various goods, works and services. The Public Procurement Regulatory Authority directives and

donor procurement guidelines creates a level plrying ground for the competitors through issuance of

the standard tender documents. To a great extent, the use ofstandardised and clear specifications has

allowed for open competition and promotion of local industry. The Authority has created an

environment that promotes traDsparency and accountability through use of Enterprise Resource

Planning system. This is done through publication of all procurement processes on the Public

Procurement Information Portal @PIP), advertisement of procuement opportunities, conducting due

diligence on successful suppliers/conhactors and handling of complaints. The Authority undertakes

timely communication ofresults ofprocurement processes through effective debriefing mechanisms.

The law further allows aggrieved bidders to pursue other existing legal mechanisms to ensrue that

their grievances are addressed.
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c) Merketing & Advertisement

The authority practices ethical marketing by committing to open, transparent, responsible, and fair

practices and communicates these values to the public. Further, we iommit to implement our projects

while upholding ethical slandards to project staff, communities that benefit and those that are affected

by our projects.

The Authority continuously observes the principles of:

l. Fairness: Establishing faimess in our decision-making, offering equitable wages, and

sustainable development.

2. Eonesty: A cornerstone ofethical marketing is honesty. The Authority, while pubticizing

projects and activities strive to provide factual and unexaggerated information about the

fi.ructionality and impact ofour activities and provide full disclosure when required to.

3. Responsibility: KeNHA emphasizes her responsibility by providing a well-firnctioning

highway network at all times, support social causes, give back to communities, teat
employees with respect, and protecting the environment through sustainable practices.

The Authority conducted a Customer Satisfaction suwey in 2019 and has been implementing

recommendations made by the public as we implement projects.

4. Transparency: We practice tsansparency by publishing our activities and being open to the

public about our operations. Not only do we provide regular reports to relevant oversight

agencies, but continuously share information through the media, publications, website and

social media accounts.

d) Product stewardship

l. The Authority has established a hotline through which citizens can share complaint or

feedback.

2. There is an established complaints handling mechanism, to ensure customers complaints

are responded to within 21 Days as stipulated in our Customer Service Charter and by

the Commission on Arlministrative Justice.

3 . The Authority has opened a confidential email for reporting integrity related issues which

s: ln enha.co.ke. Citizens who act as whistle blowers are assured of utrnost

confidentiality ard due care while handling the cases as stipulated in the Anti-
Corruption atrd Whistle blower policies.

4. The Authority has a robust Stakeholder Engagement plan for every project to ensure that

the interests and rights ofstakeholders are factored into every major project. In the year
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under review, we carried out elaborate stakeholder engagement on Nairobi-Nakuru-

Mau Summit PPP Project, Hom of Africa Road Project, and Weighbridge Management.

5. At the commencement of every project, the Authority obtains statutory clearances from

National Environmental Management Authority (NEMA) as well as the Occupational

Health and Safety Authority.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Kenya National Highways Authority continues to uphold corporate citizenship by ensuring social

accountability to all stakeholders and the public. The Authority continues to be conscious of the

impact realized on all aspects ofsociety, including economic, social, and environmental during project

implementation.

Through the Corporate Social Investrnent (CSI) Committee, we have been able to identifu initiatives,

along our road projects, that help improve the Iivelihoods ofsurrounding communities. The Authority

remains committed as a responsible corporate citizen and prioritizes mitigation measures on the

impact of project implementation.

CSI Statement FY z 2022-2023

Since inception in 2009, the Kenya National Highways Authority (KeNHA) has embodied the true

spirit of Corporate Social Investment (CSI). We are committed to the highest standards of corporate

citizenship. Our culture and values are rooted in service, integrity, and taking personal responsibility

for our actions, outcomes, and reputation.

As a leading Highways Authority, we connect communities with business as well as employment

opportunities. We make a difference in areas along our project routes. Given the nationwide span of

our projects, we recognize the wide reach of our products, service delivery, and our public

accountability.

We have continued to be conscious of the kind of impact the Authority is having on all aspects of
society, including economic, social, and environmental issues in all our project implementation

cycles.

Through the CSI Committee, as an Authority we have been able to identifu and implement initiatives

along our road projects that help improve the livelihoods of communities in those routes.
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The Authority remains committed as a responsible corporate citizen by prioritizing mitigation

measures on the impact of her activities on the environment, communities, employees, and

stakeholders.

CSI Initlatives undertaken

The commitment of the Authority to being a responsible corporate citizen is demonstrated through

various initiatives that aim at overall well-being ofbeneficiary communities along project routes.

These initiatives mainly focus on promoting sustainable livelihoods and improving access to social

amenities though interventions that improve outcomes on Education, Health, Sanitation,

Environmental Consewation, Security, as well as Youth and Women Empowerment.

During the year under review, the Authority undertook several CSI activities. These include

construction of dormitories, levelling of school playgrounds, drilling of boreholes, upgrading a

dispensary, construction of police stations, and sponsorship of various community activities as

tabulated in the table below.

CSI initiatives undertaken within projects during the FY:2022-2023

No. Project Name CSI intervention/Initiative
Chemelil-Kipsitet kvelling of school pitch at God-Abuoro Secondary

School
Dualling of Kenol -
Sagana

Donation of 5.4million to hospital

Dualling of Sagana -
Marua

Ground layout of the Special School Autism Unit aud
dormitories at Ng'aru girls

Isebania-Kisii Lot I Levelling ofplaygrounds almost in every school along the
project area.

Jarnes Gichuru-Rironi Construction of dormitory at Nairobi School
Marsabit-Segel ofa borehole at Se
Mau Mau Road Project
Irt lA

Levelling ofschool playgrounds in various schools i.e.
Karuro Primary School, Gatamaiyo Secondary School,
Githi P Schoo Kamahindu

Mau Mau Road Project
Lot 1B

Upgrading of Gachika Dispensary

Mau Mau Road Project
lat2

Levelling of school ground

Mombasa - Kwa Jomvu
I,ot I

Improvements at Makupa police station , Mikindani market
roadside ameni

MPARD2 Mwache-
Tsunza-Mteza

Construction of two Police Stations in Tsunza

IrIIII
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Sponsorships of activities during the FYz 2022-2023

Year/Month Activity Amount
2022
July Mater heat run 450,000
October Association of Women Accountants Dinner 90,000
November East Africa PR week 500,000
November Amual Intemational Institute of Engineers

conference
November Nation Media KUSI ideas festival 500,000
November Annual Editors Convention, 2022 s00,000
December Association of Consulting Engineers annual Gala

Dinner
45,000

2023
March Sponsorship of the comorate Watch Magazine 300,000
March Borehole Drilling for Dorothea rescue centre 200,000
April Mutuine Half marathon 100,000
Mav Sponsorship to fund pharmaceutical refrigerator 594,000
June Mater heart run 200,000
June Engineering Parherchip Convention s00,000
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11. Report ofthe Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2023, which show the state of the I uthoity's affals.

l) Principal activities

The principal activities ofthe Authority are to manage, develop, rehabilitate, and maintain national

roads.

lD Results

Tbe results ofthe Entity for the year ended June30,2023, are set out on page I

lll) Directors

The members ofthe Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on pages viii, ix and x.

During the year Eng. Carey O. Orege, CBS retired from the Board ofDirectors on 256 August 2022,

Mr. George Wanjau retired from the Board of Directors on 196 !^nuary 2023 and Eng. Wangai

Ndirangu, MIEK, RCE retired from the Board of Directors on 22nd July 2022. Consequently Mr.

Martin Eshiwani was appointed to the Board of Directors on 23d Mar ch2023.

iv) Surplus remisslon

The Authority did not realise any disributable surplus during the year ended 30d June, 2023 and

hcace there was no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.

v) Audltors

Thc Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Authority's financial statements for

thc ycar eaded 30h June 2023 in accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the

Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Eng. Kungu Nd
DIRECTORGENERAL & SECRETARY TO TEE BOARD
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12. Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Section 81 of the Public Finance Managemert Act, 2012 and (section 14 of the State Corporations

lct, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect ofthe Authority, which give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Authority at the end of the financial yearlperiod and the

operating results ofthe Authority for that yearlperiod. The Directors are also required to ensue that

the Authority keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Authority. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

Authority.

The Directors are responsible for ttre preparation and presentation of the Authority's financial

statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of affats ofthe Authority for and as at the end

ofthe period ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i)Maintaining adequate financial

management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting

period; (ii)Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of the entity; (iii)Designing, implementing and maintaining intemal

controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements, and ensuring that

they are free from material misstatements, whether due to enor or fraud; (iv)Safeguarding the assets

of the Authority; (v)selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi)Making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Authority's financial statements, which have been prepared

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,

in conforrnity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting standards (IPSAS), and in the manner

required by the PFM Act, 2012 afi the State Corporations Act .The Directors are of the opinion that

the Authority's financial statements give a tue and fair view of the state of Authority's transactions

during the period ended June 30, 2023, and ofthe Authority's financial position as at that date.

The Directors further confirms the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

Authority, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority's financial statemens as

well as the adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that ttre Authority will not remain a going

concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA NATIONAL H]GHWAYS
AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lar,vfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines, and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent, and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management, and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient, and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management, and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya National Highways
Authority set out on pages 1 to 48, which comprise of the statement of financial position
as at 30 June, 2023, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
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assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting poricies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. lhave obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenya National Highways Authority as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows forthe yearthen ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management 4c1,2012 and the Kenya Roads Act, 2007.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lrregular Board Expenses

The statement of financial performance reflects Board expenses amount of
Kshs.55,969,000 which, as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements includes
expenditure in respect of ministerial and other official functions amounting to
Kshs.7,381 ,293. Review of supporting documents revealed that the expenditure related
to travel expenses by the Principal Secretary and Cabinet Secretary for State Department
for Roads and other ministerial staff while on official site visits of the Authority's road
projects. However, no plausible explanation was provided why the State Department for
Transport functions were being funded from the Authority and charged to Board expenses
while the State Department has a travel and subsistence allowance vote.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of Board expenses amounts of Kshs.55,969,000 could
not be confirmed.

2. Lack of Land Ownership Documents

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.726,602,109,784 in respect
of property, plant and equipment which, as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial
statements includes a balance of Kshs.268,360,000 in respect of land assets. However,
it was noted that some properties occupied by the Authority are owned exclusively or
jointly with other road Authorities but are not formally vested to KeNHA as tabulated
below:

No. Status No. of Stations
1 Camps exclusively owned by KeNHA 25
2 Camps owned jointly (KeNHA, KURA and KeRRA) 136
3 Camps owned jointly (KeNHA and KeRRA) 14
4 Camps owned jointly (KeNHA and KURA) 120

The value and ownership status of the above pieces of land could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, the accuraty and completeness of assets balance of
Kshs.726,602,109,784 could not be confirmed.
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The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards of Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Ke,rya National Highways Authority
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. Budgetary Gontrol and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual receipts on a comparable basis amounts of Kshs.38,046,956,578 and
Kshs.29,020,023,427, respectively resulting in an under-funding of Kshs.9,026,933,151
or 24o/o of the budget. Similarly, the Authority expended an amount of
Kshs.31,345,938,487 against an approved budget of Kshs.36,338,362,966 resulting in an
under-expenditure of Kshs.4,992,424,479 or 14o/o of the budget. Further, the Authority
expended Kshs. Nil against capital expenditure budget of Kshs.241,982,376 resulting to
under expenditure of Kshs.241 ,982,376 or 100% of the budget.

The underfunding and under-expenditure affected the planned activities and has
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

2. ContingentLiabilities

I draw your attention to Note 34 to the financial statements which reflects an amount of
Kshs.22,136,767,733 in respect of Contingent liabilities relating to court cases against the
Authority, unclaimed interest on works, land acquisitions, unresolved contractual claims,
estimated legal fees and interest awards. Although, in the opinion of the Management,
the Authority is likely to obtain favorable judgements in many of the cases, the Authority's
operations would be adversely affected if any of the liabilities was to crystallize.

My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year lssues

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, the issues have not been discussed by the Public Audit
Committee and therefore remain unresolved.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya National Highways Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS .IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Avoidable Expenditure

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.84,073,202,210 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. The balance
increased by Kshs.3,907,619,872 from the previous year balance of
Kshs.80,165,582,338. The increase represented 11Yo ol the final budgeted operating
expenditure of Kshs.36,338,362,996 which was higher than the 2% prescribed in Section
94(1)(b) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012. Further, review of trade and other
payables records revealed accumulated interest on delayed payments of
Kshs.438,259,720 that could have been avoided.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and effective use public
resources could not be confirmed.

2. Long Outstanding Refundable Deposits

The statement of financial position reflects refundable deposits from customers balance
of Kshs.228,934,138 which as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements includes,
long outstanding balances totalling Kshs.58,068,272 dating back to 201012011 financial
year. No plausible explanation was given why the deposits had not been surrendered to
the Consolidated Fund as provided by Regulation 106 of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015 that states that unless otherwise exempted by
an Act of Parliament, any deposit which has remained unclaimed for 5 years may, with
the approval of the Cabinet Secretary, be paid into Consolidated Fund and thereafter the
Accountant-General may refund the deposit to any person entitled thereto, if he or she is
satisfied that the claim is authentic.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the regulations.

3. Anomalies Noted During Projects lnspection

Physical inspection on projects carried in the month of July,2023 revealed delayed works
on various projects in different regions as highlighted below:

i) Construction of Dhogoye Bridge and Approach Roads on Kisian-Usenge-
Osieko (Bl 0) Road (KeNHA/RD/HP&D/RP 3287 l2021l

The Authority awardeo a contract No.KeNHA/RD/HP&D/RP 328712021to two companies
in a joint venture at a contract sum of Kshs.1,999,349,505 for a period of 18 months

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya National Highways Authority for the year ended i0 June, 2023
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effective 21 June, 2021. However, review of the monthly progress report of June,2023
revealed that the contractors have achieved only 21To overall works completion compared
to time elapsed ol 24o/o, an indication that works were behind schedule. Further, records
reviewed revealed that only one certificate of Kshs.83,862,151 .83 had been raised and
part payment of Kshs.74,478,949 or 897o had been paid. Management explained that the
slow work progress was due to non-payment of advance payment requested by the
contractors of Kshs.199,934,950.60 vide IPC 1 out of which an amount of
Kshs.35,000,000 had been paid. However, review of the contract Clause 60.12 of the
conditions of the contract revealed that it was not mandatory for employer to pay the
advance amount to the contractor and therefore it was not enough justification for slow
work progress.

ln the circumstances, the project risks incurring additional funds due to cost escalation.
ln addition, delay in implementation of the project has impacted negatively on service
delivery to the public.

ii) Mau Mau Road Lot ll

The contract was awarded to a Company at a contract sum of Kshs.4,519,821 ,279 for 36
months from 20 February, 2020 but was revised to 47 months. Mau Mau Road Lot lll was
implemented in Nyeri County. A letter Ref: KeNHA/081CV81212023 dated 10 May,2023
from Director General to the contractor revealed that the contractor was awarded
extension of time for a further period of three hundred and thirty-seven (337) days.
However, physical inspection carried out in the month of July, 2023 revealed that the
amount certified to date (up to IPC 12) which had been fully settled was an amount of
Kshs.1,775,574,791 and stood at 39.28o/o of the contract sum. The inspection revealed
that spur roads works were at the initial stages and behind schedule despite the revised
completion date of 18 February,2024.

Further, the main road drainage banks had not been reinforced by stone pitching and
loose soil on the drainage sides were falling down inside the drainage channels on several
sections of the road. Delayed maintenance/repair works may result to further deterioration
of the defects attracting huge repair costs.

ln the circumstances, effectiveness and efficiency in use of public resources could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenyo National Highways Aulhorityfor the yeqr ended 30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
ANDGOVERNANCE I I

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on lhe audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management, and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services, and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors
process, reviewing the
relevant legislative and
systems are in place to
and risk management,
environment.

is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control

Report o/ the Auditor-General on Keryta National Highways Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error orfraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

tl

a
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

o Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCP , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

27 March,2O24

tl
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Report and Financial Strtements
for the year ended June 30, 2023.

14. Statement ofFinancial Performance for the year ended 30e June 2023

The notes set out on pages 8 to 47 form an integral part ofthese Financial Statements.

cial Statements set out on pages I to 7 w on behalf ofthe Board of Directors by:

CPA. e Kera CPA James Bowen En Kungu gu
Deputy Director (Finance & Accounts)
ICPAK Mcmbcr No. 8279

Director Corporale Services
ICPAK Mcmber No- 7842

Director General
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Date

Ms.Wi

The

Cbairperson of the Board

'"t' dJ'rii"rozt"

Notcs 2022-2023 2021-2022

Ksh3 Kshs

Rcvenuc from oon-crchangc trrmactions
Trarsfcrs from Dcvclopment Budget Gr8nts 6 472,533,624 538,180,368

Lcvies, Fincs and Penslties 7 27,184,9'13,s08 28,937,578,804

27.ts7.s07.132 29.475,759.t72

Ravcnue from exchange trrnsrctions

Rcnt l rcvenue from facilities and equipment 8 4,381,999 1,168,000

Financc income - extcrnal ilvestments 9 964,864,00't 9?t,384,891

Othcr incomc IO t83,2t6,943 t3,7U,829

1,152,462,949 9363t7,720

Totd Rcvcnue 29,009p70,081 30,412,V'6,t92

Erpenres

Road Mfitcnancc aod Axlc Load Expcnscs n 2't ,205 ,132,858 24,706,494,795

Use ofgoods and services t2 641.394,t59 s48,883,957

Employcc costs l3 2,01t,037,765 2,051 ,739 ,tU
Board Expenscs t4 55,969,000 't2,t55 ,8t',t

Dcprcciation and amortization cxpensc l5 400.s45,025 2'13 ,697 ,520
Rcpairs and rnaintenancc l6 2t6,4M,657 l'10,373,343

Transfcrs from DevclopEent Budgct GraBts 6 472,s33,624 538,180,368

FinEnce costs l'l 5,797,849 5,623,642

Total €rpenscs 31,015,414,937 28359,148,546
(Xbcr getnr/Qoss*)

GaiD on sale ofasscts l8 4,1t0,t30 16,082,409

Profit on forcign cxchangc translations l9 5,943,2t6 2,s77 36t
Surplu3 before tsx (r,99s,39r,s10) 2,061,588,116

Taxation 20 (330,523,ss0) (2'14,138,055)

Surplur(Dcllclt) for ahe yerr (232s,9r5,060) 1,786,8s0,06r
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15. Statement of Financial Position as at 30th June 2023

ial statements set out on pages I to 7 were s on behalf ofthe Board of Directors by:The. financ

ilr-
CPA,/e hanje Kera
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Notes 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21 17,227.706.426 t3,993,04t.417
Receivables from exchan ge kansachons 22(a) 3,933,414,400 12,562,556.350
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 23 18,310,939,061 21,540,562,776
Inventories 24 12,907,787 9,668.135
Total Current Assets 39,48/,,987,674 48,105,828,678

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equiprnent 25 726.602.109.784 675,448,008,179
Intangible assets 26 233,489,209 183,150,435
Long term receivables fiom exchange hansactions 22b\ 24,250,000 24,250,000
Total Non-Current Assets 726,859,U8,993 675,6ss,408,5r4
Total Assets 766,3U,836,667 723,161,237J92

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchanqe transactions 27 84.073.202.210 80.165.582.338
Retundable deposits from customers 28 228.934.138 195,479,839
Provisions 29 212.837.759 r 82,875,058
Taxation 30 6,597,648 217,457 ,784
Total Current Liabilities 84.521,571,755 80,761,39s,019

Total Liabilities 84.521.571.755 80,75rJ95.019

Net assets 681.U32il.9t2 642999,8/,2,273
Reserves 665.171.075,227 624,0s8,936,678
Accumulated surplus 16,6s2,249,68s 18.940.905.595
Totsl Net Assets and Liabilities 766,344,836,667 723,761.237,292
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16. Strtement of Chrngee ln Net Areeb for the yeer endcd 306 June 2023

Rctrlned ctmlngr Crplt U Dcvclopmert
Grents/Fund

Totrl

XsAs ft ts .Ks&s

At July 1, 2021 I7,154,055,53s 556,170,882,658 s7r324,938,193

s lus for the I,786,850,061 1,786,850,061

Transfers to accumulated surplus

CapitaUDevelopment grants received during the year 67,888,054,020 67,888,054,020

At June 30, 2022 18B40p05,596 624,058,936,678 642,999,842,274

At July 1,2022 1884090s,s95 6u,058936,67E &42,999,U2274
Deficit for thc (2,325,9rs,050) (2,325,915,060)
Transfers to accumulatcd surplus 37,259,149 37,259,t49
CapiaUDcvclopment grants received during the year 4t,112,078,549 41,tt2,078,549

At June 30, 2023 16,652,249,685 665,171,01s227 681,823,264,912
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30th June 2023

2022-2023 2021-2022

Notes Kshs Ksbs
Cash flows from operrting octivities
Receipts

Transfcrs from other Development Bud,{et Grants 6 412.533.624 538.t80.368.00
Lcvics, fiucs, and penalties 7 2'1.384,973,s08 28,93't,578,804

Rcutal Rcvcnuc 8 4,38t,999 I,166,000

Financc incomc 9 964,864,00't 921,3E4,89r
Othcr income l0 I E3.2 t6.943 t3-1U.829
Profit on foreign exchange tramlations l9 5,943,2t6 2,577,36t

Totrl R€ccipts 29,015,9t3,297 30,4r4,654Js3

Pryments

Road Maintenance and Axle Load Expenses ll 27 ,205,732,858 21,706,494,795

Use ofgoods and services t2
647.394.t59 548,883,957.00

Employ€e costs t3 2,0tt,01'1,765 2,053.739.r04

Board Expeoscs l4 s5,969,000 12,15s,817
Rcpairs and maintcnancc r6 216.404.6s7 t10,373,343

Financc cost t7 s,797,849 5,623,642

Taxation 20 330.523.550 2't4.73E.05s

Transfcrs from otller Development Budgct Grants 6 472,533,624 538,180,368

Totd Prymctrts 30,945393,462 28,370,r89,0tr

WorkiDg C8pitrl Adlustments

Dccrcase in currcnt rcccivablcs 't,772,308,350 (7 At4;t87,t49\
Decresse in rade aod othcr payablcs (l,085,117,583) (1,217,512,010)

lncrcasc in loBg tcrm rcccivablcs
500,000.00

lncrcase in Invcntory (3,239,65 r) (2,r 78,5 r4)

Incrcasc io provisions 29,962;t0l 41,@6,327

Totel lflorking Crpitsl Adjustments 6,713,913,817 (85mp71,34O

Transfer to Rcvcnue reserves 37,259,t49

Net cash nows from/(used itr ) opersting rcdvldes 4,821,592,801 (6,s45p06,U4)

Crsh llows from lnvestlng scdvities

Purchasc ofproperty, plant, equipment 8nd int8ngiblc asscts (5 r,608,438,193) (8't ,782383 ,649t

Procccds from salc ofproperry, plant urd equipnrcnt 1 ,562,920 16,359,E43

Dccrcasc iu Dcvclopmcut receivabtes 4,086,43't,1t7 (2,549,388,865)

lncrcasc in Dcvclopmcnt payables 4,815,331,61s 19,603,834,671

Nct crsh Oow3 from /(u*d in)invcsting sctlvilics (42,699,106J4r) (70,71 157r,000)

Cash flows from finsncing sctivities

Procccds from Exchcqucr/DevelopmcDt Psrtncrs 4l,l12,078,549 67,8t8,054,020

Net cssh llows used lD fiDrDcitrg sctiyides 4l,r 12,07t 549 67,tt8,054,020

Net incresse{decreese) iE cash rnd cssh equivrleDts 3.234,665,009 (9369,430,r s4)

Cash and cash cquivalcots at I July 2t 13,993,M t,417 23,362,47 I ,57 I

Cash and carh equlvalents ot 30 June 2t t1,227,706,426 I3,993,041,417
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18. Statement of Comperison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the yeer ended 306 June 2023

Orlglnrl budgct AdJurtmcnG Fitrd budgct
Acturl on
coop.r.blc b.rb

PcrrorlltncG
dlllerence 7. of utlllzrttoil Notes

Ktht Krh. Krh. Krh. K.hr
b c-a+b d c-(c_d) Fd./crr00

Revenuc

Transfcrs from Dcvclopmcnt Budgct
Graots 412.533.624 4',12.533.624 472.533.624 t00

Lcvics, ,ilcs, atld pcnalties
26.6t0.46t 274 9-877.451.730.00 36.481.922.954 2?.384-973-508 9 .t02.949 -446 ?r

Rcntnl rcvcnuc
5.000.000 5.000.000 4.381.999 518,00 t 88

Financa lrrcome
935.m0.000 915,000.000 964,864,007 (29.864.00?) 103

(a)

Olher hrcome 46.500.000 r00,000.000.00 t46.500.000 183.216.943 (16.716.943) t25
(b)

Goin on salc ofasscts 4,I r0,130 (4.1r0.130)

Pro6t on forciSn exchalrgc tmnsactions 5,941,2r6 (5,943,216)

Totel incom€ 28,069,49'1,848 9,971t46r,730 38,0'15,956,578 29,020,OltA27 9,026,933,rsr (c)

Erpcnrcr

Road Maintcnsncc and Axlc lrad
Expenscs 22,9',t 4,7 18.024 9.458.308-450 t2,433,026,484 27.205.732.858 5.227.293.626 84 (d)

Usc ofgoo& ond scrviccs 785,945,481 12,9162t91 782,969,262 u7,394,t59 135,566,?s8 83

Employcc co3ts 2,315,650. r75 8218,096 2.321.81821t 2.01t.037.755 I12,840,506 a1

Board Expcnscs 67,934,000 67,934,000 55,969,0m I1,965,000 82

Transfc6 from Dcvclopmcnt Budgct
Grents 472,533.624 472.533.624 412.533.624 100

Dcprecistion ord a mortizotion cxpcnsc
400.545.025 (400.545.025)

Rcpoirs !nd maiutcmncc 218,8?0,925 1t,477,000 250,341,925 2t6,40/.,657 33,943r68 86

Financc cost
7.113.400 500.000 ?-6?3-400 s,797,849 1.875.551 76

(c)

Taxatiolr 330J21J50 (330.515.245)

Tot!l Erpcndlturc 26,8/2,83s,629 9,195527 337 35J38362.966 3r345,938,487 1,992,121,139

Surplu for thc pcrlod 1226,5s9219 48r,93a394 t.708,59t,613 (232 s,91s,060) 4.03{508.712

C.pltrl ErpcDdlturc t66,174,m0 7S,t08,376 211,9t2316 211,982375
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Budgct notcs

r) Flornce lncome

The Authority continued to invest in call deposits and interest eamed on bank account balances and endeavoured to negotiate the best
rates in the market thus the favourable variance.

b) Other Income

Other income includes recovery of performance bond for Busia-Malaba project and liquidated damages from various projects
including Kiserian-Oletepisi, Lewa-Meru Road,Southern Bypass,Oletepesi-Magadi & Luanda-Kotieno-Bondo, Ruiru-Tatu city
Awasi-Nandi Hills thus the favourable variance

c) Changes between Original and Final Budget

The changes between original and final budget were as a result ofrevision ofthe budget and inclusion ofthe approved carry over budget
from Financial Year 2021-2022

d) Road Maintenlnce and ArIe Load Erpenses

The variance was a result of some projects not fully absorbing their annual budget provisions.
(e) Finence Cost

Finance costs for Authority's bank accounts both at the headquarters and ten regional offrces were based on the number oftransactions
within the period thus the variance.
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for the year ended 30rh June 2023.

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

The Authority is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Kenya Roads

Act,2007 . The Authority is wholly owned by the Govemment of Kenya and is domiciled in

Kenya. The entity's principal activity is the management, development, rehabilitation, and

maintenance of national roads.

2. Strtement of Complience and Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historicat cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the usc of estimates and assumptions. It also rcquires

management to exercise judgement in the process of applyin E the Authority's accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note

5 ofthese financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of the Authority.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, thc State

Corporations Act and lotemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The

accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annurl Reports and Financial Statements
for thc year ended 30.h June 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statemerts (Continued)

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i. New and amended. standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended j0
June 2022.

IPSASB defened the application date of standards from I't January 2022 owing to Covid

19. This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the statrdards. The

deferral was set for l't January 2023.

ii. New and amended standards and iaterprctations in issue but not yd eJfeaive in the

year ended j0 June 2022.

Standard Elfecdve date and impact:

IPSAS 41:

Financial

Instruments

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of Enancial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classificatiou and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applyrng a single forward-looking expected credit loss modcl

that is applicable to all financial instruments subjcct to impairment

testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies aod the accounting treatnent for instuments held as

part of the dsk management strategy.

Applicable: ln January 2023:

9



Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended 30th June 2023.

Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 42:

Social

Benefits

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting

Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The

information provided should help users of the financial statements and

general-purprose financial reports assess:

(a) The natue of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

@) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

performance, fi"ancial position and cash flows.

Applicable: ltt January 2023

Amendments

to Other

IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for filancial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifoing financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Other

improvements

Io IPSAS

Applicable Id tanuery 2023

e IPSAS 22 Disclosure of F runcial ldormation about the General

Goventmenl Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

. IPSAS 39; Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer

defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
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Kenye National Highways Authority
Arnusl Rcports atrd Finenciil Statements
for the r ended 30tr June 2023.

Ea y adoptlon of slandads

The entity did not adopt any new or amended standards inyear 202112022.

Iu

Standrrd Elfective date and impact:

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from ln January 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicable ld January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that

faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for

users of fnancial statemetrts to assess the effcct that leases have on the

financial position, financial performaacc and cashllows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and prcsent

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS zl4:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Opcrations

Applicable I" Ianuary 2025

The Standard requircs,

Assets that meet the citeria to be classified as held for s6le to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classificd as held for salc to bc presented

separatcly in the statement of financial position and the results of
discontinued operations to be presetrted separately in the statement of
financial performance.
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended 30th June 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Summary of Significrtrt Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exch&nge trunsactions

Fees. and lines

The entity recognizes revenues from fines, penalties and levies when the event occurs and the

asset recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would

give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead ofrevcnue. Other

non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic bencfits or

service pot€ntial associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value ofthe asset can

be measured reliably.

Transfers from other sovernment entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the

transfer is free tom conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grarts are

recognized in the statement ofcomprehensive income. Development/capital graDts are recognized

in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement ofcomprehensive income over

the useful life of the assets that has been acquired using such funds.

IntereEt and other incomes

Interest income is accrued using the effective leld method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this leld to the principal outstanding to determine interest

income each period.

Other ilcome relates to incomes that arise from miscellaneous activities that are not

primarily aimed at raising revenue.
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Kenya National Highrytys Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statemeuts
for the year ended 306 June 2023.

Notes to the trInencirl Strtements (Continued)

Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

li) Revenue from exchenge transactions

Dividends

Dividends or similar diskibutions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the

entity's right to receive payments is establishcd.

Rental income

Rcntal income arising from operating leases on investnent propcrtics is accounted for on

a sraight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The origiual budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the board on 106 January 2022.

Subscquent revisions or additional appropriations werc made to the approved budget in

accordancc with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional

appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective

approvals in order to concludc the final budgct. Accordingln the cntity did not record

additional appropriations oa the 2022-2023 budget following thc goveming body's

approval.

The annual budget is prcparcd ou the accrual basis whcre all planned costs and income are

presented in a single statement to dctermine the needs of the Authority. As a result ofthe

adoption ofthe accrual basis for budgeting purposcs, therc is no basis for timing differences

on the Authority that would require reconciliation between the actual comparable amounts

and thc amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the statemeDt of

comparison ofbudgct and ach-ral amounts.
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended 3()rh June 2023.

Notes to the Finrncial Statements (Continued)

Sum.uary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxes

Current itrcome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the curent period are measured at the amount expected

to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute

the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area

where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

d) Property, plant and equipment

! All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation an

impairment loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition

ofthe items. When significant pars of property, plant and equipment are required to be

replaced at intervals, the Authority recognizes such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major

inspecfion is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and

equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recog[ized in surplus or deficit as hcurred. Where an asset is

acquired in a non-exchalge transaction for nil or nominal consideration thc assct is

initially measured at its fair value.

! Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis at annual rates estimated to write offthc

cost ofthe Asset over expected useful lives.

The annual depreciation rates in use are: -

Computer Equipment & Accessories 33.3%

ICT Infrastructure and Telephony 31.3%

Motor Vehicles 25.0%

Office Equipment and Fumiture 125%
Office Partitioning and fixtures 16.70/o

Plant & Machinery 10.0%

Buildings 2.5%

D An item ofproperty and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal. Any gain or losscs

on de-recognition ofthe asset is included in the Statement ofFinancial Performance in the

year the asset is de-recognised.

> Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant & equipment in the FY

202212023 amounted to Kshs. 108,908,402,549 12021/2022 Kshs.l2 3,669,165,473)
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annuel Reports etrd Financial Statements
for the year ended 306 June 2023.

Notes to the Ilnanclel Statements (Confinued)

Summary of Signllicant Accourting Policies (Continued)

e) Leases

Operating lcases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Authority. Operating lease palments are recognized as an

operating expeuse in surplus or deficit on a saaight-line basis over thc lease term.

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows;

2023
Kshs

2022
Kshs

Not Iatcr than one year

Later than one year and not later than tkee yeals

[,casc payments arc incrcased according to the conFact stipulations. The Board does not have an

option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry ofthc lease period. There are no contingent rents

recognised itr the statemetrt of fnancial performance.

f) Intrrglble rssets

Iataugible assets acquired scparately are initialty recognized at cost. Thc cost of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is thcir fair value at the datc of
the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost lcss a1y

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated

intaugibl€ assets, excluding capitalized development costs, arc trot capitalized and

expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which thc expenditure is

incurrcd.

The useftrl life ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

g) Research rnd development costs

The Authority expenses research costs as incurrei.
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the yeer ended 30th June 2023.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

h) Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

Initiel r osnition and me urement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and

receivables, held-to-maturity investrnents or available-for-sale finaucial assets, as appropriate. The

Authority determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial

asset is impaired. A financial ass€t is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial

recognition of the asset

(an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has ao impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

) The debtors of the Authority are experiencing significatrt financial difficulty

D Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

D Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g.

changes in arears or economic conditions that conelate with defaults)

Financial liabililies

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities withir: the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

through surplus or deficit or loans and bonowings, as appropriate. The Authority determhes the

classification of its financia[ liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recoguized initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and
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Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Finsncial Statements
for the yerr ended 30th June 2023.

Notes to the Financial Strtements (Condnued)

Summary of Signilicant AccouDtirg Policies (Continued)

borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and bonowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recogrized in surplus or

deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method

amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe effective intcrest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

throuph non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the furventory is

its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incuned in bringing each product to its present

location and condition is accounted for.

A.fter initial recopition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacem€nt cost.

Howcver, to the extent that a class of inventory is disributcd or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower ofcost and current replacement

cost.

Inventories are recognized as atr expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the

ordinary course ofoperations ofthe Authority.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

rcsult ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beDefits or

scrvice potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliablc cstimate can bc made of the

amount of the obligation.

Wherc the Authority expects some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a sepiuate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the

statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.
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Annual Reports and Financiel Statements
for the year ended 30tb June 2023.
Notes to the Finencial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

k) Contingent liabilities

The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies

in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodfng
economic benefits or service potential is not remote.

l) Contingent assets

The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent

assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the

financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic bencfits or

service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related

revenue are r€cognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.

m)Nature and purpose of reserves

The Authority creates atrd maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. The Authority

maintains grants and surplus reserves. The grant reserves are exchequer and donor funds received

from the Govemment and Development Partners for development ofroads. The surplus reserve

represents the surplus or deficit ofRoad maintenance contributions and other intemally gencrated

funds against road maintenance and operation expenses. The exchequer and Development partner

funds are capitalized in the statement of financial position whereas Road maintcnance

contributions are expensed in the statement of financial performance. However, the portion of
exchequer fuuds spent on non-capital items or project expenses is transferred to recurent transfers

and treated as recurrent govemment grants and expenditures accordingly.
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for the year ended 30th June 2023.

Notes to the Finsncial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Slgnilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Changes in accoundng policies and estimates

The Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy rehospectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.

o) Employee b€nefits

Retirement benefit nlsns

The Authority provides rctirernent benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans are post-

employment benefit plans under which the Authority pays fixed contributions into a separate fund

account, and will have no legal or constmctive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund

does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the

cuncnt and

prior pcriods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are

charged against iocome in the year in which they become payable.

p) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debton denominated in foreign currency are reported at

the statement offinancial position reporting dat€ by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors at

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the pcriod in which they arise.

q) Related parfies

The Authority regards a related party as a person with the ability to exert conhol individually or
jointly, or to exercise sig ficant influence over the Authority, or vice versa. Memberc of key

management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Board and senior managers.
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for the year ended 30th June 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-terrn deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an original maturity ofthree months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at various comrnercial banks at the end of the

financial year.

s) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t) Subsequent events

There have been events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on thc

fmancial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

5. Signilicant Judgments and Sources of Estimrtion Uncertainty

The preparation of the Authorit/s financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, aud the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the end of

the reporting period.

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require

a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected in future periods.

Esrtmafus and assumplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Authority based

its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were

prepared.
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Notes to the trInancial Statements (Condnued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to

market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Authority. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur as per IPSAS 1.140

Uselul lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential fuhre use and value from disposal:

) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Authority

The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

) The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

D Availability of funding to replace the asset

! Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determhed an estimate based on the information

available. Additioml disclosure of these estimates ofprovisions is included in Note 40.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle

thc obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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Notes to the Finrncial Statements (Continued)

6' Transfers from Development Budg€t Gnnts-Recurrent Revenue/ project Expenditure

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs
Hom of Africa

Development Proiects
Gateway

tt6,243,s51 ll2,256,347
Kenya Transpo( Sector Support

Project 19,272,745 17,361.660

Nuno - Modogashe
1,404,662 218,200

Isiolo - Modogashe
1.581.634 1.621.600

South Sudan -EARTTDFP/S S
7,581,881 10,083,626

Mombasa by-pass
5,21 I.l8l 4,225.t27

Nairobi-Thika Highway
454,260

Nairobi Westem bypass
831, r 00 983,300

Consultancy & Design
2,468,199 10.545.600

Road Reserve Mapping
21,223.255 9,48367

Kiminiui Town Service
7,529,191

Monitorir:g & Evaluationr
48.452.285 58,319,424

Dualling of Mombasa - Mariakani
17.240.736 17,4t6.114

Garissa - Isiolo
5.207.900 2.145.500

Isebania-Mukuyu-Kisii-Ahero
6,379.345 66s.100

Kibwezi-Kitui-Isiolo
129.400 201,200

Chebilat-lkonge-Chabera
494,750

Eldoret by-pass
7,060,596 s,7u.484

Dualling Eldoret Town Road
13,711,050

Kitale-Endebbes-Suam
4,340.025 9.605.8s8

Garsen-Witu-Iamu
7,794.940 4,363.047

Uplands-Githunguri-Ngewa
2.715.600

Thika-Kenol-Marwa-Nyeri +
28,449,392 32,445.425
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Not$ to the Financial Strtements (Condnued)

6. Transfers from l)evelo ment Bud et Gronts-Rccurrent Revenue/ Pro ect Er e[diture
Description 2027-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Nairobi-Nakuru*
2,266,189 4,679,793

Nakuru-Mau Summit
6.544.800 28,772,208

Mombasa-Malindi*
15.519.961 33,022,025

7.466.64s
Naivasha-Njabirii

790,600

Kisian-Busia
1.687.266

Abcrdare Forest-Nj oguini-
Kingongo-Kiganio 2,263,206 3,773,538

Thika-Magumu
5.324.000 5.832.800

Nairobi Expressway
7.5t2.550 11.865.592

Bomas-Ongata Rongai -Kiserian-
Macadi 2.864.500

Lamu-Ijara-Garissa
12,448,421 13,516,721

Likoni Floating Bridge
554,785 3.738.364

Access Road Mombasa SEZ
4.507.s94 3.197.387

Kisumu - Chemilil - Mamboleo*
9.095.33r 28.035.375

MPARD PKG 2-Mwache Jct-Mtez^
2.158.170 2.730.430

Marsabit - North Horr
9,800 19,618,9I7

Dualling of Meru Town Roads
389,600 1.072.9t4

Mau Mau Roads
5.735.599 13,917.100

Kitale-Morpus
3.001.165

Shegel-Maikona
2.599.569

Barpelo-Tot
7.t74.750 1,950.800

Kainuk Bridge
1,418,999 r.435.240

Wihlilye-Kathukini-Kwa Muli-
Mbrmbuni 1.666.697 14.044.383

Lomut Bridge
257,405
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Transfers from Development Budget Grants-Recurrent Revenue/ Project Expenditure

This is lhe recurrent component of development p,'ojecl experuses.

b) Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Kambu Bridge
647,369

Mombasa Gate Bridge
10,390,525 7.071.810

Njabiui-Kinyona
I,000.000

Isinya-Konza
l.835.100 9.252.280

Makupa Causeway Bridge
6,122,857

loruk-Barpelo
3.787.900

Posta (Naibor)-Kisima-Maralal
s.349.026

Changamwe-Magongo-Miritini
3.337.920

Aberdare
Kinsonso-Kisanio

Forest-Njoguini-
2.263.206

Rumumti - Mararal
t_s22.700

North Horr - Durathe AP Camp
1,556,600

Other Development Projects
22,252,936 16,194,917

Total Transfers from
Development Budget Grants-
Recurrent Revenue/Expenditure

472,s33,624 s38,180J68

Name of tbe
Entity sending
the grant

Amount
recognized to
Statemetrt of
Comprehensive
Income

Amount
recognised in
capital fund.

Total
income
the y€rr

grrtrt
during

202t-2t22

KShs KShs KShs KShs

MOTIHUD
PW

&
472,533,624 14,095,957,703 14,568,491,327 24,980,6s0,648

KRB 26,078,268,796 2,100,000,000 28,178,268,796 32,373,684,0U

Total 26,s50,802,420 16,195,957,703 42,746.760.123 57,354334.732
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Notes to the Finrncial Statements (Continued)

7. L,evies, Fines and Penalties

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Road Maintenance firnds 22,873,525,596 24_814.422.881
Administration & Operations Fund 2.665.743.200 2,553.248.000
Transit Toll s39.000.000 450,016.607
Overload charges 763.882.793 626,141.736
Transgression charges 394,932 1,452.424
Weighbridge Parking fees 3.471.334 5.627.930
Road Cutting charges s3.84t.249 47 .557.689
Road Reserve user fees 98.384.986 75.4t5.064
Exemption permit fees 386.728.418 363.694.473
Salc of Tender Documents 1,000 2,000
Total Levies Fines & Penslties 27,384,973,308 2E,937,578,804

The annual RMLF fron KRB grew by l$hs. 1.06 billion in the current FY 2022/202i. Total RMLF
received in FY 2022/2023 was Kshs. 28.2 billion compared to Kshs. 32.4 billion in FY 2021/2022
which resulted from Conditional allocation of Kshs. 5.7E billion received in FY 2021/2022
compared to Kshs. 52E million receivable in FY 2022/2023.

E. Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment

Description 2022-2023 2027-2022
KShs KShs

StaffHouses & Cantcen at Barabara Plaza 4.38 r.999 1.168.000
Totrl rentrls 4381.999 I,168,000

fiis is revenue from the Authority's houses occupied by its staf in South Rift and Noah Rift

Regions & Staff Canteen at Barabara Plaza.

9. Finrnce Income

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs
Interest on Call deposits 548,952,226 444,692,549
Interest on Bank Balances on hansactional accoutrts 415.911.781 476,692.342
Total fusnce Income - erternrl Investments 964,E6/.,007 92r384,E9r

10. Other Income

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Liquidated darnages t79,055_822 9,177,581
Insurance compensation & sale ofdisposable items. 4.126.851 4,554,890
luterest on salary advance 34,270 32,358
Total other income 183.216.943 13,764,829
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The Authority pursued and recovered the cost ofdamages from insurance companies which

had, insured motor vehicles which damaged its road furniture.

11. Road Maintenance & Arle Load Erpenses

Description 2022-202! 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Road maintenance expenses 24,1t3,192.709 20_450.234_549

Emergency Road Works 388.087.240 1.980.301.490
Weiehbridees Manaqement Contracts 2.635.571.850 2,203,932,633
Weighbridge Operational Expenses 42.877.464 56.641.801

Rescarch & Innovation 26,003,595 t5,384,322
Total Road Maintenance & Arle Load Expenses 27,205,732.E58 24.706A94.795

The signiJicant growth in road maintenance expenses resulted from maintenance projects

planned for completion in FY 2021/2022 which were completed in FY 2022/2023.

Emergency road worlcs expenses dropped following embedding of emergency road worlq

activities in Frame work Contracts for emergency worlcs hence faster re.sponse to

emergenqt situations. In addition lo the above, Performance Based Contracts facililate
unclogging of road s and drainage systems and facilitate faster response to emergency

worl<s whenever they arise.

12. Use of Goods and Services

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Electricity t3,870,396 13,501,243

Water l,2ls,6l5 1,020,583

Security costs 55,797,208 53,830,637

Advertising 4t,549,379 21,237 ,318
Audit fees 3,600,000 4,200,000

Conferences and delegations 108,302,838 92,672,798

Consulting fees 49,024,71 46,305,907

Stationery & Consumables 22,747,435 16,686,762

lnsurance 3,478,657 2,738,2r6

Legal expenses 20,600,460 27,852,420

Postage 3,056,380 2,839,034

Printing and photocopying I ,163,978 3l I,103

Hire charges 64,152 I17,980

Telecommunication 18,667,653 l1,903,646

Cleaning & Sanitation 20,154,495 21,000, t 25
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13. Employee Costs

2122-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Salaries and wages 1,459,047,627 1,s28,133,237
Employer contribution to pension schemes 167,957,196 ts1,923,568
Employer contribution to health insurance schemes 130.992.905 138.369.909
Travel, accommodation, subsistence & other allowances 63,256.3r0 60,947,s0t
Trainine and Subscription t50.829.867 t34.909.717
Staff Welfare 36.94s.794 28.231.663
Recruitsnent 2.008.066 5,223,509
Totel Employee costs 2.011.037.765 2,053,739,104

The drop in salaries and wages and employer's contribution to health insurance schemes resuhed

lrom the lapse and non-renewal of short term contracts employees at the end ofFY 2021/2022.

14. Boerd Expenses

Descrlption 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Chairman's Hoooraria 960,000 960.000
Directors' emoluments 5.0s 1.000 12,202,570
Director General's Compensation' 9,595,600 8.588,540
Director General's Gratuity* 1.910.7t6 t,727,735
Transport, Travelling & Accommodation r0.835,060 13,902,452
Irsurance 466.304 39t,4s7
Training 14,787,ss4 14,868,700
Refreshments 1.239.764 255.513
Overseas Travelling & Accommodation 1,85t.449 ro,853,732
Field Trip 1.223.887 2,326,440
Ministerial atrd other Official firnctions 7.963.666 5,994,678
Telephone 84,000 84,000
Total Board /Council Exoenses 55.969.000 72,155.8t7

*In line with IPSAS Financial Reporting template, the Direclor General's compensation is

disclosed under board expenses
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2021-2022Descrlption 2022-2023

KShsKShs

Departrnental Field Activities 265,874,606 218,576,000

Anti- Comrption and lotegrity Issues 4,552,700 2,697,500

StaffUniforms 1,704,000

5,166,100 5,4fi,52sBoard of Suwey
Rcfercnce material 569,036 301,920

Kitchen Utensils 387,864 237,734

Ncwspapers and Magezinsg 2,5t3,420 2,224,376

Drinking Water 3,333,076 3,217,130

Total Use of Goods and Servlces 548,E83,957647394,159
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15. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

16. Repairs and Mrintenrnce

17. Finance Costs

18. Gain on Sele of Assets

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs XShs

Property, Plant and Equipment
Office Equipment 13.580.1l5 t2,315,549
Office Partitions and Fixtures 2.143.750 2.015.361
Computer Equipment and Accessories 22.900.424 21,106.388
ICT Infrastructure and Accessories s.068.332 7,148,4t4
Fumiture and Fittings 5.185.261 4,349_2tl
Motor Vehicles 101.605.708 64,26t,764
Plant and Machincry 244,632.2t0 151,640,106
Buildings 5,429,22s 5,266.725
Intangible Assets-Sage Pastel 5,594,002
Total depreciatlon and amortization 400545.025 271,697.520

Description 2022-2023 2027-2022

Kshs Kshs
Equipment and Machinery 16,580,635 10,035,377

Vehicles t47,035,607 130,06s,81I

Fumiture and Fittings 802,966 204,549

Computers and Accessories 6,32t,828 6ls,E00

Others (Software support & licence subscriptions) 4s,663,621 29,451,806

Total Repalrs and Meintenance 2r6AM,6s7 r70373,t43

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs I(Shs
Bank charges 5.797,849 s,623.642
Total finance costs s.797.U9 s$23.U2

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Property, plant atrd equipment 4,110.130 16,082.409

Total gain on sale of sssets 4.110.130 16,082,409
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Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Profit on foreign currency translation 5,943,216 2.577.361
Totrl profit on foreign currency trrnslrtion 5.943.216 2,s77367

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Profit ou foreign currency translation

20.Taretlon

Increase in tax provisions resulted ftom grou)th in interesl on call deposits, growth in rental

income for slaf and Barabara canteen-

21. Cesh and Cash Equivalents

The Authority received approximately 33oZ of tX annual RMLF allocations towards the tail end

of the 4h quarter in FY 2022/202j foltowing delays in receipt of RMLF resources. In addition to

the above, substantial exchequer proceeds and revenue grants for Monbasa - Maiakani were

received towards the end ol the FY 2022/2023.

2l (a) Deteiled Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Tax charged on interest income, Staff Houses & Canteen 330,523,s50 274,738,055

Income tax expense reported in the statement of
Ilnancial performance 330,523,550 274,73E,055

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Current Accounts (tansactional bank accounts) r 1,926,680,168 8,992,t02,344

On - Call Deposits 5,300,000,000 5,000,000,000

Others (Cash in Hand) 869,688 939,073

Cash in Transit 156,570

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,227,706,426 13,993,041,477

2022-2023 2021-2022
Financial institution Account nuDber KShs KShs
a) Current eccount
NCBA Bsnk -NCTIP A,/C) 100001217? .59.353.586
NCBA Bank -EATTFP A/C I000012E78 t2.136.917
NCBA Bank -Timboros-Eldorct Road A./C 1000015508 18,768,445
NCBA Bsnk -KTSSP A./C 1000017384 7,732,595
NCBA Ba* -Marsabit- Turbi Road A/C 10000150M 3,226,67 4
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Notes to the Financiol Statements (Continued)

2l (a) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

NCBA Bank -USD A,/C t00t936617 37 ,072,387 30,84r,397
NCBA Ba*-NETIP I005164164 1.087.938.126 1.047.818.371
NCBA Bank-Kwa Mombasa-Mariakani 100598r 577 688.054.340
Co-opcrativc Bank-GoK 0l t4l160979900 3.6t3. r 56.401 5,493.9t7.425
Co-opcrativc Bank-RMLF 0l t4l160979901 4,244,290,4t9 1.301.179
National Bank - Salarics A,/C 01001032662500 14,013,700 108.247 .957
National Bank - Gratuity A./C 01001032733300 33,934.8r 7 34,536,302
National Bank - Rctcntion A/C 01001032733200 561,158,483 183,962,682
National Baok - EARTTDFI- A,/C 01001032662501 98.5t0,924 t78,2t7,73t
National Ba[k-Sirari Conidor 01001133511500 403,830 27 ,771,7 50
KCB Bank0pcrations AJC t I10623704 419.833.806 91,685.495
KCB BsDk-NUTPJP ,C I138238945 8,1 12,2t 5
KCB Bsnk-JKIA t2't4695'1't 5 484,t6s 490,270
KCB Bank-Nairobi Rcsion I I r4840149 181.909.663 n4,266,998
KCB Bank-Coast Rccion I I t4772089 62.31't.492 56,027,974
KCB Bank-South riff Rccion t I14781592 34.74t.667 30.454.604
KCB Ba&-North Eastcm Rcsiotr I I14751928 t6.205.559 t2.526.s49
KCB Baol- North riff Rccioo I I14793272 21.596.724 19.768.362
KCB Bao*-Ccntal Rcriou I I t4745101 43,859.674 36,649,136
KCB Baok-Uoper Eastcm Rcriot ttt4'152045 40,071,095 2s.904.996
KCB Bank- Iowcr Eastcm Rccion tL t4'156326 42.452.350 32,380.280
KCB Bank-Nyanza Rcsion tl14156229 54.r92.024 44,t0t.469
KCB B8lk-Wcstcm Rcciotr I I14774405 35.551.510 26,M0,574
Equity BaDk-Hcsdqusrtcrs A./C 0810295119897 594.931.012 1.285.840.4t I
Sub- total 11,926.680,168 8,992.102344

2t Detailed Anal of the Cssh and Cash E uivalentsI
2022-2023 2021-2022

Fiulncial institution Account number KShs KShs
Curretrt account

b) On - clll deDoslts

KCB Baok Call Deposit 2.000.000.000 1.700.000.000

Co-opcrativc BaDk 0l 150160979929 1,500,000,000 1,300,000,000

Natiooal Batrk Call Deposit 700.000.000

300.000.000Housing Financc Bank

Equity Bsnk 08t0379852427 t,500,000,000 1,300,000,000
Sub- totsl 5.300.000.000 s.000.000.000

c) Others(sDecify)
cash in hand 869,688 939,0't3

869.688Suts totrl 939,073

Cash in Transit (from Nairobi Region) 156,570
t7.227.706.426Grsnd totsl 13,993,041.4r7
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Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Current receivables
Interest receivable on call deposits 3s.700.582 32.565.479
Travel 2s.634.M8 r8.065.290
Bank tee and oslts 14.761.300 14,761,300
Staff Mortgage deposit fund with Housing Finance
Com an ofKen 675.613.82r 599,292.90r
Road Maintenance Funds 3.157.174.004 I1,86s,854.651
Debtors and P ts 14,929.355 41.315.588
Receivable from Ken Rural Roads Authori 7 .6t7.789 8,195,298
Receivable from Ken Urban Roads Authori 6.253.501 6,7s5,843
Sub Totrl 3,957,6E4,400 r2,586,E063s0
kss:Provision for doubtful debtors (24.2s0.000) (24,250.000)
Total current receivables 3.933.434.400 12,562,556350

Notes to the FiDancial Statements (Continued)

22. Receivsbles from Exchange Transactions

22 (a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions (Current)

22 @) Recelvables from Erchange Transactions (Long-term)

tFull Provtsion has been made for the amount due from KDIC as the Authority follows up with

the Corporation lor recovery.

23 ReceivablesfromNon-ExchangeTrrnsactions

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Chase Bauk (lR) funds held at Kenya Deposit lnsurance
c 24,250,000 24,250,000

Total non-current receivables 2.4.250.000 24.250.000

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

Current receivables
Other debtors non-exchan trrnsac6oDs

a. Develo ment rojects
of 99.048.633 99,048,533

al Maralal 23.388.096 23,388.096
Kitale-Endebes-Suam 74,030,038 298,6s7.307
Kitale- 8,966,907
Kotulo-Elwak 4.001.405 6,965,900
Mombasa-Kwa Jomvu 8.455.066 t1,656,946
Kainuk &A Roads 524,368 524,368
N c53 10.409.057 33,023,182
Busia-Malaba 5,848,848
Isebania-Kisii-Ahero 123,31t,434 406,686,707
Athi Rivcr -Machakos Tum Off 1s,516,891 1s,516.891
[.oichan -Lokichar 57,064,758 429,572,426

- Marich Pass Lot 3 353.508.170 441,996,878
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23 ReceivablesfromNon-ExchangeTransactions

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

e Development proiects (Continued)
James Gichuru-Rironi 163.321.76s 163,32t,765

elo - Tot Lot I l 10.000.000 454,228,493
elo - Tot Lot 2 314,30t,740 560,304,220

U lands-G ithuneuri-Ngewa- (C65) 122,899,801 212,031,771
Naivasha- Njabini-(C67) 85s,520,685
Thika-M u I t3,4t 5,494 t49,t973U
T-Mall Flyover 18,816,698
Njabini-Kinyona 263.863.028 317,904.648
Mombasa Road & Latrgata Road Footbridscs 109,119,0s7
Mombasa Southem bypass t,6t2,402,932
Nairobi Expressway 38,667,280 38.667.280
Installati on &Relocation Expressway 13,895.511 13,895,511

Kericho & Ahero Interchange 70,705,506 70.705.506
Elwak - Rhamu 7,34t.797
Eldoret - Lokichar - Nakodok 68,32t,824 68,321,824
Sagana-Marua 270.527.028 531,742,4U
Kenol-Sagana 725,734,390
Mau Mau Lot lA 312,640.836
Mau Mau l,ot 3 393,t25,726
Mau Mau Roads Lot lB 3'73.181.427 436,422,590
Mau Mau Lot 2 560.266.534 642,8M.t42
Kwa Jomvu - Mariakani Lot 2 (4109) 2.1s4.253.315
Wikililve-Kavisuni 69.214.724
Marsabit - Sheeel 222.757.5t9 222,757,5t9
Shegel - Maikona 586,620,300 783.675.165
Ugunia - Ukwala - Ruambwa (Steel Bridees) 3s.880.427 3s.880.427
Makupa Causeway Bridse 62.221.6sr 451.106.975
Access Road To Sez Dongo Kundu 71,973,9t0 73.973.910
Mombasa - Mtwapa 58s.332.008 58s.332.008
Mtwapa - Kilifi 427.t72.610 s83.113.868
Mamboleo - Miwani Lot I 230.489.800 519,452.415
Miwani - Mamboleo I-ot 2 354.588.67s 496,471,688
Chemilil - Muhoroni l-ot 3 418.8M.941 572.076.770
Kwale - Kinango 104,873,600 307,067,550
Kenyatta Road 164,224,531 17s,491,802
Kambu River Bridge 62.500.000 67.022.452
Dhosove Bridee 35.000.000 199.934.951

Garissa-Isiolo I,890,730,121 I,890,730.121
Isiolo - Kula Mawe l.058.013.751 750.608.755
Kula Mawe - Modosashe 1.499.365.508 t.183.t72.s27
Kisumu Boys - Mamboleo 94.437.442 94,437,442
Mombasa Cate Bridge 938.214.013 938214.0r3
Upgade of [amu-liara-Garissa Road (A l0) 1.083.227 .t22 1,495.928.157

Sub Toial for Developmeot Proiects r6,1r0347,384 20,196.784.701
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23 ReceivablesfromNon-ExchangeTransactions

b. Road Maintenance Projects
Descriotlon 2022-2023 2021-2022
P. Mtce of Thika - Garissa (Lot2) (A3) s7.064.756
Bachuma Gate-Voi(A8) 7.58'1.94r
Sabasaba -Malindi(B8) 6,890,336
Mtito Andei -Tsavo River A8 Road 55,788,285 76;750.361
Ndhiwa-Karunsu Road t2,311,239
PBC lten-Kabamet Rd 11.419.738 39.792.8s1
PBC Mtce of Madoso - Cheredende (B89) t 0.021.441 rs.807.249
PBC Eminins Madsat 6,016,015 18,281,266
Garsen-Mnazini 46.665.379
PBC Usunia-Ukwala-Ruambwa 40.798.3t4
Bura-Hola 19.669,365
Mau SummirNvahururulnterchange 21.000.000
PBC Kendu Bav-Homa Bav 9,027,727
PBC Eldama Ravine-Kamwasor 27 ,627,836
PBC Bangaley-Madoqo 15.000.000
PBC Kisumu Bwass 2,832,685

PBC Mwinei Ukasi 17.438.828
Strt Lcht Mbs RD. Nyayo Stsdium-JKIA 17.948.321
PBC Athi River- Kyumvi Road 7,189.214
PBC Maili Tisa - Kitale 15.171.906 48.352.976
PBC Sultan Hamud Makindu 24,712,781 62.654.606
PBC Maint of Londiani-Fort tenan 8132 RD t5.783.922
Box Culvert Kwa Maiini Alone Rd 4.860.442
PBC Neata Nioro 12.579.321 32,747,048
PBC Katitio-Kendu Bay Road 9,420,129 18.090.105
PBC Kamoi va Moto-Eldama Rrvifle Road 24.547.264
PBC maint Athi River-Basil StreetlishEr 6.395,153 16.876.160
PBC Matut of Malkis-Marsabit A2 Road 9.319.319 5.000.000
Adv-Maint of Namwela-kamukuywa RD ( B I40) 22,428,359 22,42E,359
PBC for maint of Lanet-Ndundori Road 10.964.638
PBC Maint of Amala fuver - Bomet RD 40.064.231
Advance-Narok-Ngoswani r 1,436,043 3l,011.547
Advance-PBC Maint of Busia- Malaba Road 16.324.429 27,086.99s
PBC Meru-Mikinduri-Maua-Kanseta B I o2Road 44.873,208 44,873,208
PBC maint of Timboroa-Mau Summit A18 RD 10,931,160 62.95t.234
PBC Maintenance of Ebuyanzu-Ekero RD 23.406 9,49E.648
PBC Maint of Athi River-Bisil Road t2.s04.795 20.20t.7t4
PBC Mtce of Bondo-Usenge-Osieko RD 27.0s9.574 s7,8t6,44s
Tsavo River-Voi A8 Road 72,686,559 r 13.457.606
PBC Bondo-Siaya-Rangala RD 6.068.536
PBC For Maint Thika-Kilimambogo Road 9.901.62s s0,188,771
PBC Maint of Kiambu- Nsewa-Thuita Road 6.074.290 12.734.872
PBC Mai Mahiu Duka Moia(B7) 26.667 _7 50
PBC Kachibora-Kapcherop Road 3,124.2t7
PBC Lewa-Meru Rd 18.710.499 28,741.t82
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23 ReceivablesfromNon-ExchangeTransactions

b Road Maintenance Pro ectsContinu
Descri tion 2022-2023 2021-2022
Adv-Maint. Of Mariakani-Maweni 29 438 761
PBC Luanda kotieno Bondo 38 772 l0l 64 122 570
PBC Keroka-N B5 l0 7 048
PBC Mtce Cherende-Bilbil Rd l0 529 433

29 920 671PBC Garsen- Hola
PBC Kakame Webu 3 84s 584 9 7tl 070
Isiolo-Ruiru 935 030
PBC Nan - Lewa 24 57t 164
PBC Mbwekas - Ma ni - Ekero B12 Road 35I 94t l0 t47 519
PBC for Mtce Nakuru - Emini 5 47 286 l9 674 745
PBC for Mtce of Busia - U a At2 Rd 36 34t 772 8349 192
PBC Kenol-M a Road I 07 112 t2 545 210

PBC Amala River-Bomet- Road 85 637 408
PBC Bomas-Kiserian l5 t7 241
PBC Ou KamuluJN 58 333 395
Adv. Pedestrian F/B-Athi River-Museum Hill 128 087 72s
PBC Nairobi-Thika Roadru-Thika 32 902 3n
PBC Iseneti-Ioitokitok 19 791 757
PBC Malaba-Webu l9 482 417
PBC C ei Chebiemitto l0 000 000

-Sultan HamudPBC 68JI 0ll
Adv. Maint. Ruiru- Tatu Ci -Kiambu Rd 50 685 481

ModikaPBC 8952l 48
a ChumviPBC Bachuma Gate- Ma l8 lt 04

PBC Street Li Nairobi Thika S wa 39 321 018
PBCN a-Timboroa A8 9 519 718
PBC Narok-Kisiriri 20 25 366
PBC Bisil N 8544 3l
Adv. M N abini 46943 83

PBC Muthai a-Kiam 32 Rd 32 465 lll
859 3PBC Kakame -Kiboswa

PBC Kisian-Bondo 26 8l 282
PBC -KisiiI 87 90 403

t2 635 588PBC Kan Mwin
ll9 027 145Adv. James Gichun:-Nairobi Southem B ass

t7 0s3 639PBC Ahero- Kericho
PBC Kiboswa- l5 000 000

047 583PBC W -Mwatate
l959 875Adv. Kiriani-Mu a

PBC Ukasi-B A3 Rd 97189 095
28 792 47PBC Maint & Safet -MitunChiakari u

67186 782Nairobi Southem B ass- Athi River Interchan
PBC Nairobi Thika Nairobi-Ruiru l540 987

00 591 677Sub Total for Road Maintenance Pro ecls I 77 5

I l0 939 061
Total curreDt recelvables
lransactions

from non-erchange
2l 776
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24 fnventories(Consumablestores)

Deccrlpdon 2022-2023 2021-2022
KShs KShs

H EN r0,949,507 7.826.581
Nairobi Rcgion 263.603 225,618
Coast Region 125.638 37,s81

Lowcr Eastem Region 221,477 377,@3

Upper Eastern Region 373,70t 226.032
North Eastem Region 22s,183 202.288
South Rifl Region 47,927 10,839
North Rift Regron 150,592 123.966
Central Region 24,548 55,229
Westem Region t20.tzt 160.512
Nyanza Region 405.490 22t,M6
Total invcntories at the lower ofcost aod nct realizable
value 12,907.7t7 9,66t,135

35



Kenya Natlonal Highways Authorlty
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended 306 June 2023.

Notes to the Firencial Statements (Confnued)

25 Property, Plant and Equipment

Omcc
F4!lpmcrt

Omc. Comput.r
Equlpm.nt tt lcT

Fltdnt' Phnt
M.chlll.ry

&
krd Bullrthsr Tor.t

Cort KShr l(sh. KSht I(sht XSht I(shr KSh. KSht KShr KShr
At I July 2021 s85,6r5,001,rr Iz,EltJsl 29,Un,127 219,69t,531 lrtt9a,02!i 72,t0tJ5r a73,n99t5 2r20J72,11s 20tJ60.000 210,568,985 s69t03Jr8.600
Additions 86.989,693.650 7J70,165 4,749120 22,516,442 22,600 6,155,412 247,105,134 555,084.421 98J5r355 t?,r31,708.952
Di.polrl! (291,598) p,ns,?o2t (52,t{n) (r.r84252) (58,5.47J69) (62.85t,721)

Tr$rf.rr.djuirn.it! (204,542,0t6)
6

ar30thJun.2022 672,6U,695,1U I p27,t t8 11,6,10,1r7 269,194,5n ! 17,863,825 11,779,711 662,917,7t0 1,570J1a,802 20EJ60,000 109,020J41 6n,061,613,795
A. , Jrly 2012 672,e+693,14 l3r,927,lIt 34,640.117 259,194591 r l7'863,t2s n,n9,711 662,937.780 2.570,914,802 208J60,m0 309,0r0J1r 617,057,633,795
Additiors 5t,428,t20.101 r.1,r49J02 r 93,l]3 2.t.t58.0E7 25,708.!43 t0,051,8t2 69,660,002 60,000,000 6,500,000 5r1637,5{0.902
Dirpo.rl3 (192,42) (2,69,14t 0.r2629J) (26,r9{.867) fl2,555,600) (43,053,Nr)
Trlnrf.rr'rdlurtmcrtt (79ia,ll,482) (79,.r,a r,481)
At 30t Jrr.2023 7 24,112,815511 l1{58,r.I78 31,&t3180 ,mr57,9.0 t a3572r05t E5,705:7E 7{t6,,402J l3 2,414.917.720 268J50.000 5'520-Lr 728512,669J6?
Dcpc.irtio.! .nd

Al I July 2021 81J39,273 22,9t8326 2la,{{5.r81 t(x,6J2,021 5l,t87sat 39l,CI3,1ta s2a,l67J8l 21,071.I69 I ,.114,096J8,1
Dcpr.ci.tion t 2,l t5,549 2.0t 5361 ?l.l06J6E ?.t,18.4t4 1J49:t I 64.26t,764 l5 | ,6ao, t06 526,,72s 268,103,s18

On D;!po3ah Qn,6t0l (2,633,321) (52.800) (r,llE,lt3) (58.547.369) (62,514,286)

lmplilrllcnt

ar 30o Jutr. 2022 9a,ot2it2 2a,931,6&' 229119,0a5 lltJr7.635 55,rltJ7' 316Ja&l?9 675101Jtl 28J38,894 1.6t9.625,6t6
Ar l July 2022 94,032rr2 21J33,68' 232,9r9,0r5 I1tJ27,6f,5 s5,ll8.577 396t7aEtt1g 67sr07JE? 28J38,894 1,619.625,6t6
Dca€cirtioo t3.J80,t l5 2,t43,t50 22,900.424 5,068J12 5.185261 10t.605.708 21,4.6,]r10 5,429225 400J41025
On Disosrh 1492.1421 12,694,7441 (r,t2629J) (25.r94.867) (9,r02,810) (39.6t 1.r58)

Irnplirmcnt

Aa:0n Jun. 20il-l l07.ll9,tE5 27,On,$7 253,I24,7t5 I15.795,967 59.r775a3 172,159,0t0 , J36,?t7 33,768,119 1,980Js9J83
Nct book vrlucs

a.10.Jun.2022 672,6t4,695,444 37J9{,906 9,706,a50 36J?S5s2 6,r36,190 22,661,t 61 166,rEr,60t rJ95,l07,al5 20E360,000 2r0,6El,14? 675.aaE 008.t79
At 30rr Jun.2023 72{,11lU5,547 !1,a5,.Jgt 7,7s5,M3 37,833, 5 26,n6,101 ,1521J35 i]4,2,43,89s lJ6?580,933 268J60,000 ,8tt752,222 726,642,t09,7U

*Property, Plant and Equipment does nol include the value oflnvestments in the Road Assel (Road Corr;dor and its reserves, roadfuraiture and

slrltctures and road camps) pior lo the Yesting order o12011
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25 @) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings atrd other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as follows:

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated:

26 Intangible Assets

Cost
Accumulated
Dep recirtion NBV

Krhs Kshs Kshs
Land 268,360,000 258,360,000

Buildings 3t5,520,34t 33,?68,I l9 28t,752,222

Plant And Machinery 2,478,9t7,720 911,336,787 1,567,580,933

Motor Vehicles, Including Motorcycles 706,402,915 472,t59,020 ?34,243,89s

Computers Atrd Relatcd Equipment 434,530,008 369,920,692 64,609,316

Office Equipment, Furniture, and Fittings 266,122,736 193,374,865 72,747,871
Tot!l 4,469,853,720 r980,559,483 2,489294237

Cost or veluation
Normal rnnurl
deprecladon cherge

Plant and Machhery 42,706,968 t0%
Motor Vehicles includilg Motorcyclcs 282,293,573 25o/o

Computcrs and Rclated Equipment 205,457,292 33.3%
ICT & Tclcphony r 04,935,8t9 33.3%
Officc Equipment 29,044,603 t25%
Furnihue & Fitting 40,503,334 t2.5%
Officc Partitions 21,373,t28 16.7%
Totd 7263t4,717

D€scrlption 2022-2023 202t-2022
Kshs Kshs

Cost

At begltrnlng ofthe yeer 183,150,435 t33,527,703
Additions

ERP based on MS Dynamics 43,834,293
Supply, Implementation of NAC System 6,504,481

Electronic Document Msnagcme[t Solution 55,216,734

At end of the yerr 233,489,209 188,7 44,437

Amortlzetlon and imprirment
At beglnnlng oftbe year

Amortization 5,594,002

At end of the yerr s,594,002
Irnpairmcnt loss

At eud of the yeer

NBV 233,489309 183,150J3s
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27 Trade and Other Payables

28 Refundable Deposits rnd Prepayments from Customers

29 Current Provislons

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

IGhs IGhs
Trade payables

Development Payables 78,067,745,313 73,252,413,69s
Retention Payables 5,80t,402,967 6,144,928,868
Road Maintenance Payables l13,945,165 647,013,580
Sundry Payables 90,108,765 l2t,226,195
Total trade snd other payables E4,073,202,210 80,r65,582,33t

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

IGhs Kshs
Customer deposits

Nairobi Region 75,767,605 70,038,21I
Ccntral Region 24,411,357 24,3t9,3t9
South Rift Region 13,677,992 13,097,081

Lower Eastem Rcgion 18,08r,259 r6,611,149
Nya:rza Region 32,589,729 23,076,2U
Coast Region 17,143,398 15,660,881

Upper Eastem Region 23,912,886 t4,420,062
Westem Region 9,768,220 6,628,253
North Rift Region 9,571,254 7,6t8,241
North Eastem Region 2,448,700 2,448,700

Headquarters 1,561,738 r,561,738

Total deposits 228,934,r38 195,479,839

Description
Leave

provision
Gratuity

Provision
Audit fees

provision
Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Belence b/f 58,676,5M 106,998,554 7,200,000 rE2,E7s,058

Additional provisions 43,63t,054 3,600,000 47,23t,054

Provision utilised (6,231,56s) (7,436,788) (3,600,000) ( 17,268,353)

Total provisions yeer end 62,444,939 143,192,820 7,200,000 212,837,759

38



Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the yeer ended 30tb June 2023.

Notes to the Finrncial Stetements (Continued)

30. Taration

31. Cash Generated from Operations

32 Financiel Risk Management

The Entity's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks and

cffects ofchanges in foreign currency. The Entity's overall risk managemeut programrne focuses on

unpredictability ofchanges in the business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse

effect ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels ofrisk. The Entity does not hedge

any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers w.ith an

established credit history.

2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

Gross ltrterest Income Eamed 96t.424.466 921.384.891
Lcss:Expenscs: Bank Charges (5.797.849\ (s.623.642)
Net Taxable Interest Income 9s5.626.6t7 915,761,249
Corporate Tax charge for the year (30%) 286.6E7.98s 274,738,055
Corporate Tax from other lncomes t.561.286
Total Tar charse lor FY 202212023 288.249.271
Prior Period Assessments 42.274.279
Total Corporatlon Tar 330.523550 274,738,055
At beginning of the year 217,457,784 120.891.131
Total orate Tax Payable s47.9E1334 395.629,1E6
Prior Year Tax Payment (259.732.1021

WTax paid by Ba*forFY 2022-2023 fi44.213.670\ (r 38,2 r s,689)
WTax paid FY 2022-2023 (r37 _437,9t4) (39,961,940)
At end ofthe year 6.597.648 217,457,7E4

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Surplus (Delicit) for the year before tax (232s,9rs,060) 1,7E6,8s0,06r

Adjusted for:
Dcpreciation 400,545,025 273,697,520

Gains and losses on disposal ofassets (4,110,130) (16,082,409)

Worldng cspital adjustments

Increase in Iong Term Receivables s00,000

Decrease in inventory (3,239,65 r) (2,178,s14',)

Incrcasc/Decrease in receivables 7,772,308,350 (7,4t4,787,149)

Decrease in Trade and other payables (1,08s,117,s83) ( I ') I7 5 I2 0 I 0)
Increase in paynents received in advance 29,962,70r 43,606,327

Transfer to revenue reserves 37,259,149

Net crsh flow from operating activities 4,E21,692,801 (6,545,906,174)
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Finencial Risk Management

The Entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk

The Entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,

as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial invqstments. Managemctrt

assesses the credit quality ofeach customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience

and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or extemal assessment in accordance

with limits set by the dtectors. The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net

of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Entity's management based on prior

experience aqd their assessment of the current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the

Entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value ofany collateral

obtained is made up as follows:

Total amount
Fully

performing Past due Impeired

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As rt 30 June 2023

Receivables from exchange

transacti ons
3 ,933 ,434 ,400 3,909,I 84,400 24,250,000

Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

18,310,939,061 18,310,939,061

Bank balances t7,227,706,426 17,227 ,706,426

Total 39,472,079,887 39,447,829,887 24,250,000

As at 30 June 2022

Receivables fr om exchange

transactions
t2,562,556,350 12,538,306,350 24,250,000

Receivables fr om non-exchange

transactions
2t,540,562,776 2t,540,562,7'.16

Bank balances 13,993,04t,417 13,993,041,417

Totrl 48,096,150,543 48,07r,910,s43 24,250,000
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Financial Risk Mrnagement

The customen under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading.

Thc credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible

amouots that the Entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover

ary potentially irrecoverable amounts. The Entity has significant concentration of credit risk on

amounts due Aom xxxx. The board of directors sets the Entity's credit policies and objectives and

lays down parameters wirhin which thc various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

li) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate resporsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the EDtity's directors, who have built

an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Entity's short,

medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Entity manages

liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Entity under non-derivative financial liabilities

by thcir remaining contractual maturities at the reportitrg date. The amounts disclosed in the table

arc the conhactual undiscounted cash flows. Balances dus v,,ithin 12 months equal their carrying

balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

Less than I
month

Between 1-3
months

Over 5
months

Total

IGhs Kshs Kshs Kshs
As rt 30 June 2023

Tradc payables 90,108,765 5,9t5,348,132 78,067,745,313 84,073,202,210

Provisions 212,837,759 212,837,759

Totrl 90,108,765 5,915,348,132 78,280,583,072 E4,2E6,039,969

As at 30 June 2022

Trade payables t2t,226,19s 6,791,94?,448 73,252,413,695 80,165,582,338

Provisions 219,857,585 219,857,585

Totel 121,226,195 6,791,942,448 73,39E,E18,081 80J11,986,724
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Financial Risk Management

iiD Msrket risk

The Entity has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal accounting

and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity priccs and

foreign exchange rates which will affect the Entity's income or the value of its holding of financial

instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk

exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for

managing market risk rests with the Audit and fusk Management Committee. The Entity's Finaoce

Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies (subject to

review and approval by Audit and fusk Management Committee) and for the day-to-day

implementation ofthose policies. There has been no change to the Entity's exposure to market risls

or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk

The Enti0l has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods

and services that are done in currencies othcr than the local currency. Invoices denominated in

foreign currencies are paid a{ter 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of
payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The En rrq, manages foreign cxchange risk form

fuhue commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales

proceeds and matching the same with expected payments.
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Finenclel RIsk Manrgement

Finencial Risk Menegement

The carrying amount ofthe Authoriry 3 foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Fv 2023

In Kshs
Other

currencles Totd
Kshs Kshs Kshs

As At 30 June 2023

Finrndd A$ets

Cssh 37,072,387 30,841,397

Dcbtors

Totd Flnrnchl Assets 37.,072387 30,841,397

Flnenclel Lisblllties

Trade And Other Payables

Totrl Fln.trcirl Liabillties

Net Foreign Currency AsseU(Llebillty) 37,072J87 30,84rJ97

Forelgn currency sensltivity analysis

Fy 2023

Financial Risk Mrnagement

The following table demonstrates the effect on the Entity's statement of comprehensive income on

applyng the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate of the three main

transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also occur if the

Kcnya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

Change in
currency rote

Effect on Profit
before tar

Elfect on
Equity/l{et essets

Kshs Krhs Krhs

2023

Euro t0%
USD lOYo

2022

Euro t0%
USD lOo/o

43



Kenya National Highways Authority
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
for the year ended 30th June 2023.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a result

of changes in interest rate levels. The Entity's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. This

exposes the Entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from

interest rate movements on the Entity's deposits.

Manacemen t of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer

favourable interest rates.

Financial Risk Manogement

Sensitivity analvsis

The Authority analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity

analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss ofdefined rate shifu. The sensitivity

analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates,

remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the prior year. Using the end

of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statement of comprehensive

income ifcurrent floating interest rates increase/decrease by one percentage point.

Financial Risk Management

Fair value of linancial assets and liabilities

a) Financial instruments measured at fgir value.

Determination of fair value and fair values hierarchy

IPSAS 30 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those

valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained

from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Aulhority's market assumptions. These

two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This
level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges.

Level7 - lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that ar€ observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity invesEnents and debt instrumcnts with
significant unobservable components. This hierarchy requires the use ofobservable market
data when available. The Authority considers relevant and observable market prices in its
valuations where possible.
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Financial Risk Management

The following table shows an analysis of financial and non- financial instruments recorded at fair

value by level ofthe fair value hierarchy:

There were no transfers between levels l, 2 and 3 during the year. Disclosures of fair values of
financial instruments not measurcd at fair value have not been made because the carrying amounts

are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

iv) Capital Risk Mansgement

The objective ofthe Entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Entity's ability to continue

as a going concem. The Entity capital structure comprises ofthe following funds:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totcl
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As At 30 June 2023

Financial Assets

Quoted Equity Investsnents

Non- Financial Assets

lnvestsnent Property

Land And Buildings

As At 30 June 2022

Financirl Assets

Quoted Equity Investrnents

Non- Finsncial Assets

lnvestment Property

Land And Buildings

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs
Rcvaluation Rescrve

Rctained Eamings t6,652,249,685 18,940,905,595

Capital Reserve 665,t71,0ts,227 624,058,936,678

Total Funds 681,823,264,912 &2,999,842,273
Total Borrowings

kss: Cash And Bank Balances t7,227,706,426 13,993,041,4t7
Net Debt(Excess Cash'And Cash Equivalents) (17,227,706426) (13,993,041,417)

Gcerlng
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33 Related Party Disclosures

Nature of related nartv relationshios

Entities and other parties related to the Authority include those pa(ies who have ability to excrcise

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related parties

include management personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Kenva

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Authority, holding 100% of the

Authoity's eqvity interest. The Govemment ofKenya has provided full guarantees to all long{erm

lenders ofthe Entity, both domestic and external.

er related erties incl e

i) The Parent Ministry.

iD Kenya Roads Board

iii) National La::d Commission

iv) Key management.

v) Board ofdirectors.

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Transrctions with related parties

a) Sales to related parties

Totrl
b) purchases from related parties

Purchases ofelectricity from KPLC 13,870,396 13,50r243
Purchase of water from Nairobi City Water &
Sewerage Compaay Ltd 1,215,615 l,020,s83

Training and conference fees paid to Kenya School

of Govenrment t6,637,242 22,211,8s8

Total lt,723,253 36,733,584

c) Grants /transfers from the government

Grants from national Govt 14,568,49r,327 26,r',l8,90t,72s

Fuel levy funds from Kenya Roads Board 28,178,268,796 26,271,449,379

Totd 42,746,760,123 52,456,351,r04

d) Erpetrses incurred on behrlf of other rgencies

Kenya Rural Roads Authority 17,888,r76 16,263,280

Kenya Urban Roads Authority 14,'746,226 13,406,733

Total 32,634,402 29,570,01!
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34 Contingent Assets rnd Contingent Liabilities

Contineent Liebilities

35 Capital Commitments

Cepital Commitments 2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Authorised for 48,954,859,729 34,290,862,061

Authorised and Conbacted for r 08,908,402,549 123,669,165,473

Totll 157,863,262,278 1s7,960,027,534

36 Surplus Remission

Thc Authority did not realise any distributable surplus during the year ended 306 June, 2023 arlrd,

hencc there was no remittance to the Consolidated Fund.

37 Events after the Reportlng Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

38 Ultimate And Holding Entity

The Authority is a Semi- Autouomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry of Transport
& Infrastnrcture, Housing, Urban Development & Public Works. Its ultimate parent is the
Govemment ofKenya.

39 Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (IGhs).

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

e) Key mrnagement compensation

i) Directors' Emoluments 6,095,000 t2,696,109

ii) Directors'Expenses 36,809,684 49,t43,433

itl) Compensation to the CEO I 1,506,316 10,316,275

lv) Compensation to key management 236,341,887 256,475,566

Totrl 290,752,887 328,631,383

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

Contingent Llebilities

Court Cases against the Authority t6,743,296,243 60,314,451,805

Unclaimed Interest on works and knd acquisitions 262,317,950 262,317,950

Unresolved contractual claims 5 000 000 000 s,000,000,000

Estimated lrgal fees & lnterest awards 131,153,540 131,153,540

Totd 22,136,767,733 6s,707923,295
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20. Appendices

Appendix I : Implementation Stotus of Auditor-General's Recommendations
The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor.

Reference

No. on

the
external

audit
Report

Issue / Observations from Audltor (FY
202U2022) Report

Mrnrgement comments

Stetus:
(Resolved

/ Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Pul s dote
when you
expecl lhe
issue lo be
resolved)

2

Board Expenses

The statement of financial performance and

as disclosed at Note 14 to the financial
statements reflects board expenses of
Kshs.72,155,817 which is an increase of
Kshs.30,952,377 or 75%o from the previous
year expenditure of Kshs.41,203,2140. During
the year, the board held a total ofthideen ( l3)
board meetings which exceeded the
recommended maximum of six (6) meeting
as per circular OP/CAB.9/IA dated 11

March, 2020. The board expenditure
includes tickets cancellation charges of
Kshs.l33,400 which is a nugatory
expenditure to the Authority. The
expenditure further includes ministerial and

other activities toraling to Kshs.9,367,014
that had no relation to Board activities and an

item on field trips amounting to

Board Erpenses

This matter was neither brought to the auention of the auditee nor
contained among the matters raised during the exit meeting, which
would have facilitated provision of adequate explanation during the
audil process. Similarly, the ma er was not brought forth in the
Management Letter which would have facilitated provision of
adequale expldnations lo the observalion.

We agree with the observation that the Board held seven (7) extra
meetings i:r the year under review instead off the recommended 6
meetings per year. Please note that approvals were sought and granted
in all the 7 cases where the Board was called upon to hold a meeting
outside their annual calendar ofmeetings. Please note lhat requests for
additional meetings and their respective formal approvals are tabulated
hereunder;

Resolved
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Kshs.2,326,440 whose supporting schedule
indicate that the expenditure was not field
related. The expenditure also includes
overseas training totaling to Kshs. I I ,3 8 I ,934
whose justification was not provided.

In the circumstances, the propriety of board
expenditure of IGhs.72,l55,8l7could not be
confirmed.

No. Lcttcr rcfcrcacc no, & dttc
of Anttodty'r rcqncl ao

L.ttcr refcrcncc no. & drtc of PV SDt
rpprovbg holdbg of tbc borrd mcctirg

hold thc boerd
I KcNHA/0I/Vol I dd

n16Dat
MOTIHLJD/VA 35:43 Vol. l. dd l71094021

2 KcNHA"t0llCP/Vol I (E) dd
tvtonozt

MOTIHUDIVA35.38 Vol. V. dd l?rcn0zl

3 KqNHA,/olA/ol.l
runono2t

dd MOTIHIJD/1A35.38 Vol. v. dd l5/t02021

4 MOTHIHI'D&PWILI'5.43/ DV/ES l09l2l /01/'A'(6tll dd 0atv202t
voL dd tat0n02t

5 KcNHA/olAr'OL.l (E3) dd
0v0tn022

MOTIHUD/VA3s.43 VOL.I dd 06/01/2022

6 KCNHA,/01/VOL.I (E4) dd
28/0?J2022

MOTIHLJD/VA35.43 VOL.I dd 01O32022

't TNT/CONF.60/0lrYl7 MOTTHI D&PWr/A"/| 4.2t ICN OL.| 4 t (7 6).
dd I 3/08/202 l126 dd, 4lo8l202t

Copies ofthe 14 letters (representing the applications and approvals to
hold the additional seven board meetings are attached and marked as
Appcndix KeNHt4/OAcAIAn 0 2 1 - 2 2/I 0)

We agree that there was an expense of Kshs 133,400 incurred on air
ticket cancellation following the Kenyan airspace closure by the
national govemment as part of the Covid-l9 paodemic containment
measrues. We had written to the airline agant demanding refund of the
Kshs. 133,400 paid as ticket cancelation fee since the matter was
outside the contol of thc KcNHA officers who wcre due to tavel for
Board induction in Nyanza and Westem Regions between 296 March
2021 ail,l{ April2021.

Attached and marked as Appendk KeNH,UOAG/IbIA/2021-22/I(Ii) is
of the demand letter to the havelac t
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We disagree with the audit observation that there was a

misclassification of the budget line item referred to as Ministerial and
Other Ollicial Functions under the cluster ofBoard Expenses.

Please note that this budget line item was created to facilitate the
Authority's Board of Directors to participate in national govemment
ministry's official functions that had an impact on the Authority's
mardate. The budget line also caterc for havel facilitation of other
senior govemment oflicers (who may be accompanied by the
Authority's Board) attending official functions which have a direct
impact on the Authority's mandate. The expenditure ofKshs. 9,367,014
relates to travel expenses for the then Principal Secretary, State
Department for Infrastucture and his staff while on ofiicial road
inspections. The Principal Secretary by law is a member of the
Authority's Board. Further the Kshs 2,326,M0 relates to expenses
incurred by the Board of Directors when undertaking field related
activities such as projects' hspections, launches or commissioning.
This expenses would include Favel and accommodation expenses, and
personnel protective gear.

We disagree with this observation. Through our letter Ref:
KeNHA./07.B/CONFI42 Yo. 2l(74) dated 25'h October 2021, the
Authority submitted to the Principal Secretary State Department for
lnfrastruchue a Training plan for the Directors complete with their
justifications for the intended training. The Principal Secretary/ State
Department for Infrastructure approved the same on 27fi October 2021
vide the same letter. Attached for ease of reference is the letter &
haining plan marked u Appendk KeNHA/OAGhIA/2021-22/2
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5

Property, Plant rnd Equipment

Lack of Ownership Documents Property,
Plent and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects
property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.675,448,008 as disclosed in Note 26 to
the financial statements. The balance
includes land and buildings valued at
Kshs.208,360,000 and Kshs.280,913,447
respectively. As previously reported, the
buildings are occupiedby Authority's staff in
the South fuft region. Although Management
has provided Govemment of KeDya vesting
order dated 7 September, 2007 indicative of
rightful and beneficial owrership to the
properties by the Authority, acquisition of
the title deeds is yet to be completed.

In the circumstances, the validity and
ownership of the land and building valued at
Kshs.208,360,000 could not be confirmed.

Lack of ownership documents Property, phnt end Equipment
We agree with the audit observation that there are two parcels of land
and buildings valued at Kshs. 208,360,00 and Kshs. 280,913,447
respectively in Nakuru town occupied by the Authority's South Rift
staff which the Authority does not have title deeds for the two land
parcels.

The tbree Roads Authorities i.e. Kenya National Highways Authority
(KeNI{A), Kenya Urban Roads Authority (KURA) and Kenya Rural
Roads Authority (KeRRA) were established through the Kenya Roads
Act,2007 . Upon their establishment, various movable and immovable
properties which were under the then Ministry in charge ofRoads were
transfened and vested to them. These properties included various
National Roads and their Road Reserves.

However, the Vesting Orders gazetted by the then Minister for Finance
at that time (Kurya Roads Act,2007- Legal Notices No. 193, 194 and
195 of20l l) did not include the various other land assets that were also
taken up by the Roads Authorities. The various Road Depot Camps and
former Provincial/District Worla Offices located all over the Country
are a case iD point. The two land parcels in Nakuru belong to this
category.

The Authority has been pursuing the issue of vesting of the land assets
through the parent ministry to enable us pursue the ownership
documents (see attached correspondences) . Appendix
KeNHA/OAG/ilIA202I-22/5.1. This issue was also discussed in a

021 between the office ofthe Auditormeeting held on l5rh Seotember. 2

Not

Resolved
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General, National knd Commission (NLC)
Secretary (State DeparftEnt of Roads). The
Principal Secretary, Ministry of Lands to convene a meeting of all
stakeholders/state corporations to discuss and start the process of
registering the assets. Unfortunately the meeting is yet to be convened.
We are however following up on the same through our line ministry.

and office of the Principal
said meeting resolved the

5.2

Ifnsupported Road Assets Additions
The Statement of financial Position reflects
property, plant and equipment net book value
balance of Kshs. 675,2148,008 as also
disclosed in Note 26 to the financial
statements. The balance includes road assets
additions totaling to Kshs. 85,942,986.

Review of the additions revealed the

following unsatisfactory issues;

Unsupported Diminution of Profits and
Loss of Business

The additions include amounts totaling
Kshs.6,524,789,256 paid in respect of
compensation for diminution of profits and

loss of business to business people who had

erected their business on road reserves.

However, supporting documents including
evaluation reports, names, identification
numbers and nature of businesses were not
provided for audit review.

Unsupported Diminution of Profits and Loss of Business

We agree with the audit observation that we did not share valuation
reports for the compensations to PAPs amounting to Kshs.
6,524,789,256. This is due to the fact that the National I-and
Commission did not share the valuation reports while submitting
compensation schedules to the Authority.

Based on your observation, we have written to the National Land
Commission requesting them for copies ofthe valuation rqrorts. Copies
ofidentification documents and the nature business that was conducted
by the respective PAPs will form part of the suppoding documents for
the valuation report. Once we receive these documents, we will share
copies with you.

Not
Resolved
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In the circumstances, the propriety of the
capitalized expenditure totaling to
Kshs.6,524,789,256 could not be confirmed.

5.2.2

Unsupported Compenration by National
Land Commission

The additions also include Kshs.359,210,703
paid to National Land Commission during
the year. Out of this amount,
Kshs.274,913,406 was in respect to
Kirimukuyu/ Mutathi Ini. However, it was
not possible to confirm the occurrence and
propriety of tbe payments as supporting
documents in respect of beneficiaries and

evidence of remittances were not provided

for audit review-

In the circumstances, propriety and

occurrence of payments totaling to
Kshs.IGhs.274,9l3,406 could not be
confirmed.

nrupported Compensation by Netional Land Commission

We agree with the audit observation that we did not share copies of
supporting documents in respect of beneficiaries and evidence of
remittances by NLC for the Kshs. 274,913,406 paid in respect to
Kirimukuyu/ Mutathi Ini.

Based on your observation, we have written to the National Land
Commission requesting them for copies of supporting documents
giving the beneficiaries' names and proof of remittance of the Kshs.
274,913,406 to the respective beneficiaries. Upon receipt of the
requested documcnts from the NLC, the same will immediately be
formally zubmifted to yourselves.

U

Not
Resolved

5.2.3

Unsupported P&yments on Improvements

Additions to roads assets include Kshs.

paid to affccted persons fort6,3s6,921,198

Unsupported Payments on Improvements

We are unable to provide a response on Kshs. 16,356,921,198 paid to
affected persons for improvements done on various parccls of land

Not
Resolved
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In the circumstances, propriety and
occurrence of paymens totalling to
Kshs.Kshs.l6,356,92l,l98 could not be
confirmed.

road improvements that affected their parcels

of land. However, the same was not
supported by relevant documents such as

evidence of remiftances, identification,
valuation reports and authenticated reports

tom local government administration
offices.

Please provide us a schedule with full particulars which includes pAps

names, Project names and land parcel numbers to enable us provide
specific response to the issues observed.

However, not that we have not received any valuation reports and/ or
authenticated reports from local govemment administration offices
from NLC for any of the land parcels they acquired for the Authority.
Upon receipt of the schedule containilg the above mentioned
particulars from the NLC, we will proceed and formally request the
Commission to share the relevant documents.

5.2.4

Unsupported Payments on Developments

Additions to road assets include

reimbursements of Kshs.373,519,923 aad

refund of development of
Kshs.Kshs.34,223,170 both totaling to

Kshs.407,743,093 paid to affected persons

and businesses as compensation. However,

supporting documents including evidence of
remittances, identifi cation, valuation reports

and authentication by local administration
were not provided for audit review.

Unsupported Payments on Developments

We agree with the audit observation that we did not share supporting
documents including evidence of remittances by NLC, copies of
identifrcation documents, valuation reports and authentications by local
administration for the compensations to PAPS amounting to Kshs.
407,743,093.

Please provide us a schedule with full particulars which includes PAps
names, Project names and land parcel numbers to enable us formally
request the NLC to share copies of Valuation Reports and other
documents to enable provide specific response to the issues observed
whilst sharing copies of the documents received from NLC.

Not
Resolved
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In the circumstances, it was not possible to
confirm thc propricty and occurrence of the
payments.

5.2.5

Unsupported Euge Payments to
Individuals

Review of payrnents in rcspect of
developmurt showed that direct payments
totalling to Kshs.5,700,470,077 were made
to 125 individuals as shown in Appendix I
for a sample of Kshs.4,906,944,175.
Although Management has indicated that the
payments were effected by the National Land
Commission, no supporting documents were
provided such as valuation reports, proof of
ownership, acreage and approvals for the
payments,

In the circumstances, the propriety of the
payrDents could not be confinned.
In the circumstances, the propriety of the
unremitted compensations totalling to
Kshs.307,252,756 could not be confirmed.

Unsupported Euge Payments to Indivlduals

We agee with the observation that valuation rcports were not availed
for the sample ofKshs 4,906,9114,175 paid to125 PA?s since we did not
receive them from the NLC.

Based on your observation, we have written to the National Land
Commission requesting them for copies of valuation reports, proof of
ownerships, acreages and proof of remittances to individual PAPS.
Upon receipt of the requested documents from the NLC, the same will
immediately be formally shared with you.

Not
Resolved

6

Dormant Benk Accounts

The statements of financial position reflect
cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.13,993,053,067 as at hne, 2022.
Review of bank statements, cash books and

Dormant Benk Accountr

We agree with the audit observation that a total of IGhs. 128,989,967
representing cash balances in 6No. dormant bank accounts were
iacluded in the cash and cash equivalent balance of Kshs.

067 as at 30'h June 2022. We howeverl3 993 063 disasree with the

Resolved
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bank reconciliation statements revealed that
the Authority maintained dormant bank
accounts for road projects deemed complete
but for which, completion certificates had not
been issued. The accounts had no
hansactions during the financial year as

indicated below;

Flnancirl Insdtutlon
Amourt

(Krh!)
NCBA Bsnk-NCTIP 59.353.586
NCBA Bank-Timboroa-Eldorct 18.768.445

NCBA BEnk-Marssbit-Turbi
Account

3,226,6',14

NCBA Bsnk-EATTFP 12.136.917

NCBA Bsnk-KTSSP 7.732.595

National Bank-Sirari Corridor z't;t1t,750
Totrl r289t9967

Inclusion of the balances resulted in
overstatement of ba::k balances since they
ought to have been surrendered to The
National Treasury upon closure of the
projects.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of cash
and cash equivalents balance could not be
confirmed.

audit observation that the dormant bank accounts are for projects
deemed complete but for which completion certificates had not been
issued. Please note that all projects previously funded through the first
4No. bank accounts as tabulated by the auditor are complete, and
substantial completion certificates. and end of defects liability period
certificates were issued to the respective Contractors. What is however
outstanding is the submission of the final account by respective
contractors owing to the pending bills in each of the projects, which is
accruing interest on daily basis, resulting from inadequate budget
allocations over the project implementation period to date. Please note
that once the individual stock ofpending bill is cleared, the respective
contractors will prepare their final account which will contain the
interest on delayed payment due to them.

Apart from the bank account at National Bank of Kenya Ltd for the
Sirari Corridor whose Credit Agreement is still active and the two
projects namely Isebania - Kisii and Kisii - A.heto are still on, the
Crcdit Ageements for the other five projecs namely NCTIP; Timboroa
- Eldore! Turbi - Moyale; EATTFP and KTSSP have already closed.
Note that the balances in the 5No. dormant bank accounts whose credits
have since been closed represent interest earned to date. The entire
proceeds from the respective development parhers whose credits
closed were fully accounted for prior to the fonnal closure of the
respective development credit.

account balances and interest eamed to the Authority's AIA bank
account and close the six dormant bank accouns. This

The above position does however not hinder the process ofclosing the
dormant bank accounts. Please note that the Authority sought and
obtained the National Treasury approval to close the 6No. dormant bank
accounts (which included NUTRIP A./c at KCB Bank Ltd). Formal
communication was shared with the respective banks to transfer the

process has
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y been completed. Attached herewith for ease of reference are
copies of thc Board approvat &ted 27t October 2022 to close the
donnant bank accounts, the National Treasury approval dated I 

.r March
2023 approving the closure ofthe 6No. dormant bank accounts and our
two letters both dated l8th April 2023 instructing the respective banks
on closure of the 6No. dormant bank accounts marked as Appendix
K c NHA/OA G/M A,/2 0 2 l - 2 2/6

From the foregoing therefore, the inclusion ofthe above project,s bank
balances as part of cash and cash equivalents in the Authority,s
Financial Statements do not overstate the bank balances since the
balances are still under the purview ofthe Authority and arq held in the
Authorit/s bank accounts. Their inclusion in the financial statements
therefore ensures completeness of reporting and presentation of
financial statements which reflect a true and fair view ofthe Authority's
financial status.

alread

7

Unreconclled and Iong OuBtending
Current Receivables from Exchange
Transactions

The statement of financial position and as
disclosed at Note 23(a) to the financial
statements reflects current receivables from
exchange transactions balance of
Kshs.12,562,556,350 which includes
receivable from Roads Maintenance Fund of
Kshs. 11,855,854,651. However, review of
the Kenya Roads Board Fund financial
statements indicate that the Fuld owed the
Authority an amount of Kshs.

Unreconciled snd Long Outshnding Current Receivables from
Erchonge Trensections

We disagree with the audit observation that the Authority's receivables
from KRB was IGhs. 11,865,854,651 instead ofKshs. 10,257,336,897
as reported in KRB books resulting to a variance of Kshs.
1,608,517,754. Please note that the correct receivables from KRB as at
30th June 2022 was Kshs. I 1,865,854,651 as reported h the Authority's
main Finaacial SAtements for year ended 306 June 2022.

The above amount was firlly received from KRB after the year end in
three tranches as tabulated below.

Resolved

a
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Trrnche
no

Amount
rccelvcd

Drte of r.ceipt

I to8 20,s0't,829,433 From 30t Scpt 2(Dl
to I lr M8y 2022

9 2,t35,9 t2,607 4i tluty 2022
l0 3.948.808.980 8n \rly 2022
ll 5.781.133.064 t56 tuly 2022
Toarl 32J73,684,0t4 From 30rt Scpt 2021

to l5d JulY 2022

10,257,336,897 as at the same date resulting
in unreconciled difference of
Kshs. 1,608,517,754.

Further, the balance include receivable from
Kenya Urban Roads Authority and Kenya
Rural Roads Authority of Kshs.6,755,843
and Kshs.8,195,298 respectively. However,
the balances have not becn reflected as

payables in the financial statements of the
two roads agencies.

In addition, currcnt receivables from
exchange transactions include travel imprest
balarce of Kshs.18,065,290 out of which an
amount ofKshs.5,38l,l35 due from four (4)
officers had been outstanding for more than
thrce months.

2
3

4

The total amount received against the last 3No. tranches from the Kenya
Roads Board sums up Kshs. 11,865,854,651 hence our total RMLF
resources of Kshs . 32,373,684,084. Attached for your ease of reference
please see our schedule of disbursements from KRB for Ff 202l/2022
marked as A p p e n dix K e N H.UO A G/R M L F /D R/2 0 2 1 -2 2r2

We agrce with the audit observation that the 2 road agencies namely
KURA and KeRRA may have failed to record the same amounts due to
KoNHA in respect of sharcd services at Barabara Plaza as payables in
their books of accounts. Please note that we had formatly advised the
two road agancies of the amounts payable to the Authority as soon as
the payments were made. KURA has since paid a total of Kshs.
7,853,336.60 on 30fr March 2023. As per the payment remittance, the
above amount includes Kshs. 6,755,843. We are still following up with
KeRRA to pay their Kshs. 8,195,298 plus the additional bills past June
2022.

We agree with this observation. These amounts were outstanding as
tabulated below
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In the circumstances, the accwacy and

recoverability of current rcccivables from
exchange transactions balance of
IGhs.12,562,556,350 could Dot be

ionfirmed.

Employee I I 10660 and I 110676 are undertaking a Japan International
Co-operatiou Agency (JICA) sponsored traidng in Japan, for Masters
& PHD programmes respectively. They are therefore eligible to a 25%
living allowance for the duration of study. This period of study is not
yet over and as such the amount are not due for surrender/recovery. The
amounts outstanding for employees 1110436 & 1110662 have since
been recovered in full at Kshs 190,000 and Kshs 42,500 respectively
from their payroll in the months of June, July, and August 2022.
Attached and marked, u Appendix KeNH/./OAG/1V{A.C202I-22/7(i) is t
copy of memo ref. KeNHA/07.A/Vol.8l 234 dated l7'b June to Human
Resource Departnent advising on payroll recoveries and copies of the
staff sub-ledgers' printouts confirming full recoveries of the un-
surrcndcred imprests.

iv^
I

Tolrl E

I

127

I I t0660
2022

Il t(x36
ll

Acturl lnpr..t
hr!.d (l&t.r)

A&uil' raaovcrad
r. rt 30' Ju!. tr012
(Ktt!)

Eo0loy..
No.

Aout
ortitrldhg t
rt 30' Jun.

8

Refundable Deposits from Customers
The statement of financial position reflects
refundable deposits from customers
amounting to Kshs.195,479,839 as disclosed
at Note 29 to the financial statemeats. The
amount includes customer balances totalling
Kshs.49,,142,512 which date back to bcrween
?0l0l20ll utd 201612017 financial years
and had rernained unclaimed as at 30 June.

Refundeble Deposlts from Customers
We agrce with the observation that there are old outstanding customer
deposits being held by the Authority.

The applicants for road-side developments are required to apply for the

refundable deposits once they have completed the works as per the

Not

Resolved
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2022, which raises doubts on the existence
and authenticity ofthe balances. It is not clear
why the deposits had not been surrendered to
the Unclaimed Financial Assets Authority as

required by law.

In the circumstances, the existence of
refundable deposits from customers balance
ofKshs.195,479,839 could not be confirmed.

ons. However, some of the applicants have not applied

for refund ofdeposits either because;

a) The applicants are still utilizitrg the wayleave for repairs and

maintenance of their installed infrastructure especially fibre optic

cables, water and sewage lines, electricity lines, access to road side

businesses especially petrol stations

b) A few applicants ran into frnancial difficulties and are as yet to

complete the works and are therefore not able to apply for the

refundable deposits.

c) The applicant carried out the works as per the approval conditions

but after completion of the works the applicant lost interest in

applying for the refundable deposits.

The Authority is carrying out a comprehensive audit of the all the

approved roadside developments with expired completion period and

the deposits not applied for, with the view of refunding the deposits to

those applicants who followed the approval conditions and works were

supervised by Engineer's representative.

We will fiuther engage with those applicants who are facing diffrculties
in completing the works either due to financial difficulties or other
challenges and agree on the way forward to facilitate the ielease oftheir
deposits if they are due.

approval conditi
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Eng. Kungu Nd
Director General
Date..........,.......,,...,.

These deposits have not been surrendered to the Unclaimed Financial
Assets Authority since in-line with the Unclaimed Financial Assets Act
2011 Section 18, it is only Assets held for dre owner by a court or a

Govemment deparhnent that remains unclaimed by the owner for more
than one year after becoming payable or distributable is presumed
abandoned. Owing to the challenges outlined above these amounts have
not become payable and as such cannot be deemed unclaimed.

Emphasis of Matter Emphasis of Metter

I

Contingent Liabllities
(Matter used as a brsis for emphasis that
the Authority'c operationc would be
adversely affected if the liabilities were to
crystallize)
I draw attention to page 46 of the financial
statemsnts where the Management has
disclosed court cases against the Authority,
unclaimed interest on works and land
acquisitions and unresolved contractual
claims totralling to Kshs.65,707,923,295
(2020-2021: IGhs.13,327,522,598).
Management is of the opinion that the
outcome of these litigations and claims were
yet to be determined. However, the Authority
operations would be adversely affected if the
liabilities were to crystallise.

Contingent Liabllities
(Matter used as r basis for emphasis that the Authority,s
operations would be adversely affected if the liabilities were to
crystdlize)

We agree with the audit observation that the Authority had a Contingent
Liability of Kshs. 65,707,923,295 as at 30th June 2022. It is important
to note that 92%o of the contingent liabilities amounting to Kshs
60,31435I,805 relates to on-gong litigation which the Authority is

conlident of obtaining favourable judgements in many of them.

Not
Resolved
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Appendil [I: Projects implemented by the Authority

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development parbers and/ or the Government

No. Project tltle ProJect No. Donor Period/
Dur.tion

Doror commitment
(Krhs)

Scparate
donor
reportlng
rcquired
os pcr the
dooor
rgreemeIt
(Ycs/No)

Consolldate
d in these
llnancial

strt€mcnts

Horn of Africa Gatcway
DcvcloDmcnt Proicct

6768-KE IDA 01. t0.2020-30.06.2028 85,606,606,960 Ycs Ycs

2. MPARD/Mombasa Gatc
Bridce

KE-P29 MPARD.JICA 02.0 6.20 I 2-3 r. 12-2027 22,089 ,969 ,t2l Ycs Ycs

3

Epc/TurD Kcy
comtsuction ofFivc
Footbridgcs & T-M8tl
Flyover in Mombasa &
Lansata RoEd

KEN-o 100 r-r9 & KEN-0200r -l 9 Spanish Govcmment r2.l r.2019-31.01.2024 4,286,595,200 Ycs Yes

I Regional Mombasa Port
Acccss Projcct-Lot
2/Kitsle-Morpu!

20206 t9 t9 n020839 39 &2020 6206s Kfw
01.08.20r7-31.12.202r 19,120,725,600 Ycs Ycs

5

East AAics Rcgiolal
Transport,Trsdc &
Devclopmcnt Facilitation
Proicct

5638-KE IDA 20.o'1 .20 t 5 -3 t. t2.202 I 46,158,383,724 Ycs Ycs

6 AfDB 2000130015238 ADB 09.06.20r ?-08.05.2021 46,243 ,9t't ,823 Ycs Ycs

7 China -EXIM BLA20l6K00t China -EXIM 26. 1 I.201 6-3 t.12.2020 32,499,08E,819 Ycs Yes

I
Rcgional Mombasa Port
Acccss
Projcct: Lot 2
Kws Jomw - Marialslli

81010 ETB 01.08.2017-31.12.2020 5,842,860.000 Ycs Ycs
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Appendir III: Stetus of Projects completion

Cr.dlt dd. Cr.dl Nrmbcr DonorlPaltrar P.rl. I}urr
doa

Donor/PartDar
CoEolb.nt

Toil crp.trd.d

ProJccb
CoElplatlo!

?6 to drt
( w.ltthd

Annud Brdt t
(xtha)

Acturl prr
qurlt.t
(tGh,.)

NUTRIP- Sl,lGl(8 IDA 24.t22012-
31.12-2018

19,140,160,5,tS 3,141,819,952

KTSSP 4926KE &5410.K8 IDA 23.05.201l-
I l.l220lt 33258J66,990 3t,673,?50,335

3. AfDB 200t) t 300I 5238 A'DB lD.lxrol7.
1t.t2.2C21 94,39.868.010 60,166,6t r,050 r 5.600.868.102 3J57.t97.005

4, Chin -EXIM Bt-A20 t 6K00r Chim.SXIM
26.t l20tG
1t.122020 33,253,356,990 36,t13,22\n1 4,730.m0,000 1,713,t02.528

5. EARTTDFP IDA EARTTDFP 20.0720t5-
lt.t22ol 117,870,162,ti:10 12,106,328,422 33E2.m0.000 581,t92.400

6. MPAR"UMornb$. Ortc
BridgdMomb.lr SEZ

KE-?29NE.P32IKE.
P34KBP3J

MPARD-'ICA
02,0620t2-
!t.124021 1L4,969,423,779 30,257,626,339 3.910,000,000 l ,249,006, 162

7 NETIP IDA NETIP 67,920,000,000 4elm5,528,423

a HoAODP 676&KE IDA 07.103)2G
t0-05.2ln8 85,505,5{r,960 705,629,840 r J50,000,000 473,r59.5t4

9 Porr Rcitz^.{omb.n
lnicmdiond
AirDorr/Mrgorgo Ro.d
Dtrdli!r

TMEA
0r.04.20t8.
31.012023

3,605,947,0(X 3.810,149.48s

10. R.gior.l Momb.t Porr
Acccr! Ptoi€cl/Kitrle

2U)061919n02062c65d7
02083939

Kfw
01.082017"
31.122021

19,120.725.6m 3,184,589,1(X l. t 50,000,000 r,l20J8t,t57

Rcgion l Mombrt! Pon E10t0 Ets 01.0t2017-
3t.t2202t 5,842,860,mO 1,258,172,563 2,000,000.000 t258,t72.563

Nuno-Modo8rthc Rord
Prcjcct

l33lP 6?9 0596 0 8lJ OPEC
AMd/BADEAA.udi
ADd/Kuwrit
Fund,/Abu DMbi

20.1t:015-
rt.r t.2019

5,749,310,633 1,587,37&072

t3 F+c/fum Kcy
conttuction ofFivc
Foorblidgc. & T.M.ll
FlloY6 in Mornb.i &
t..llrdr Rod

KEN{t00t-19 & KEN-
02ml-19

Sprnidr Govtrnmcrt

t 2l t.2019.
)1.0t.2t21 4,285,59S,2m 3,578.157.856 I 200.000,000 34,772568
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Appendix IV: Transfers from Other Government Entities

Name of the
MDA/-Donor
Trensferring the
funds

Where Recorded./recognized

Date recelved rs
per bcnk
stat€ment

N.ture:
Recurrcnt/
Dcvclopmcnt/
Othcrs

Total Amount
. KES

Strtement of
Finrrtcid
Performenc
e Crpltal FuEd

Dcferred
Income Rec€ivables

Oth€rs -
must be
specitic

Total
Trensfers
durlng the
Year

A,
RECURRENT

Kenya Roads Board
I 7 Novcmbcr 2022 Rccunlnt 3,654,099J48 3,654.099,548 3,654,099,548

Kenya Roads Board
16 Dcccmbcr 2022 R€currcll 5,s18227 3ss 5,57t,227 )55 5,5?8227,355

Kenya Roads Board
02 March 2023 Rccurrcnt 2,s36 982,526 2,s36,982526 2,s36,982,s26

Kenya Roads Board
02 Mafth 2023 Rccufirnt 39,039,432 39,039,132 39,039,432

Kenya Roads Board
23 Msrch 2023 RccudEnt 2,485 295,194 2,485,295,794 2,485,295,794

Kenya Roads Board
0t Apnl 2023 RccurrEnt 7,061,520,833 7,061.520,833 ?,06t,520,833

Kenya Roads Board
0l Junc 2023 Rcc1rrrcnt 2,090,92930r'. 2,09O.9293M 2,@0,929.3U

Kenya Roads Board
29 fun 2023 Rcaurrrnt r,604.405,863 1,604,405.863 1,604.405,863

Kenya Roads Board
29 lnn 2023 Rccurrcnt 499,960,568 499.960,s58 499,960,568

Kenya Roads Board 29 tlJn 2023 Rccrltlrnl s27,801t13 527,N7 573 521,807,57)
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Kenya Roads Board
? Novcrnbq 2042 Dce.lopmcnt 525,m0,000 525,000,000 525,000,000

Kenya Roads Board
03 Mirch 2023 Dcvtlopmc,flt t25,000,000 525,000,000 525,000,000

Kenya Roads Board
30 Murh 2023 Davclopmcnt 525,000,000 525,000,000 525,000,000

Kenya Roads Board
29 htn 2023 DcvclopEant 525,000.000 525,000,000 525,000,0()0

Totel 2t,17t358J96 26,018,26&796 2,t00.000.000 2E,t7816&?96

B.
DEVELOPMENT

MOTIHUD & PW 08 August 2022 Dcvdopmcnt 700,000,000 700,000,000 700,000.000

MOTIHUD & PW 08 August 2022 Dcvdopocnt 3,950,000,000 1,950,000000 3,9s0,000.000

MOTIHUD & PW 30 SQtcmbcr 2022 Dcvalopmcnt 1,017,548,049 1,017,548,049 l.0t?,548.049

MOTIHUD & PW 30 Scptlmbc 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 250,000,000 250,000,000 250,m0,000
MOTTHUD & PW

30 Scptcmbq 2022 Dcvclopmant 1288Jm337 1,2EE,500,237 r,288,500,237

MOTTHUD & PW l5 Novcmbcr 2022 D.wlopmcnt 250,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,000

MOTIHUD & PW l0 Fcbru&y 2023 Devclopmcnt 250,m0,000 250,000,000 250,000,000

MOTIHUD & PW l0 Fcbrulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 1,216229,351 1,276,229351 | ,27 6229,151

MOTIHUD & PW 25 Mt 2023 Devclopmcnt I ,853,022.341 1,853,022J47 1,853p22,347

MOTIHTJD & PW 25 M.y 2023 Dcvclopmcnt | 206,944,169 1,206,944469 1,206,944369

MOTIHUD & PW 14 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 250,000,000 250,000,000 2s0,000,000r
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MOTIHUD & PW 71 1,ux..2023 Dcvclopmcnt 309,716,874 109,146,874 309,146,874

MOTIHUD & PW 27 \r c2027 Dcvclopmcnt I ,900,000,000 1,900,000,000 1,900,000,000

MOTIHUD & PW 30 Junc 2023 Rccurlmt 472,531,624 472,s7r,624 (472,533,6241 410,02a.t24

MOTIHIJD & PW 30 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 66,500,000 66.500,000 65,500,000

t1,56E,191,ir1 412,533,624 14,095Js7,701 t4 $68,491)27

C. Development

Partner Receipts

IDA

02 Novcmb€r 2022 Dcvclopment 46,805,457 46,805.457 46,805,457

05 J.nulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 235.6t 7Jt8 235.517,318 235,617,318

30 Mrrch 2023 Dcvelopmcrt 161,3,14,130 t5t,344,130 l5l,l,l4,l30

30 March 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 219280,792 2t9,280,192 219280,792

Totrl 663,U1$n fi3,0.1,697 663,017,697

D. DIrect Payments

African
Development Brnk
(AJDB)

14 J,uly 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 3,1?5,834 3,r75,834 3,175,834

t4 hly2022 Dcvclopmcnt 7,88t,667 7,88r,667 7,88t,667
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14 \tly 20D. Drvclopfiart 9,6t5,t52 9,615,t52 9,6r5,152

28 \rly2022 DcYalopmcnt 53,166,678 st466,618 53,,166,678

0l Augult 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 7,053,633 7,053,533 7,053,633

0l Augull 2022 DcvclopDcol 9,875,045 9.8?5,046 9,875,046

0l Augun 2f22 Davdopmcnt 29,433,630 29,433,630 29A3X,630

0l Augult 2022 Dcvelopmant 50.16t,E06 50,r5r.806 50,16t.806

0l Augult 2022 D.vclopEcot 2,?l229s 225229s 22s229s

0l Augult 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 6426,146 6,426,746 6A26,746

0l AuSud 2022 DcvclopmcDt /O5,640 405,640 405,640

0l Augult 2(2:I Dcwlopmcnt r0J69,560 10,369,560 10,369,560

0 I August 2022 Dcvclopma'lt 2,6863t9 2,6863r9 2,686.319

0 I Autust 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 7,28,1,138 ?.284,138 7,28/,138

0 I Augult 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 7,41E3l5 7,4r 8J l5 ?,418,315

0l Autud 2022 Dcwlopmcnt 2,735 91E 2,115,918 2,73s,918

0 I Augusl 2022 Dcvclopmcot I I1.759,836 l l 1,759,836 I I 1,7s9,836

0 I Augult 2022 Dcvrlopmqrt 33,571,550 33,571.550 33,571,550

0l Augusl 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 21,782,800 27,782,t00 27.782,800

24 AuSusl 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 3 r,476,178 !t,476,t7E 3t,476,t78
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24 Autust 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 53,&2,781 53,6/'2,787 53,642,187

24 August 2022 Dcvclopm!nt tM,7U)32 104,784,t32 tu,184,332

24 Auglst 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 212t4.s68 21,214,568 27,214,568

24 AuSult 2022 DcvalopEcut m,597,413 90,597,413 90,597,4t3

24 August 2022 Davclopiocnt 45,380,004 46,380,004 46380,004

25 AuSurl 2022 Dcvclopmant 49,50t,559 49,501,569 49,501.569

25 August 2022 Devclopmcnt 72,71t,619 72,71t,6t9 72,77t,619

25 Augult 2022 Dcv.lopmcnt 2t,&9,621 2t,4W.621 2t,409.62t

Devclopm!nt 85,550,16225 Augult 2022 85,550,362 85,550,362

25 Augusl 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 25,t69,165 25,169,t65 25,169,165

25 AugBt 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 79,il7,287 79,601,287 79,607 287

25 August 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 23,420,695 23,420,695 21,420,695

2t Autult 2022 Dcvclopmcnt r,88E,624 r,888,524 1.888,624

28 AugBt 2022 Dcvclopmcnt t,817,710 t,831,170 |,837,710

2E Augult 2022 Dcvclopmcnt r,l l l J2E I,l I I,528 I,l l l,528

Dcvclopmclt2t August 2022 2,287,689 2,2E7,689 2,287,689

0l Scptcmbcr 2022 Dcvllopmcnt 6,157,000 6,157,000 6,15?,000

0l S.ptc.lrrb6 2022 Dev!lopncrt 108.m0 10E,000 108,000
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0l S.prcmb.r 2022 Dc'/rlopment 2,n1,738 2,771,738 2,n\718

l2 Scptcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt s,769,@2 5,169,W s,169,@?

23 Scptembcr 2022 Davdopmdlt 65$57,449 6s,651149 65,6s7149

23 SQtcdrbcr 2022 Dcvclopmc 104,192.153 104,192,r53 104,192.153

26 Scptcmbd 2022 Dcvclopme 24,566,@7 24,566.N7 24565,007

26 S.ptcmbc. 2022 Dcvaloprncot 69,447,EE6 69,,14?.EE6 69,447.8E6

25 Scptcmba 2022 Dcvcloprlctrt 27,96t,6s2 27,96t,652 27,96t,652

26 S.ptcmbcr 2tr22 Dcwlopmcnt 23,r40,218 23,1402t8 23,140,218

26 S.ptcmbcr 2022 Devclopmcnt 919U,460 93,0E4,460 93,084360

I 4 October 2022

DrvdopEaDt
t80,920,472 tEo,920,472 tE0,920A12

14 Octobcr 2022 Dcvclopmcat 25,649,896 25,649,896 25,649,896

I 7 Octobcr 2022 Dcvllopmcnt 7,947,126 7,947,726 't,941,726

I 7 Octobcr 2022 Dcvclopm.nt 2,8r',0,074 2,W,074 2,8r',0,O4

17 Ociobd 2022 Dcvclopm.i[ 7,101,842 7, t01.842 7,101,842

17 Motu2022 Dcvcloplrcnt 2,678A55 2,678,455 2,67E,45s

l7 Octobcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 2,130,7 t6 2,730,7t6 2,730,716

l7 Octoba. 2022 Dcvclopmcn! 7,fi1,8U 1,6.7,89 7,607,84

2l Octobrr 2022 Dcvclopmant 56r,000 561,m0 561,000

69



Kenya Netional llighways Authorlty
Annual Reports and Finrncial Stltements
for the r ended 30th June 2023.

551,0002l oclobcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 561,000 561,000

2l Octobc( 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 49,307,t86 49,307,t 86 49,307,r86

2l octob.r 7022 Dcvclopmcnt 167,595,853 I67,595,851 167,595,853

DcvclopmcDt 90,840,E21 90,840.8212l Oct&ct 2022 90,840.821

Dcvalopmcut 26,125,633 26,725,63321 Octob.r 2022 26,725,633

3, r98,600 3.19t,6002lOctober2022 Dcvclopncot 3,198,600

Dcvclopmcnt 36r59,965 36,259,96521 October 2022 362s9,96s

21 Octobcr 2022 Dcvelopmcnt 30,007,650 30,00?,650 30,007,650

t20.109519 t20,109,57927 Octob.r 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 120,709 ,5't9

Dcvclopmcnt 64,754,129 64;154,t2902 Novcmb.r 2022 64,754,129

Dcvelopmcnt 19,45 t,500 19,45 t,50002 Novcmbcr 2022 19,451,500

02 Novcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 29,rc/.,M9 29,304,M9 29,3U,U9

I t2,895,147 I12.895,1470l Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt | 12,895,t47

2t,065.031 28,065.03t0l Dcc.mbd 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 28,065,01I

Dcvclopmcnl 3t,912,586 13,9t 2,5860l December 2022 33,912.586

Dcvclopmcnt t57,28s,573 157,285,5?314 Dccc,rnbd 2022 157,2E5,573

Dcvclopmcot 17 247,032 47,247,03214 Dcclmba 2022 47,247,032

14 Dccaibcr 2022 Dcl/llopm.trr 401s6203 40,456303 40,,156,203
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02 JrlurIy 2O2! Dcvrlopmht 3,062,633 3,062,533 3,062,633

02 Jrnuary 2023 DGecloprncnt 255,000 255,000 255,000

02 lunt ry2AT Dlrclopmcnt 1,977,179 7,977,429 7,977,429

02 hDulry 2023 D!vclop!ocnt 3,M2J9l 3,U2,79t 3,U2,191

02 hDu.ry 2021 Dcvclopmcrt 2,8r',0,014 2,M,0,074 2,8/,0,074

02 J&ruiry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 7,947,126 7,941,726 7,941,126

02 Jaruqy 2023 Dcvclopmcot 2239,786 2239,186 2,219,186

02 J$usry 2023 Drwlopmcnt 8,835,r l0 8.835,r l0 8,835,1l0

02 J.ou.ry 2023 Dcvdopmcot 2,699243 2,699243 2,699243

02 ,murry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 8,315,818 8,315,838 8,315,838

02 J.nusry 2021 Dcvclopmcot 15,693,781 15,693,781 15,693,781

05 J.nuary 2023 Dcv.lopmcnt 495,680 495,680 495,680

l0 Jmu.ry 2023 D!vclopmcot 106,222,814 106,222,814 t06222,tt4

l0 J.ttuery 2023 Dewlopmcnt 509s6,792 50956,192 50956,792

I 0 J.nu.ry 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 31908,2E3 31808183 31,908,283

13 J.nu.r, 2(n3 Dev.topmc 40,067,123 40,067,123 40,067,t23

13 Jmulry 2023 DcvllopmcDt x2,79,t9t 32,782,t9t 32,782,t91

I 3 J8urry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 109,273,97t 109273,97 t t@,27397t
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l3 Jlntlffy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 255,1I 1,785 255,r r 1,785 255, 1,785

13 Janurry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 93,5,r0B88 93,540,988 93,540,988

I 3 hnurry 2023 Devclopmcnt 75,533,535 ?6,533,535 76,533,535

13 Jltlulrry 2m3 DcvclopD.at 60311,795 60,381,795 60,38t,795

l3 Juurry 2023 Developmdt 73.199,97 t 13,799,97 t 73,799,971

13 Juu!ry 2023 Dcvclopmcnl 20t,272,49 20t,272,U9 20t 272,&9

I 3 ,.tu!ry 2023 D.vclopmcnt 561,000 561,000 561,000

I 3 Janu.ry 2023 Dcvcloprhcnt 561,000 s6l,000 56r,000

I 3 January 2023 Dcvclopmcnt I,r98500 3,198,600 3, r98,600

l3 Jrnulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 78,000 78,000 ?8,000

l3 hou!ry 2021 Dcvclopmcnt 2,7s8,952 2,758,9s2 2,758,952

I 3 Jrnu.ry 2023 Davclopmcnt 6,707,000 6.707.000 6,707,000

l3 Janu&y 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 6,752,730 6,752,730 6,752,730

I 3 Jsnurry 2023 Dcvalopmcnt 242,210 242,210 242,210

I 3 Jsnualy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2.989.848 2,989,84r 2,989,848

l3 Jlnulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,711,138 2,713,738 2,773,718

l3 Janulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt t 08,000 t08,000 108,000

13 J.rury 2023 DcYdopmGtrt 5.707,000 6.707.000 6,707,000
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l3 Jlnulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 3262,830 3,262,830 3,262,830

l3 Juulry 2ml Dcvclopmcnt t 68,000 168,000 168,000

l3 Jrnuery 2023 Dcvelopmcnt 5.037,000 6,017,000 6,037,000

l3 Jeruffy 2023 Dcvalopmcnt 2.840,074 2,8r'0,074 2,840,074

I 3 J.nulry 2023 DcvclopE.ot 7,670,500 7,570J00 7,670,500

I 7 JrDulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 63,460,641 63,460,64 r $A@,At

I 7 Januuy 2023 Davclopmclt 27,187,696 21,t81,696 27,181,596

l7 Jrnudy 2023 Dsvclopmcnt 121,420,1t3 l2 r,420,I l3 t21,420,t t3

l7 hrNlry 2021 Dcvclopmcnt 762st,867 76,251,E67 7625t,861

I 7 January 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,824,870 2,824,870 2,824,8?0

l7 hn'!!rty 2023 Dcwlopmcot 7 363,572 1,363,s72 1,363,572

I 7 Jlnu8ry 2023 Dcvelopmcnt 9.676.590 9,676,590 9.676.590

l7 Jur&y 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,144,t62 2,344,t62 2,344,t62

18 Jrnurry 2m3 Dcvclopmcnt 7E,000 ?8,000 78,000

l8 JaDuity 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,7589s2 2,758952 2,758,9s2

l8 Jrnurty 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 6,707,000 6,707,000 6,707,000

25 houlIy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt t29,s222U t29,5222E4 129,522284

25 htru.ry 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 32,t98,434 32,t98,434 !2,t98,434
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25 lrnlrry 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 38,907 2t4 38,907,2t4 38,907,2t4

26 !.irrrty 2021 DrvElopmcnt 306,988 305,988 306,988

26 lanwy 2023 Dcvclopmani 33,34?,280 33,347,280 33,347,280

26 J.nusry 2023 Dcv.lopn&nt 9, 0,866 9,810.866 9,810,866

26 lrll.t ty 2023 Dcvclop6ant n5,4o4?52 I ts,4u2s2 t ts,4u 2s2

26 J&u!ry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 31,952266 33,952,266 33,952,266

26 Jrnuary 2023 Dcvclopmcnt I t,538,213 r t,538213 I1,538.213

26 Jrnulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 68.342,280 68,142,280 6E,342,280

25 Jrnuuy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 30,544,192 30,544.t92 30,5,{4,192

26 lallluary 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 580,980 580,980 580,980

26 JaDurry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 1.244,437 1244,431 I,244,437

26 J'.ntuny 2023 Dcvclopmcnt t,590,235 r,s90,23s t,590,235

26 Jmu3ry 2@3 Dcv.lopmqrt 2,U3,375 ?,u3,33s 2,M3,335

30 JDUrry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,755,100 2,755,700 2,755,700

30 Jatrurry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt l,09r,326 1.091.326 1,09t,326

30 Jmuary 2@3 Dcvclopmcnt 2,783,000 2,7E3,000 2,783,000

30 Juu.ry 2023 Dcvrlopmcnt I,474,765 t,411,765 I,474,765

30 rraurry 202! Dcvdopmcnt r:78,800 1,278,800 1,278.E00
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30 J.nu.ry 2023 DcYalopmcnt 419,165 149,765 449,765

30 Jeru!ry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 400,000 400,000 400,000

30 Jmutry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,643221 2,Q1227 2,&3?21

07 Fcbruuy 2023 Dc'rclopmcot 2,1 ,7y9 2,790,199 2.790,199

07 Fdruary 2023 DcwlopEcot 108,m0 t08,000 108.000

07 Fcbrurry 2023 Dcvalopmcot 6,70?.000 6,707,000 6,70?,000

07 Fcbrulry 2023 Dcvclopmcot 2,396,71s 2,396,745 2,196,14s

07 Fcbrudy 2023 Davclopment 2,169339 2,769339 2,769)39

07 Fcbrulry 2023 Devclopmcnt 7,393,660 ?,393,660 7,393,660

09 Fcbrusry 2023 Dcvclopmdlt 228A67 379 228,467 379 228,467 319

09 Fcbrurry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 68,540314 68,5402t4 68,5,(),214

09 Fcbrusy 2023 DcvclopInGnt E3,77 | 31t 83.?71.373 47,77t,313

20 Fcbruty 2023 Dcvclopmcnt I1,847.4t4 I t,84?,414 I |,947,4t4

20 Fcbruiry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 5269,000 5,269,000 5,269,000

20 F.brulry 2021 Dcvclopm.nt 3,951,750 3,951,750 3,951,750

20 Fcbru.ry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 3.95 r.750 3,951,750 3,95t,750

0l M&ch 2023 Dcvcloprncnt 2,554,t06 2,554,106 2,554,106

0l Mqqh 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,541,t06 2,5,t4.106 2,544,t06
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0l M!rch 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 140,695,1l8 1,10,695,I l8 t40,695,1l8

0l M.Ith 2023 D.vclopmcrt 4t,192,912 4t,392,9t2 4t,392,9t2

0l Mrlch 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 9,319,553 9,3 t9.553 9,319,551

0l Msnh 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 13,640,681 13,640.681 13,640.6t I

0l Mlrch 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,885,348 2,886,348 2,886,348

01 March 2023 D.vclopmeol 10E,000 108,000 108,000

0l Mrrch 202f Dcvclopmcnt 5,707,000 6.707,000 6.707,000

07 MsrEh 2023 Dcvalopmcnt 40,r00,008 40,100,008 40,100,008

08 Merch 2023 Dcvclopmant 9,$026/. 9,s102U 9,530,264

08 Mlrch 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 7t9,000 789,000 7E9,000

08 Mrrch 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 34,t 18,956 34.r r8.956 34,1r8,956

08 M!r6h 2023 Dcvclopmcnt I13,5t2,151 | 11,582,I5l I 13,582.15t

0t M&ch 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 37,983,894 37,983,t94 37,983,894

09 Mly 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 56,937,968 s6,937,96t 56,937,968

09 M.y 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 31,5?0318 3l,570,418 3 t,5?0,418

09 Miy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 63,825,2r0 63,825,210 63,E25,2t0

@ M.y 2023 Dewlopmcnt 21240,113 21,240,333 27,240,333

l5 Mty 2023 DcGbpnart l05JmJ80 t05200,3E0 105"200,380
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15 Mly 2023 Dcvclopnrcnt 26250,8t7 26,2s0,8t1 262s0,8t7

15 Mly 2023 Dcvcloptncflt 5,697 )69 5,691,369 5,697 369

18 May 2023 Dcvelopmcnt 14,588,612 r4,588,612 14,588,612

I8 May 2023 DcwtopDcat 1,081274 3,087 274 3,087 274

l8 Mly 2023 D.vclopdctrt 78,000 78,000 78.000

l8 M.y 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 6,840,890 6,840,890 6,840.890

l8 Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcot 3210,312 3,2t0,312 3,210J r2

l8 Msy 2023 Dcvclopmcut 8,760J85 8,760385 8,760,385

19 Mry 2023 Dcvrlopmcnt 192y,825 79254,825 19,2s4,825

19 Mry 2023 Dcvrlopmcnt 21316,99 23,3r6,99 23,3 r5.99

l9 May2023 Dcv.lopr!cnt &,135,328 64.135.328 64,135,328

25 Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 203,09r,895 203.09r.89s 203,094,E95

25 Mry 7021 Dcvalopment 23,6U,9t5 23.684.915 23,6U,91s

25 Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,840,073 2,84,073 2,840,073

25 May 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 7,5t0,428 7,5t0,428 7,510,428

25 May 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 3,229,838 3"229,838 3,229,838

25 May 2023 Dcvdopmcnt 9)3626s 9,13626s 9)3626s

26Ma 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 25,903,785 25,903.785 25,903,785
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3l Mry 2021 Dcvclopmcnt 2,741,603 2,743,603 2,743,603

3l M.y 2023 Drv.lopmcnt 247,4ot,234 247,401,214 247,401,234

llMly2023 Davclopmcnt 72,786,t@ 12,786,t60 72,786,t60

3l Mry 2023 DcvrlopEcnt 96275,789 9627s,789 96,275,789

3l May 2023 DcvclopEcat 21,508,109 21,508.309 21,508.309

02lvnc2023 DcvclopmcDt t,67 t 278 1,67 t 218 1,67 t 278

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,70t,600 2,701,600 2,701,600

02 l$.2O73 Dcvclopmant 1,744,200 |,744200 t,74420o

02 Junc 2023 Dcveloptr|cnt 2,691,636 2,691,636 2,697,636

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 3,133,600 3,133600 3,133,600

02 ,unc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 298,t52,7U 798,t52,7U 298,t52,1U

02 Jun.2023 Dcvclopmcni 89,,r45,E1I 89,445,8n 89,2145,81 I

02 )!nc2023 DcvclopDcnt t09,322,6s8 109,322,65t 109J22,65r

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 1,810,61 I 1,810,6t I 1,8t 0,61 I

02 tvnc2021 DcvclopmcDt 78,000 ?8,000 78,000

O21nn 2073 Dcvclopmcnt 7,605,641 7,505,641 7,605,641

01tunc7073 DcvGlopmcl 49,t75 49,t?S 49,1?5

02 \tic207t Dcvelopncnt 4,84E,4E9 4,848,489 4,848,4t9
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02 Junc 2023 Dcrclopftcnt 382,500 382,500 382,500

02 Junc 2023 Dcvtlopmcnt 2,194,162 2,794462 2,794A62

02 Jun.2023 Dcvclopmcnt 7,937,658 1,931,658 7,931,658

02 l,unc2073 Dcvclopmctrt 2.$6.3U 2.936,!64 2,936,39

02 Junc 2023 D.vclopEc!t 7,353,671 7,353.571 7,353,671

021tunc2023 Davclopment 2,t,,0,O74 2,840,074 2,E,0,O74

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 't,353.61t 7 353,671 7,353,611

02 JuDc 2023 Dcvdopmcot 77 930,997 77,930,@7 77,930,091

02 Jurc 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 23,419t431 23,409,431 21,4W,43t

02 ,unc 2023 Dcvclopm.nt 3't,38/,321 37,384,12t 37,38r'.,32t

02 Juoe 2023 DcvcloFnctrt 2,631,500 2.634,500 2,634,500

02 Junc 2023 Dcv.lopmcnt 4t,17 t,35t 4t,7?1,35 r 4l,771,351

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 139,057,008 r39,057,008 r39,057,008

02 JuDc 2023 Dcvrlopmar 29989,591 29,989,597 29,989,597

06 Jurc 2021 Dcvclopmcnt r08,824.?98 108,824,798 108,824.?98

2l Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,540,350 2,540,350 2,540,3s0

21 ln 2023 Dcvcloptnant 39129& 3,932960 3,932,9@

2l Junc 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 24,0t6,4t6 24,0t6,416 24,016,416
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2l Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 68,133,406 68,t33,406 68,133,406

2l ,unc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 59,589,248 59,589.248 59,589'248

2l Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 3,312,7n 3,312,722 3,312,722

2l Junc 2023 Dcvclopmrnt 9,120,731 9.t20,731 9,t20,?3t

2l Junc 2021 Dcvelopmcnt 2,938,603 2.938,603 2,938,603

2l Junc 2021 Dcvclopmcrlt t0.r01.360 10,101,360 10.101.360

2l Junc 2023 DcvclopmcDt 5,453,306 5,453,305 5,453,306

2l !UJl.c202X Dcwlopmcnt 7,446,012 7,446,072 7,446,072

2l Jutlc 2023 D!velopmcDt t t6,527,47E I t6,527,418 I t6,527 A78

2l Jun€ 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 35,003,703 35,003,701 35,003,703

2l Junc 2023 Dcv.lopmcnt 1,443165 1,443465 |,443A6s

2l Junc 2023 Dwelopmcnt 57,1532M 57,753,204 57,753,2U

2l lnn 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 17,348,492 t7,348,492 t7,348A92

2l !$c2O23 Dcvclopmcnt 21,105,14t 71,105,t41 21,705,141

22lrnc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 19J13,970 39J r3,970 39,313,970

22 tnnc7021 Devclopmcnt 208,469,834 208,469.834 208,469,834

221unc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 90,854,1,11 90,8t. r41 90,t54, r4t

22 tuui.202l Dcvclopmcnt 't4)3s206 11,335,206 74,335,206
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221U,n..2023 Davclopocnt 3,081271 3,081274 3,047 274

22 l]unc2023 Dcwlopm.nt 378,000 378,000 378,000

22 hrnc7023 Dcvalopmcnt 7,040,890 7,(x0,890 7,040,890

22lUE,a2023 DcwlopEcot 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,m0,000

221u8G2023 Devclopmant 13,826,n9 43,826,979 43,826,979

22 t\na2023 Dcvclopmcnt 23,651,456 21,651,456 23,651.456

22 hoc2023 Dcvclopmc[t 9,676208 9,676,208 9,616208

22 \tic2023 DcvElopmant 7,61t,178 7,61I,t78 7,61l,l?8

23 l]utrt 2023 Dcvclopmmt 1t,|3,623 7l,l 13,623 7 t,l t3,623

2l Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 21,361,E30 2r,351,810 2r,361,830

23 l$.2023 DcvclopmGot 39,632,137 39,632J31 39,632,117

2E l\tly 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 59,955,968 59,955,968 s9,955,968

28 \tly 2922 Dcvclopmcnt 5,917,000 5,917,000 5,91?,000

28 \rly 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 2,711,138 2,773,738 2,773,718

28 l\tly 2022 Dcvclopmcnt t0E,m0 108,000 108,000

02 Junc 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 2,505,500 2,50s,500 2,505,500

30 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 4o,l m,007 40-rm-007 40,1m,007

Totrl 9,47ln)21 9.47J9?327 9A17,197327

8t



Kenya National Eighwrys Authority
Annuel Reports and Finrncid Strtements
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05 Scptcmbcr 2O2 Dcvclopmcnt 6,66.1,926
Spanish Kingdom

6,663,926 6,663,926

06 Scptcmb.r 2022 Dcvelopmcn( 29,418,140 29,438.740 29,438,140

06 SQlcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 18,079,676 38,079,616 38,079,676

06 Scptcmbc.2022 Dcvclopeent 107,563,819 |07,563, 9 t07,563.8t9

06 Scplcmber 2022 Devclopmclt 122,130J88 122,130,388 r22,130,388

06 Scptcrnbcr 2022 DcvclopEcnt 159,4o9,7@ t59,409,760 159,409,760

06 Scptcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 23,86t,555 23,861.5ss 23,86r,s55

I 5 S.ptcmb.r 2022 Dcvclopmc 71.t97.787 71.897.7a7 71,897,7A1

14 Octob.r 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 7,649,059 7,649.059 7,649,059

Dcvclopmcnt t9,098,64014 Octobcr 2022 19,098,640 19,09E,640

02 Novcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcrt r r.918,641 I I,91E.641 I I,91t,641

24 NovcElbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 53,633,878 s3,633,878 53,631,878

Dcvclopmcnt 25,t 15,9,1I 26, 6,94120 Fcbrur.y 2023 26,8 t 6,941

02 Fcbnrdy 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 26,8 r5,943 26,E16,943 26,8r6,943

Dcvclopmcnt 2,592,500 2,692,5000l Junc 2023 2,692,500

0l Junc 2023 Dcvelopmcnt 2,868J9E 2,868J98 2,868,39t

0l ,un6 2023 Dcvclopm.nt 2921t,669 29,2t t,669 29,2t I,669
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30 Jutlc 2023 D.!rlopmctrt (324s,14t) (121s,711' o,245,74tI
30 Junc 202f, Dcrclopmcnt 10,056355 10,055J55 10,056,355

30 ,unc 2023 Dcvclopmcot (1,2r621r) (1216,21r) (1216,2r r)
Total 1Sr)15,7t2 15131[Jr2 7st)16,722

PEOPLES'
REPUBLIC OF
CIIINA

12 \tly 2022 DcvcloprDcnt 2,569,653,797 2,569,653,193 2,569,653,793

l2 Jun. 2023 Dcvrlopmcnt |,7t3,102,528 t,713,t02,528 t ,7 t3,t02,s28

Totel 1?EzJ56'32r 4?82Js6)2t 4482;ts6321

JICA

27 \rly ?.022 Dcvclopmcnt 8 r 5,495 8l sJ95 81s,495

03 Augult 2022 Davcloprncnt 13,330193 t3,330,293 13,330,293

03 Augult 2022 Dcvclopmc.Itt 8.594.165 8,594,165 8,594,r6s

07 Scpcmb.r 2022 D.wlopmcDt 13,558r99 r3,5J8,299 r3J58,299

07 Scptcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 6,4t3,828 6,4r3,828 6,4r3,828

07 kba 2022 Davclopmcnt 241,7t4,t25 241,1t4,t25 241,7 t4.125

07 Octobcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 149,1t0,509 149,110,509 149,1r0,509

l7 Octobq 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 9,19s,987 9,195,987 9,t95,987
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l7 Octobcr 2022 Dcvalopmcnt I3,147,5t I t 3,147,5 13,t47,51',|

0l Dcccmb.r 2022 Dcvclopmcnt t3292,998 13,292,998 't3292.998

0l Dcccmbd 2022 Davclopmcnt t0,853,629 r0,851,629 r0,851,629

07 Dcccmb.r 2022 Dcvclop6cnt t3,499,341 13,499.341 t3,499.347

07 DcccE$cr 2022 Development 9,624,620 9,624,620 9,624,620

I 5 Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 25,427,808 25,421,80E 25427.808

I 5 Dccdnbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcrt 2r,563,r43 21,563.143 21,563.143

I 5 Dercmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 93,194,068 93,194,068 93,194,068

I 5 Dcc.mbrr 2022 DcvclopmcDt 68,428,389 68,428,389 68,42t,389

l5 Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt s5,813,9?r 55,833,971 55,833,97t

I 5 Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt r6,910,336 r6,910,336 r 6,9t0,336

I 5 Dcccmbcr 2022 Drwlopmcnt 38,76s,781 38,165,78'l 38,'t65,787

I 5 Dcccmbc, 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 32,818,r53 32, t,153 32,818,153

16 Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 221,659,760 22t,659,760 221,659,7@

15 Dcccmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnl t65,912,t54 165,022,154 165,022,154

20 Pcbrudy 2023 DGvclopmcnl 7,669,1t4 7,669,? t4 7,669,7 t4

20 Fcbrulry 202f Dcvclopmcnt 13,889,706 13,8t9,706 t3,889,706

20 Fcbnrlry 2(xl] DctrloFrcnt 1,tst)17 ,l,l53Jl7 4,r 53,317
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20 FSrulry 2023 DGrcloprncnt t2,452,935 t2,162,97s 12,462,9X5

2l MsrEh 2023 Dcvclopmcnt t29,116543 t29,146543 txg,716541

2l M.Eh 2023 Dcvcloprncat 13,80t,590 13,808,590 13,808,590

2l Mmh 2023 DcvclopEctrt 3,7&)tl 3,764J1I 3,76431I

2l M'trh 2023 DcvclopEcDt 232,692,139 232,@2,739 212.@2,139

2l Mdrh 2023 Dcvclopmcat 2742t0508 2742t0,sO8 274210,508

2l Mlrch 2023 Dcwlopmcot t55,s712n tss,517 217 155,s77 271

l6 Junc 2023 Dav!lopmcnt 509,13sJ70 509,E35J70 509,835,570

l6 Jutlc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 127,158,89 t27,458,892 t21,458,8y2

t6 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmant 46,206,181 46206, r 8l 46206,r81

lS runc 2023 Dcvclopmat 126,5 l,l, 145 t26,5t4,t45 t26514.145

l6 Junc 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 281,0392E9 281,039289 2E1,039289

l5 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmant 109,460, r0r r 09.460,101 109,460, r 0r

l6 Junc 2023 Dcvdopmant 13,313,594 13,3 r3,594 13,311,594

l6.,unc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt t5,t42,10t 15,t42,70t r5,142,701

l6.lunc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 6,612,79 6.6t2,79 6,612,799

l6 Junc 2023 Dcv.lopmcnt t3,4n,890 t3,472,890 t3,422,490

Totd 3315,665,176 3315$66,t76 3>345,556,176
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Kfw

28 l,lly 2t22 Dcvclopmcnt 8,86E,904 8,868804 8,868,9M

2l Msrrh 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 8,22t,069 8,221,069 8,22r,069

2l M!$h 2021 Dcvelopmcnt t3279,7& 13,279,760 11,279,160

2l Malch 2023 Dcvclopmant 28,684,0r l 28,684,0t I 28,684,01|

0l Mly 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 4 I 3,5,16,065 4 t3,y6,065 4t3,546,06J

0l Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 620,3 t9,095 620,3 r9,095 620,319,095

I9 Junc 2023 Davclopmcot t,945230,M3 1,946230.(X3 1,946230,043

30 Jurc 2023 Dcv6lopmcnt 59,62E,064 59,628.064 59,62t,0U

30 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 26,894,933 26,894,933 26,894,933

Totel 3,125,671J4{ 3,r25$7t944 3,t25,67194/

IDA

14 Jrlly 2022 Dcvclopmcnt E5,E72,370 E5,872,3?0 85,872,370

14 \tly 2022 D!vclopmcnt 9,54t 374 9,541,374 9,54t,374

0l Scplcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopment 52J l r,985 62,311.986 62J r r,986

0 I Scptcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcnt 145,394,535 145,394.63s t45,394,635

0t Scptc.rnbcr 2022 Dgv€lopEcat 103,527J96 t03,527,596 103,527,596
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0l Scptcmbd 2m2 DcYclopmctlt t92265,535 tr2265,s15 1y2265,535

12 S.ptcdt r 2022 D"vcloptDcnt 10,614,530 10,644,530 10,6,14,530

12 Scptcmbcr 2022 Devclopmcnt 10,542,M3 10,542,063 t0,542,063

12 Srpt Eb.r 2022 Dcvcloptrtco( s,626281 5,626281 5,6262tt

t2 SAt nrb.r 2022 DcvclopE oi 32.175,391 32,r75,391 32,175,391

12 Scptcmbcr 2m2 Dcvclopmcnt 59,746,t54 59,748,854 59,748,854

I 7 Octobd 2022 DcvclopE nl 5,709,165 5.709,165 5,709,165

I 7 Octobcr 2022 Dcwlopmcnt s.661.029 5,561,029 5,661,029

2l Octobcr 2022 Dcvclopmant 9,819Jr5 9,8r9315 9.8r9J15

07 Nov.mb.r 2022 Dcwlopmcot t2E,n4,@2 t28,n4,602 t2E,114,642

07 Novcmbcr 2022 Dcvclopmcat 32,t93,550 32.193.650 32,193,550

l6 Novemb.r 2022 Dcvclopm.rlt 49,138,645 49,138,545 49,r38,645

16 Mvcmbri 2022 Dcvclopmmt 85JE3,450 85J83.450 85383.450

Dcwlopmcnt 85,872,1?003 ,uutry 2023 8s,872370 8s,872,t0

I 2 ,mulry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 5,981,934 5,981834 5,981,934

I 3 Juu.ry 2023 Devclopmcnt 9,539,1r6 9.639.1l6 9,639,1l6

13 J.nu.ry 2023 DGr€lopmcot 9,960,514 9,950,514 9,960,sr4

0t F.brurry 2023 Dcwlopmcnt 50216,X95 50,276,395 s0276,395
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0l Fcbru.ry 2023 Dtvclopmcnt 10,727,t42 t0.721,142 10,127,142

l5 Fcbrusly 2023 Dcvalopmcnt 19,E34,14 t 19,834,t4t 19,834,14t

0l April2023 Dcvclopmert 76,998,582 76,998,582 76,998,582

03 April2023 Devclopme!t r45,194J7r t45,194,571 t45,194,571

0,1 April 2023 Dcvelopmcrt 120,519,815 120.519.815 t20,5t9,8 t5

02M.y 2023 Dcvclopmc{rt 38.862,E15 38,852,815 38.862.815

02 Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcnt z7,6W,2t5 27,609,2t5 21,609,2ts

l8 Mty 2021 Dcvclopmcnt 47,4t42t8 47,4t4,218 41,414,2t8

I t Mry 2023 Dcvclopmcot 49,770,nO 49,770,970 49,770,910

02 lunc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 75,097,90 7s,097,990 ?5,097,990

02 J!!n 2023 Dewlopmcnt t02,t 15t32 102,t 15,432 102,1ts,432

02 )nn 2021 Devclopmcnt r9,218,s28 19.218.52E 19,218,528

02 ttdnc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 106,w4,252 t06,@4,252 106,094,252

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 61212,748 67,232,148 61212,148

02 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmmt I I,660,?06 I I,660,706 ! t,660,706

02l$nc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 204,991,599 204,993,599 204.993,599

20 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmcnt 2,817,t33 2,8t 7,133 2, 7,133

22lrn 2023 D.vclopmcnt 93,635,m9 93,615,029 93,67s,s29
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I

{

t

22 tnnc2023 Dcvclopmcnt 93,635,929 93,635,ttg 91,615,t29

23 !$c2023 Dcrdopmcnt r17,883,168 147,8E3,168 147,883,168

23 lUJI.c2023 Dcvclopncnt 8s249,626 8s,249,626 8s249,A6

30 Junc 202 Dcv.loDE ot t0,72437 | 30,724,37 | 30,724,371

30 Juoc 2023 Dcv€lopm.ot 554,(B0J78 554,090J78 554,090,378

30 Junc 2023 Dcvclopmdt 41,947,658 4t 941.658 4t,947,658

30 Jutrc 2023 Dcvclopm.ol 134,977,605 t34,971.605 t34,977,605

Totd 3J00,13.1,659 3,300,13.r,6s9 3,300,r34,6s9

Totrl for D€yelopmcnt PrrtDcrs
(c+D) u916,120.846 219t6,120,U6 24,916,120,u6
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Appendir V- Inter-Entity ConIlru.dor Letter

Kenya National Highways Authority Headquarters
Barabara Plaza, Jomo Kenyatta Intemational Airport (JKIA),
Off Mazao Road
P.O. Box 49712 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Confirmation ofrmounts recelved by Kenya Natlonel Highwsys Authorlty es st 30fr June 2023

Amounts Disbursed by Kenya Roads Board & MoIEIUD & pw (KSh$
as at 30th June 2023

Amount Received by
Kenya National
Highways Authority
(KShs) as at 30s June

2022
(E)

Differences
(Kshs)

(F){D-E)
Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent (A) Development (B) lnter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(D)=(A+B.r-c)

As per
schedules
above 28.178.268.796 r4.568.49t.327 42,746,760,t23 57,354,334,732 (14,607.574.609\

Total 28-178.268-1q6 14.568.4q1327 12.146.760.123 573s4,334.732 07 7

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

Head of Accounts department of ary Entity:
0? ii; lil!

Name CPA. Chan e Kers Dete

L-

.!
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